CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE
BROOKSVILLE, FL 34601

AGENDA
August 5, 2013 7:00 P.M.
A. CALL TO ORDER
B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
C. CERTIFICATES, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
1. Hernando Youth Leagues, Inc. — Brooksville Girls Softball Division
Appreciation to the City for their participation with the Dixie Girls Softball State
Tournament held at Tom Varn Park.
Presentation: Danny Brooks, Florida Dixie Gitls
State Director & Christie Williams,
HYL Girls Softball Director
2. |Blorida Water Professionals Week Proclamation!
A Proclamation proclaiming August 12 — 16, 2013, as Florida Water Professionals
Week.
Presentation: Mayor
Attachments: Proclamation
D. CITIZEN INPUT
E. CONSENT AGENDA
R v
a. Regular Meeting
b. m Regular Meeting
2. Boom/Crane Unit Bid No. UD2013-03 Awacd|
Consideration of award of bid to Ring Power for the not-to-exceed amount of
$107,000.
3.
Consideration of award of Paving Projects bids to Goodwin Brothers Construction
in the not-to-exceed amount of $173,412.51.
4.  Department of Carrections - Work Crew Contract #WSR70 !

Consideration of Inmate Work Squad Contract #WS870 for an amount not-to-
exceed $58,004.
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5. |Correcti0n to the 2013 /14 Federal Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance|
Grant (JAG) Program Allocations

Approval of correction to the allocation of local Fedetal Edward Byrne Memorial
JAG funding as approved by the Hernando County Substance Abuse Policy
Advisory Board.

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL (V)

Recommendation: Approval of Consent Agenda
Action: Motion to Approve
Attachments: 1) Minutes; 2) Memo from Ditector

of Public Works dated 07/22/13, Bid
Certifications; 3) Memo from Director
of Parks, Facilities & Recreation dated
07/25/13, Bid Certification, Fund 113
Detail; Agreement; 4) Memo from
Director of Public Works dated
07/26/13; Agreement; 5) Memo from
Police Chief dated 08/05/13; Memo
from FDLE Administrator Herring,
Mayor’s Letter of Agreement to
Allocation

REGULAR AGENDA

1. [Supetvisor of Elections |

Counsideration for consolidation of City of Brooksville voting precincts.

Presentation: Shirley Anderson, Supetvisotr of
Elections

Recommendation: ~ Direction to Supetvisor of Elections

Attachments: Letter from Supervisor of Elections

dated 06/28/13, Voter Data

2. [Great Brooksvillian Selection|

Review of Screening Committee recommendations and selection of the 2013 Great
Brooksvillian recipient.

Presentation: City Cletk and Screening Committee
Chair

Recommendation: Approval of  Appointment ot
Direction to Staff

Attachments: Memo from City Clerk and Screening
Committee Chair dated 08/05/13:
Nominees
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 5, 2013
CITIZEN INPUT
H. ITEMS BY COUNCIL

I. ADJOURNMENT

[CORRESPONDENCE TO NOTH

In accordance with the Ameticans with Disabilities Act, persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to
participate in this proceeding should contact the City Clerk’s office 48 hours in advance of the meeting at (352) 540-3853.
Meeting agendas and supporting documentation are available from the City Cletk’s office and on Iine at
www.cityotbrooksville. us.

Any person desiring to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, may need a record of the
proceedings including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based, and therefore must make
arrangements for a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made.
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AGENDA ITEM NO. P2

City of BWrooksbille 5547

Proclamation

Ulhereas, the Florida Water & Pollution Control Operators Association is a statewide organization
composed of water industry professionals who dedicate themselves to the production and distribution of safe
drinking water, as well as the proper collection, treatment, reuse, and disposal of wastewater and stormwater;
and, :

JWhereas, this organization is committed to protecting the health of Florida’s citizens and our state’s
natural resources, and supports the training, certification, and licensing of water industry personnel as a means
to achieve these goals; and,

TUherceas, this organization, in recognizing the impottance of the Florida Statutes and Administrative
Code that regulate the water industry, acts as liaison between the Flotida Department of Environmental
Protection and industry personnel; and,

WWihereas, cach year the Flotida Water & Pollution Control Operatots Association recognizes all those
who have played a significant part in operating and maintaining drinking water, wastewater, and stormwater
systems in Florida by celebrating Florida Water Professionals Week, which applauds their constant efforts to
ptotect our health and environment.

ot Theretore, We the Undersigned ag City Council for and on Webalf of the City SOf
Brooksbille, do hereby proclaim August 12 — 16, 2013, as

FFlovida @ater Professionals Weeck

Fin Witness Wihereof, we have hereunto set our hand and caused to be affixed the seal of the City of
Brooksville this 5t day of August, 2013.

City of TWrooksbille

Lara Bradburn, Mayor

Kevin Hohn, Vice Mayor Joe Bernardini, Council Member

Frankie Butnett, Council Member Joseph E. Johnston, III, Council Membet

Attest:

Janice L. Peters, CMC, City Clerk



AGENDA ITEM NO. _£-4@)
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE 07{/ 2
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE
BROOKSVILLE, FL 34601
MINUTES

March 4, 2013 7:00 P.M.

Brooksville City Council met in regular session with Mayor Lara Bradburn, Vice Mayor Kevin Hohn, Council
Members Frankie ‘Burnett and Joseph E. Johnston, ITT present. Also present wetre James Fisher, City
Attorney; T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager; Janice L. Petets, City Clerk; Mike Walker, Parks and
Recreation Director; Bill Geiger, Community Development Ditector; Richard Radacky, Director of Public
Works; George Turner, Police Chief and Tim Mossgrove, Fire Chief. A metmber of the Hernando Times
was also present.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bradburn, followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.

CERTIFICATES, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Matgaret R, Ghiotto Improvement Award — Residential Award
Recognition of improvements to the property of Mr. and Mrs. Alphonso Goodson, located at 1340

E. Jefferson Street.

Scott Renz, Beautification Board Chair reviewed the award and along with Mayor Bradburn
presented the award to Mr. Goodson.

Margaret R. Ghiotto Improvement Award - Commercial Award
Recognition of improvements to the property d/b/a House of Passage, located at 5 N. Main Street.

Scott Renz, Beautification Board Chair reviewed the award and with Mayor Bradburn presented the
award to owner Ann Daniel Borgialli, Ms. Borgialli introduced het daughter and spoke about her
shop.

Métropolitan Planning Organijzation (MPO) Apportionment Plan

Presentation and update of the draft Apportionment Plan for Hernando and Citrus County to
combine into one Transportation Planning Organization.

Dennts Dix, Transportation Planning Coordinator for the Hernando County MPO, reviewed a
PowerPoint Presentation regarding the issue, which is based upon changes to the Census that affects
MPO designations, boundaries and membetship apportionment.

There are two new urbanized areas in the State of Florida, one in Highlands County and one in
Citrus County. Another interesting fact he pointed out is that there are 26 MPOs in the State of
Florida and the Governor has stated there will be no new MPO boatds. So the new urbanized ateas
have to collaborate with neighboring MPOs. Citrus County has three options: Marion County, Lake
Sumter County or to Hernando County. They are starting with us because they are interested in
north/south travel by way of the Suncoast corridor. The MPO has discussed apportionment
possibilities.  Citrus County is not as far ahead as Hernando County is and will be holding
apportionment wotkshops over the next two weeks to decide if they want to proceed.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - March 4, 2013

The earliest a new apportionment plan could be adopted, should Citrus County opt in, would be in
March 26%. The Governor wanted the issue resolved by April 15t but Mr. Dix is not sure this will
happen. As soon as information is received from Cittus County he will be back to fill in Council on
the project.

Mayor Bradburn explained that the purpose of the MPO is that the City and County wotk togethet
to decide transportation priorities for the future of the City and County. It is vital in securing state
and federal funding for our roads.

Mr. Dix advised an MPO is created by Federal Highway when a population reaches 50,000 in an
urbanized area. The plans go out 20 years; the current plan to 2035. MPO’ are being encouraged to
join with other area MPO’s to do something more regional. Mayor Bradburn added that Bill Geiger
has been the City’s liaison on those conversations.

Right-of-Way Sign Violation Update
Update on current right-of~way sign violations in the City.

Director of Community Development reviewed that the shipe signs that show up in the medians are
a nationwide problem because it is a cheap way to advertise. He advised staff meets with the
business owners, reviewing code and fines. They also work with event organizers, as well as the
County, such as the Supervisor of Elections Office regarding candidate signs. Director Geiger
advised the first fine is $50. Discussion ensued of the fines and fees. Director Geiget indicated the
system is working it’s just a continual process.

CITIZEN INPUT
Mayor Bradburn asked for public input.

Theresa Keenan, with Hernando County asked that the Fluotidation item be placed on the April
agenda. Mayor Bradburn advised a letter had been sent which indicated the item would best be
heard during the budget process.

Dz Johnny Johnson, a pediatric dentist in Palm Harbor, advised he’s seen the kids that haven’t been
exposed to fluoridation, advising oral abscesses due to tooth decay can lead to death if not treated.
He advised there is an abundance of misinformation on the subject and it is his desire to have
fluoridation.

Council Member Burnett requested a meeting with Dr. Johnston to discuss the issue.
CONSENT AGENDA
Minutes

December 3, 2012 Regular Meeting

December 11, 2012 Pension Workshop

Beautificaticn Board Member Removal
Consideration of Board recommendation to remove member for non-attendance.

Brooksville Housing Authority Board Member Removal

Consideration of Board recommendation to remove member.

2013 Annual Holiday and Meeting Schedule
Consideration of approval for correction of Council meeting dates for Aptil 2013.

Regarding Item E-3, Council Member Burnett advised the City was not notified of Ms. Taylots
departure in September until January 2013. He didn’t feel the City has been kept informed of the
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES — March 4, 2013

happenings at the Brooksville Housing Authority.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Johnston and seconded by Council Member Burnett for
approval of Consent Agenda.

Vice Mayor Hohn asked that Ttem E-5, Special Assessment Intetlocal Agreements be pulled for
discussion.

Motion carrted 4-0 for approval of Consent Agenda Items 1-4.
Special Assessment Interlocal Agreements

Consideration of Interlocal Agreements with the Hernando County Tax Collectot and the Hetnando
County Property Appraiser for collection of assessments using the uniform method of collection.

Vice Mayor Hohn reviewed the costs associated with the agreements. He asked the difference in the
costs of collection by the City. City Manager Norman-Vacha explained that the assessment would be
attached to the homeowners’ annual taxes and a lien would be applied to the property if not paid.
Chief Mossgrove advised the fee of up to 2% is statutorily driven. Council Member Johnston
advised that tax certificates are sold on properties that don’t pay and the City would receive the
monies.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Johnston and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn for
approval of Consent Agenda Item E-5. Motion cartied 4-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Board Sitting in its Quasi-fudicial Capacity)
® Dntry of Proof of Publication into the Record
® Poll Council Members for Ex-Parte Communications
¢  Administering of Oath to All Persons Intending to Speak [Expert Witness Credentials]
» Adoption of the Agenda Back-up Materials into Evidence

Mayor Bradburn gave a brief review of the quasi-judicial process and called for proof of
publication. City Clerk Peters indicated Item F1 was published on Wednesday, November 14, 2012,
in the Hernando Today legal section of the Tampa Tribune and there is a copy of the affidavit for
the record.

Mayor Bradburn asked that the credentials of Bill Geiger, Steve Gouldman, Cliff Manuel and Don
Lacey be recognized by Council as expert witnesses.

Motion: :
Motion was made by Council Member Johnston and seconded by Council Member Butnett for
approval. Motion cartied 4-0.
City Attorney Fisher advised there is a court reporter in attendance fot: this proceeding,
Mayor Bradburn asked that all staff material be adopted into evidence. (Attachment A)
Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Johnston and seconded by Council Member Burnett for
approval.
Mayor Bradburn polled Council if any ex-parte communications have taken place on the subject. All

replied no except for Council Member Johnston who advised he had spoken to CLff Manuel
concerning December’s meeting.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - Match 4, 2013

Ordinance No. 833 — Evans Financial Services, LTD*
Request for a zoning classification of Residential Planned Development Project (PDP) consisting of
427 single family units.
[First Reading 11/05/12; Continued on 11/19/12; Continued on 12/17/12]

City Planner Steve Gouldman reviewed the rezoning request as documented in the staff report and
entered into the record in its entirety {Attachment A).

Mayor Bradburn requesting all parties wishing to provide testimony on the subject be sworn. Bill
Geiger, Steve Gouldman, Cliff Manuel, and Don Lacey wete sworn by the Clerk.

Planner Gouldman advised there have been three primary issues; conditions and specificity, drainage,
and traffic, which he reviewed as documented in the staff teport attached herein.

He advised a letter had been received from the Home Owners Association (HOA) President of
Weslyan Village advising their concerns were for trees that are overhanging the propetty from the
west side of Weslyan Village and drainage. The HOA President indicated Weslyan Village is not
opposed to the development pet se but would like the City to addtess the drainage issue adequately
before approval.

Regarding traffic, Planner Gouldman advised the applicant has submitted a preliminary
transportation analysis that shows the project will opetate at less than 20 petcent of its design
capacity. The analysis also indicates that with the addition of the traffic genetrated by the Majestic
Oaks development at project build-out, Mondon Hill Road will operate at approximately 58 petcent
of design capacity.

Regarding the MPO’s 2025 Cost Affordable Plan and the 2035 Long Range Transpottation Plan, it
shows that this roadway, with Majestic Oaks included, will opetate at a level of service B. Planner
Gouldman believes that makes this one of the best functioning collector roadways in the County.

Vice Mayor Hohn asked what a “Level B” refers to. Planner Gouldman advised thete are levels A-F
based on volume and is a transportation term relating subjectively to....how long it takes you to get
out of your driveway for instance.

Mayor Bradburn advised the studies of the adjoining roads have not been done and volume is only
one component to safety.

Don Lacey of Coastal Engineering, having been sworn, reiterated that information had been
provided as requested by Council regarding traffic and drainage. He indicated Coastal Engineeting
had worked with staff regarding changes to the recommended conditions and they have no
objections. Mr. Lacey advised it is a compatible project, it has been through several stages at this
point, staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval as do they.

Mayor Bradburn asked for public input; there was none.

Mayor Bradburn confirmed with staff and petitioner that the property boundaty dispute will be
handled by the affected property owners outside this process.

She confirmed with staff and petitioner that the language changes have been agreed to, which gives
the City better standing to protect the community and is part of condition two. This point in the
process is for zoning which dilutes entitlement should the petitioner never meet the other
conditions. Mayor Bradburn advised that the Petitioner has taken great pains to meet with
SWFWMD to address many of the drainage concerns on this property, which has been a great
concern of Weslyan Village.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - March 4, 2013

For final clatification, Mayor Bradburn referenced that the traffic conditions on Mondon Hill Road
have been a significant concern as it relates to density, some of which has been addressed tonight.
She looks forward to working with the petitioner in the future, should this go forward, to make sure
that people travel safely in that area.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Burnett and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn for approval.

City Clerk Peters read Ordinance No. 833 by title, as follows:

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING A ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PDP
(PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PROJECT), CONSISTING OF
RESIDENTIAL USES FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED
HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Council Member Johnston advised he had previously had concerns which were addressed and he will
be voting fot approval.

Motion carried 4-0 upon roll call vote, as follows:

Council Member Bernardini Absent

Council Member Burnett Aye

Council Member Johnston Aye

Vice Mayor Hohn Aye

Mayor Bradburn Aye
REGULAR AGENDA

Resolution No. 2013-02 Brooksville Housing Authority Membet Reduction

Consideration of Resolution reducing the number of members on the Brooksville Housing
Authority Board to five (3) plus one (1) alternate.

City Clerk Peters reviewed.
Council Member Burnett asked that a person from the South Brooksville area be appointed to the
board, which was discussed. Mayor Bradburn advised no members could be replaced until
expirations of terms.

Motion:
Motion was made by Vice Mayor Hohn and seconded by Council Member Johnston for approval of
Resolution No. 2013-02.
City Clerk Peters read Resolution No. 2013-02 by title, as follows:

A RESOLUTION REDUCING THE NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS ON
THE BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY.

Motion carried 4-0 upon roll call vote as follows:

Council Member Burnett Aye
Council Member Johnston Aye
Council Member Bernardini Absent
Vice Mayor Hohn Aye
Mayor Bradburn Aye

Mayor Bradburn, with Council consensus, moved the issue of the current membership to the next
agenda.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES — March 4, 2013

Resolution No. 2013-04 - FDOT Approval for Florida Blueberry Event Road Closures
Consideration of Resolution to FDOT requesting approval of closures to State Roads for the
Florida Blueberry Festival May 3-5, 2013.

City Clerk Peters reviewed.

Council Member Johnston expressed concern for the closure of downtown at Noon on Friday.
Michael Heard advised Hernando County is working with them and will consider shutting down the
government center at noon on that Friday. Local traffic will be allowed and the public parking at the
courthouse will be open for parking., Michael Heard elaborated.

Motion:
Motion was made by Vice Mayor Hohn and seconded by Council Member Butnett fot approval of
Resolution No. 2013-04.

City Clerk Peters read Resolution No. 2013-04 by title, as follows:

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA SUPPORTING A
REQUEST TO CLOSE JEFFERSON STREET AND BROAD STREET
BETWEEN LEMON STREET AND BELL AVENUE IN DOWNTOWN
BROOKSVILLE ON FRIDAY, MAY 3, 2013 FROM NOON UNTIL 8:00 PM ON
SUNDAY, MAY 5, 2013; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Council Member Johnston pointed out that the headnote states it’s for closing Jefferson and Broad
Streets but in the body it reflects all the other streets to be closed. He also stated he didn’t see
anything in the resolution referencing FDOT. City Clerk Petets advised the resolution gets attached
to the street closure permit submitted to the state.

Motion cartied 3-1 upon roll call vote as follows:

Council Member Johnston Nay
Council Member Bernardini Absent
Council Member Burnett Aye
Vice Mayor Hohn Aye
Mayor Bradburn Aye

Flotida Blueberry Festival 2013 Update
Update on festivities for the 2013 Florida Blueberry Festival and request for marketing sponsorship.

Michael Heard, Festival Coordinator reviewed the tequest for Council investment and to serve as a
Co-Title sponsor of the event. She advised they have reached out to the County to help with FDOT
and the MOT for street closure costs, which they will be considering on the 12th of this month.

She thanked Council for providing office space, utilities and electricity. The County supplies phone
service and they pay for their own internet services, copiet, etc.

The request was as follows:

® Assistance and support from City staff in planning, prepating and implementing the FDOT,
Maintenance of Traffic Plan, estimated at $1,740.
Fee waiver for City service costs for the Festival days (May 4t & 5t%) estimated at $3,580.
Cash contribution of $20,000, which would include the City’s branding/naming in all pre-
event advertising, to include billboards, radio, magazine and newspapers, bus plaques, all
event signage and announcements and the festival website, 12 VIP Parking passes, 24 VIP
Entry passes, VIP Hospitality access and VIP Concert Seating passes, along with post-event
recognition.
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She advised expenditures include $30,000, with $30,000 in kind donations from a billboard company,
targeting Tampa, Orlando, The Villages with a picture of the event at the movies there, along with
their newspaper and television commercials. Great Bay Distributing is doing all the radio advertising
in Hillshorough, Pinellas and Sarasota Counties. The Citrus area is getting radio and Tampa Bay
Times advertisements. Tampa Bay Times has become a permanent sponsor with around $20,000 in
newspaper campaigns for 4-weeks. Expenditures will be a little over $100,000 with the same in in-
kind contributions, for a total of around $200,000 for the marketing campaign. They ate hoping for
60,000 people in attendance this year.

She reviewed the closing of downtown with crowd-control fencing, which will allow for admission
gates with a $5 admission and $2 for children between 5-16. This is to make up for the revenue
stream lost on parking last year. Banners were sold to pay for the fencing,

This year’s event will include a live cooking show; an intervention cardiologist will be giving lessons
on cooking healthy, which will be televised on the Food Netwotk channel. A video program will give
instructions on starting a blueberry farm or growing in your back yard.

The biggest sponsor this year is Dole, which has branched out into the berry business. They have
taken over the entire blueberry concession this year.

So far over $160,000 in cash has been raised.

Council Member Burnett asked whete the monies would come from. City Managetr Norman-Vacha
advised the city’s cash forward from prior year budget is higher than anticipated, close to $100,000
and recommended a motion to release monies from unallocated reserves for contingencies to
Council’ line item, designated to the Florida Blueberry Festival. Council Member Burnett suppotted
the request. Mayor Bradburn elaborated on the excitement of last year’s event and lessons learned.
She commended Mrs. Heard on landing the Dole sponsorship.

Mayor Bradburn, referring to the Brooksville Vision Foundation, advised they are trying to better the
City. She asked Cliff Manuel, President of Coastal Engineering and the Brooksville Vision
Foundation his perspective on the request. He spoke in favor of the event and the City’s suppott,
which in turn supports local business and the economy. He pointed out that Mrs. Heatd also btings
with her numerous other volunteers that invest their time in the City as well. He strongly encouraged
the support of Council.

In closing, Mts. Heard advised that mistakes from last yeat’s event had been cotrected. There will be
community meetings with local merchants and citizens to understand what they’re up against.

Assistance and support from City staff in planning, preparing and implementing the FDOT,
Maintenance of Traffic Plan, estimated at $1,740 for overtime.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Burnett and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn for
approval assistance and support estimated at $1,740. Motion cartied 4-0.
Pee waiver for City service costs for the Festival days (May 4% & 5%) estimated at $3,580.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Burnett and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn for
approval of fee waivers estimated at $3,580. Motion carried 4-0.

Cash Contribution of $20,000.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - March 4, 2013

Motion;
Motion was made by Council Member Burnett and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn fot approval of
the cash contribution of $20,000 to the Florida Blueberty Festival. Motion cattied 3-1, with Council
Member Johnston voting in opposition.

To recap, City Manager Norman-Vacha reviewed that Council has approved costs estimated at
$25,320 and asked that Council make a motion to release those funds from unallocated reserves for
contingencies out of general fund to be placed in the City Council budget under their regular fee
waiver line item. As those costs come forward they will be subtracted out of that line item. The
$20,000 cash contribution will be in the form of a check written to the Bluebetry Festival.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Burnett and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn for
approval. Motion carried 4-0.

Mayor Bradburn advised the City is on a more positive financial footing than we have been in 12
years, but next yeat may be a little tougher. She wanted to make it clear that this is not something
that will be guaranteed for coming years but something that Council is able and excited to do for this
year’s event.

She stressed communication to the downtown merchants and residents. She is hoping to have an
Earth Day event to beautify the right-of-ways leading into the city priot to the festival.

Mayor Bradburn advised she has an official request from the Fair Association to patticipate in the
festival.

Council Member Burnett felt this will be an ongoing annual event and until the event is self-
sufficient that during budget sessions this be discussed.

Lastly, Mayor Bradburn thanked Cliff Manuel and Michael Heard for their investment in the City,
which will have an impact for many years to come.

City Manager Contract

Review and renewal of City Manager Contract.

Mayor Bradbuen distributed the City Managet’s evaluation. It was Council consensus to continue the
City Manager’s contract. She thanked City Manager Norman-Vacha for another gteat year.

CITIZEN INPUT
Mayor Bradburn asked for public input.

Kojack Burnett felt concetning the Brooksville Housing Authority, the alternate should be someone
in the community and commended the City Manager on anothet great year.

ITEMS BY COUNCIL

Joseph E. Johnston, ITI, Council Member
City Manager Evaluation

He indicated that his lower rating of the City Managet’s evaluation is because of the way it’s worded.
A score of 5 means “Exceeded all Expectations”.

Blueberry Festival Support

He advised that, while he agrees it is a wonderful event, he has a problem with the way it was
presented this evening, without additional background information. He understands what the City
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES — Mazch 4, 2013

Manager said, that the City has some extra money but he would also like to possibly see some of that
money go to employees.

Frankie Burnett, Council Membet

City Manager Evaluation

Council Member Burnett advised he rated the City Manager all 5% except one because he feels she is
the best thing that has come to the City of Brooksville in a long time, accomplishing much and
admires her for working with each Council Member to get things done.

Kevin IHohn, Vice Mayor

1st Tee of Brooksville Golf Tourhament

Vice Mayor Hohn advised the tournament will be held at Southern Hills on Aptil 16t and thete are
two major ($5,000) sponsors, and.a §1,000 sponsor. He expects 2-3 more major sponsors. e
been working with area golf courses to get their golf pro’ into the tournament.

City Manager Evaluation

He advised he has given the City Manager all 5% for two years in a row and doesn’t know of anyone
who could do the job any better with more dedication, ptide and love for the City.

T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager

City Manager Evaluation

City Manager Norman-Vacha advised there is no way she could do her job without department
directors that work just as hard as she does and the employees that function under them. She
thanked Council for the oppottunity to work with them.

Pavement Management Workshop

She reminded Council of the Pavement Management wotkshop tomotrrow night at 6:30.

Lara Bradburn, Mayor

City Manager Evaluation :
Mayor Bradburn expressed appreciation for the City Manager, thanking staff for their support as

well,

ADJOURNMENT

Attest

There being no further business to bring before Council, the meeting adjourned 29:20 p.m.
//g

"

ity Clerk |

Mayor
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ATTACHNENT A AGENDA ITEM NO. _ 22/

T3

AGENDA ITEM

MEMORANDUM
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL,—__
VIA: T. JENNENE NORMAN-VACHA, CITY @ Solp
VIA: BILL GEIGER, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

FROM:  STEVEN E. GOULDMAN, AICP, CITY PLANNERﬁi
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 833 — EVANS FINANCIAL REZONING

DATE: MARCH 4, 2013

GENERAL SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: The request is to rezone an approximately
170.8 acres from Hernando County Agricultural (AG) to Planned Development Project

(PDP) to allow for the development of up to 427 single-family conventional units at a
density of 2.5 dwelling units per acre.

Located on the south side of Mondon Hill Road and immediately east of Jasmine Drive,
the subject parcel was annexed into the City on June 6, 2005 (Ordinance No. 689) and
was at the time of annexation 191 acres in size. Subsequent to the annexation,
Hernando County purchased property in the northwest portion of the site to be utilized
as right-of-way for the realignment of the Jasmine Drive/Mondon Hill Road/McIntyre
Road intersection. The City Council approved, on October 18, 2010, a Comprehensive
Plan amendment designating the property as Suburban Residential, which allows for the
consideration of up to 2.5 dwelling units per acre.

Compatibility with Surrounding Area: The subject property is, as previously
noted, located south of Mondon Hill Road, immediately east of Jasmine Drive. The
general area is primarily developed with residential uses and contains a number of
undeveloped agricultural tracts. Specifically, the property to the northeast of the subject
site is the Majestic Oaks Planned Development Project, which is allowed a maximum of
999 dwelling units, 100,000 square feet of floor space for commercial and office uses
and 31,000 square feet of floor space for a clubhouse and associated activities. East and
west of the subject property are primarily large undeveloped tracts and large lot
residential uses. Immediately south of the site is the densely-developed Wesleyan
Village property. Given the above, staff finds the proposed zoning designation is
compatible with the surrounding development pattern.

As proposed, the project will contain a maximum of 427 single-family conventional
dwelling units located in 3 development pods, with one access drive to Jasmine Drive
and one to Mondon Hill Road. The petitioner proposes to locate lots a minimum of
7,000 square feet in size along the north, south and east project boundaries, while all
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other lots interior to the site will contain a minimum of 5,000 square feet. The 7,000
square-foot lots are to be a minimum of 70 feet in width and 100 feet deep. The 5,000
square-foot lots will be a minimum of 50 feet in width and 100 feet in depth. Front yard
setbacks for all lots will be 20 feet for primary facades, with street-facing garages set
back a minimum of 25 feet. All lots will have minimum rear yard setbacks of 20 feet.
The 7,000 square-foot lots will be developed with 7.5-foot side yards, while the side yard
setbacks for the 5,000 square—foot lots will be 5 feet. The project will also preserve the
existing wetlands and provide open space adjacent to the wetlands and required
stormwater facilities, To facilitate compatibility with the existing wooded streetscape
along Mondon Hill Road, a buffer area 20 feet in width will be provided along the
roadway. A multi-use path eight feet in width from the project entrance on Mondon Hill
Road to the Good Neighbor Trail will be provided. Additionally, at the southern edge of
the buffer, a tan or almond PVC fence six feet in height will be installed. The fence will
contain brick, stone or architecturally-finished columns a minimum of two feet in width
and spaced no more than 100 feet apart. Except for those trees required for removal to
accommodate the fence, multi-use path and required sidewalk east of the project
entrance, all trees eight inches DBH and larger within the buffer will be preserved.

Public Facilities and Level of Service: The project will be served by City water and
sewer services. The developer will be required to negotiate a utility service agreement
with the City of Brooksville to facilitate the provisions for water and sewer services to
the property. No development permit related to the project will be issued until water
and sewer services are available to serve the property. Additionally, no development
order will be issued unless the Hernando County School District indicates adequate
capacity for each level of school exists or an appropriate mitigation measure has been
negotiated. Police, fire and sanitation collection services will also be provided by the
City. A traffic study will be required to establish the proposed development’s impacts on
the transportation network, as well as mitigation measures that may be required to
address any deficiencies or safety issues.

Development plans submitted for permitting of this project will be reviewed and
analyzed for impact to roads, utilities, -schools, drainage, the environment and
compliance with all other applicable land use criteria and will be subject to meeting all
federal, state and local agency permitting requirements.

Natural Resources and Drainage: The property is presently undeveloped and is
primarily wooded, containing native hardwoods as well as a number of small, isolated
wetland areas. Former railroad right-of-way and power line easements are located at
the northwest property boundary from Jasmine Drive to Mondon Hill Road. Vegetation
on the subject property consists primarily of Slash Pine, Sweet Gum and Laurel Oak
trees with some Southern Magnolia, Pignut Hickory, Live Oak, Eastern Red Cedar,
Cabbage Palm and Red Mulberry specimens variously located. A medium cover
underbrush is present as well. The majority of the soil on the subject site is identified as
Nobleton (0 to 5% slopes), Kendrick (0 to 5% slopes), Sparr (0 to 5% slopes) and
Wauchula (0 to 5% slopes).
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According to the current adopted FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map community panels,
the majority of the subject site is located within Flood Zone X, which is defined as an
area exhibiting minimal flood potential. A small portion of the site located near the
western property boundary and areas in the south-southeastern portion fall within
Flood Zone AE. Flood Zone AE indicates the area is subject to flooding during a 100-
year storm event. No development will be permitted within the areas located in Flood
Zone AE. Development of the site will be subject to SWFWMD 40D-4 permitting
requirements, as well as the City's Comprehensive Plan policies relating to stormwater
retention and conveyance.

BUDGET IMPACT: Costs for processing rezoning requests are offset by applicable
application fees.

LEGAL REVIEW: Florida Statutes § 163.3202(2)(b) requires that each county and
each municipality regulate the use of land and water for those land use categories
included in the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use element and ensure the
compatibility of adjacent uses and provide for open space.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION: At
their October 10, 2012 meeting, the Planning and Commission concurred with the staff
finding that the request is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and
compatible with the surrounding development pattern. The Planning and Zoning
Commission also supported the conditions provided by staff with two changes. The first
change involves specifying that the multi-use path be paved in accordance with the
appropriate technical standards. Condition 4 of the proposed project regulations has
been modified to reflect the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation. The
second change is the suggestion that a buffer area 10 feet in width be provided and rear
yard setbacks be reduced to 15 feet to compensate for the buffer along the southern
property boundary where residential development abuts the Wesleyan Village
development. Given that the buffer area would create an area where no activity could
occur on property that a homeowner could perceive as being part of their parcel, would
require that the Homeowners Association be able to access and maintain the area and
the fact that the buffer appears to serve no purpose, staff has not included the suggested
buffer area in the proposed conditions.

The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with the staff recommendation that
City Council approve the request to rezone the subject property from County AG
(Agricultural) to Planned Development Project (PDP), subject to the changes discussed
and the conditions below. As noted above, Condition 4 has been modified to reflect the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation regarding the multi-use path. The
Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommended buffer area is not included in the
conditions.

1. Unless otherwise specified herein, the project shall be developed in accordance
with the Land Development Code as well as the rules and regulations of all
applicable government entities.
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2, The project shall be allowed a maximum of 427 single-family conventional
dwellings in three development pods. The development pods shall be generally
located as shown on the conceptual site plan dated February 20, 2013.

3. Development standards for the project shall be as follows:

Minimum Lot Size: 5,000 square feet, with the exception that lots
abutting the north, south and east project boundaries shall be a minimum
of 7,000 square feet.

Minimum Lot Width: 50 feet, with the exception that lots abutting the

north, south and east project boundaries shall be a minimum of 70 feet in
width.

Front Yard Setback: 20 feet for primary facades, with street-facing
garages set back a minimum of 25 feet.

Rear Yard Setback: 20 feet.

Side Yard Setback: 5 feet for lots less than 7,000 square feet in size and
7.5 feet for lots 7,000 square feet and larger.

Maximum Building Height: 35 feet

4. The developer shall provide a buffer 20 feet in width along Mondon Hill Road.
At the southern edge of the buffer, a tan or almond PVC fence six feet in height
shall be installed. The fence shall contain brick, stone or architecturally-finished
columns a minimum of two feet in width and spaced no more than 100 feet apart.
In lieu of the sidewalk required from the Good Neighbor Trail to the project
entrance, a multi-use path eight feet in width shall be provided and shall be
constructed in accordance with Hernando County’s standards for sidewalks.
Except for those trees required for removal to accommodate the fence, multi-use
path and required sidewalk east of the project entrance, all trees eight inches
DBH and larger within the buffer shall be preserved. The buffer area shall be
platted as a separate parcel and shall be owned and maintained by the
Homeowners Association or similar entity.

5. Mailboxes shall be located in community kiosks provided throughout the project.
Mailboxes on or adjacent to individual lots shall be prohibited.

6. A maximum of one access drive to Jasmine Drive and one access drive to
Mondon Hill Road shall be permitted.

7. Prior to construction plan submittal, the developer shall provide to the
Community Development Department for review and approval a detailed PDP
development site plan depicting all the requirements specified herein as well as
all appropriate and applicable data and information.
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8. The petitioner/developer shall obtain all permits and meet all applicable land
development regulations, for construction or use of the property.

9. The developer shall coordinate with the City Department of Public Works to
properly plan for and address drainage and pedestrian improvements interior to
and around the perimeter of the site. Except as otherwise provided herein,
sidewalks are to be installed along all roadways within and adjacent to the site,
and design shall provide for crosswalks and underground drainage where
appropriate,

10.  The developer shall successfully negotiate a utility service agreement with the
City prior to permitting. No development permit related to the project will be
issued until water and sewer services are available to serve the property.

11.  All utilities serving this project shall be installed underground.

12.  The developer will be required to construct an on-site storm water drainage
control system that meets the design and performance standards as specified by
the technical requirements for open and closed basins in the Environmental
Resource Permitting Information Manual, latest edition, as published by the
Southwest Florida Water Management District.

13.  Prior to the City issuing a development order for this project, the developer will
be required to address and resolve all issues related to impacts of the proposed
development on public infrastructure and services. Concurrency deficiencies
shall be mitigated with agencies that provide and maintain infrastructure and
services that directly serve the proposed development.

CITY COUNCIY, ACTION: At the December 17, 2012, regular meeting, the City
Council initially voted not to approve the petition and subsequently vacated the
decision. Following the vacation of the initial decision, the City Council voted to
continue the petition to the March 4, 2013, meeting to allow the applicant time to
address transportation and drainage issues.

The applicant has provided additional information addressing the City Council’s
concerns. Specifically, a detailed stormwater management plan and a preliminary
transportation analysis was submitted. The detailed stormwater plan identifies
jurisdictional wetlands and delineates the location of project retention ponds. The
stormwater drainage plan is attached.

The preliminary transportation analysis is based on the maximum proposed 427 single-
family conventional dwelling units. According to the analysis, the project will generate
436 PM peak hour vehicle trips, resulting in Mondon Hill Road operating at less than 20
percent of its design capacity. The analysis also indicates that with the addition of the
traffic generated by the Majestic Oaks development at project build-out, Mondon Hill
Road will operate at approximately 58 percent of design capacity.
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Draft Ordinance No. 833



ORDINANCE NO. 833

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING A ZONING
CLASSIFICATION OF PDP (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
PROJECT), CONSISTING OF RESIDENTIAL USES FOR
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREIN; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. ZONING. That the following desctibed propetty in the City of Brooksville,
Flotida is hereby zoned as a Planned Development Project (PDP) with residential uses. Exhibit “A”
provides a graphic view of the property.

Evans Financial Services, Ltd
Parcel Key # 00356162. Legal Description:

The patt of the West % of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando County,
Florida, lying South of Mondon Hill Road and South of the ACL Railroad right-of-way,
LESS

Griggs Tract “A”

A portion of the Southwest Y1 of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Florida, being more patticulatly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 24; thence along
the South boundaty of the Southwest V4 of said Section 24, 5.89°53’12”E.., a distance of 20.94
feet to the Easterly maintained right-of-way of Jasmine Drive per Right-of-way Book 2, Pages
29 through 36, of the Public Records of Hernando County, Florida, for a POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Easterly maintained right-of-way of Jasmine Dtive per Right-
of-way Book 2, Pages 29 through 36 of the Public Records of Hernando County, Florida, the
following eight courses: 1) N.01°28’06”E., a distance of 165.62 feet; 2) N.01°46'14”W., a
distanice of 216.03 feet; 3) N.00°34’43”E., a distance of 314.11 feet; 4) N.00°15°28”E.., a distance
of 121.56 feet; 5) N.01°37°34”W., a distance of 154.81 feet; 6) N.00°14°43"E., a distance of
261.25 fect; 7) N.00°45’03”E.., a distance of 281.36 feet; 8) N.00°16’35”"W., a distance of 100.02
feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of the former Seaboard Coastline Railroad; thence along
the Southerly right-of-line of said former Seaboard Coastline Railroad, N.70°57°12"E., a
distance of 558.02 feet; thence 5.19°02°48”E., a distance of 18.00 feet; thence §.70°57°12"W., a
distance of 152.54 feet to a point of curvature; thence southwestetly 341.00 feet along the arc of
a cutve to the left, said curve having a radius of 502.96 feet, a centtal angle of 38°50°45”, and a
chord bearing and distance of S.51°31°50”W., 334.51 feet; thence N.57°53°33”W., a distance of
10.00 feet to a non-tangent point of curvature; thence southetly 286.44 fect along the arc of a
curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 512.96 feet, a central angle of 31°59°40”, and a
chord bearing and distance of S.16°06°37”°W., 282.73 feet; thence N.89°53°12"W., a distance of
8.58 feet; thence S.00°16’43”E.,, a distance of 680.07 feet; thence N.89°53°12”W., a distance of
10.00 feet; thence $.00°16’43”E., a distance of 575.37 feet to the South boundary of the
Southwest %4 of said Section 24; thence along the South boundary of the Southwest ¥4 of said
Section 24, N. 89°59°31”W., a distance of 29.07 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.
AND

Jasmine Drive Flood Plain Compensation Area
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A pottion of the Southwest Y of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Florida, being more particulatly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 24; thence along
the West boundary of the Southwest Y4 of said Section 24, N.00°16°43”"W., a distance of
1,604.16 feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of the former Seaboard Coastline Railroad;
thence along the Southetly right-of-way line of said former Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57°12”E., a distance of 508.71 feet; thence $.19°02°48” K., a distance of 18.00 feet for a
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue S.19°02°48”E., a distance of 124.00 feet; thence
N.70°57°12”E., a distance of 290.00 feet; thence S.19°02°48”E., a distance of 146.96 feet; thence
S.71°05°42”W., a distance of 264.14 feet; thence S.48°42°49”V., a distance of 108.73 feet;
thence S.22°26°51”W., a distance of 118.08 feet; thence 5.01°42°00”E., a distance of 59.96 feet;
thence 8.25°44°50”W ., a distance of 148.58 feet; thence 5.20°53’12”E., a distance of 184.63 feet;
thence S.12°18°29”W., a distance of 33.78 feet; thence 5.89°19°28”W., a distance of 167.34 feet;
thenice N.18°56’49”W., a distance of 177.73 feet; thence N.O7°24’58”\W,, a distance of 112.54
feet; thence N.38°33’26”E., a distance of 118.68 feet; thence NLOG°49°07W., a distance of 76.74
feet; thence N.50°30°38”W ., a distance of 81.67 feet; thence N.43°02°49”W., a distance of
117.63 feet to a non-tangent point of curvature; thence Northeasterly 354.03 feet along the arc
of a cutve to the right, said cutve having a radius of 502.96 feet, a central angle of 40°19°48”,
and a chord bearing and distance of N.50°47°18”E.,, 346.76 feet; thence N.70°57°12”E., a
distance of 71.54 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND

Griggs Tract “E”

A portion of the Southwest ' of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Florida, being mote particulatly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 24; thence along
the West boundary of the Southwest ¥ of said Section 24, N.00°16’43”W., a distance of
1,604.16 feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of the former Seaboard Coastline Railroad;
thence along the Southetly right-of way line of said former Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57*12”E.., a distance of 589.70 feet for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue
along the Southetly right-of-way line of said former Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57°12”E., a distance of 571.58 feet; thence 8.19°02°48”E., a distance of 80.00 feet; thence
S.70°57°12”W ., a distance of 571.58 feet; thence N.19°02°48”W., a distance of 80.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND

Grigps Tract “G”

A pottion of the Southwest V4 of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Florida, being mote patticulatly described as follows:

Fot a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest cotner of said Section 24; thence along
the West boundary of the Southwest ¥4 of said Section 24, N.00°16°43”W., a distance of
1,604.16 feet to the Southetly right-of-way line of the former Seaboatd Coastline Railroad,;
thence along the Southerly right-of-way line of said former Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57"12”E., a distance of 1,715.88 feet for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue
along the Southetly right-of-way line of said fotmer Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57"12”E., a distance of 54.51 feet to the Southetly maintained right-of-way of Mondon
Hill Road per Right-of-Way Book 2, Pages 29 through 36 of the Public Records of Hernando
County, Florida, and a non-tangent point of cutvature; thence along the Southetly maintained
right-of-way of said Mondon Hill Road the following two (2) courses: 1) Eastetly 292.17 feet
along the arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 22,888.32 feet, a central angle

20f5



of 00°43’53”, and a chord bearing and distance of $.79°52°38”E., 292.17 feet; 2) S.79°30°41”E.,
a distance of 48.73 feet; thence $.10°29°19”W, a distance of 14.42 feet; thence N.§1°37°18”W.,
a distance of 388.63 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND

Jasmine Drive Flood Plain Compensation Area 2

A portion of the Southwest /4 of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Flotida, being more particularly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 24; thence along
the West boundary of the Southwest Y4 of said Section 24, N.00°16°43”W., a distance of
1,604.16 feet to the Southetly right-of-way line of the former Seaboatd Coastline Railroad;
thence along the Southerly right-of-way line of said formet Seaboard Coastline Railroad,
N.70°57"12”E., a distance of 508.71 feet; thence 5.19°02’48”E., a distance of 18.00 feet for a
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence N,70°57’12”E., a distance of 81.00 feet; thence
S.19°02°48”E., a distance of 62.00 feet; thence N.70°57°12”E., a distance of 209.00 feet; thence
S.19°02’48”E., a distance of 62.00 feet; thence S70°57°12”W., a distance of 290.00 feet; thence
N.19°02°48”W., a distance of 124.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND

Jasmine Drive Flood Plain Compensation Area 3

A portion of the Southwest ¥ of Section 24, Township 22 South, Range 19 East, Hernando
County, Florida, being more particularly described as follows:

For a Point of Reference commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 24; thence along
the West boundary of the Southwest /4 of said Section 24, N.00°16°43”W., a distance of 920,47
feet; thence N.89°19°28”E., a distance of 60.00 feet for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence
N.00°16°43”W ., a distance of 334.23 feet; thence $.89°53'12”E., a distance of 8.58 feet to a non-
tangent point of curvature; thence Northetly 286.44 feet along the atc of a curve to the right,
said curve having a radius of 512.96 feet, a central angle of 31°59’40”, and a chord bearing and
distance of N.16°06°37”E., 282,73 feet; thence S.57°53'33”E., a distance of 10.00 feet; thence
S.31°21°56™W ., a distance of 13.03 feet; thence $.43°02°49”E.., a distance of 117.63 feet; thence
S.50°30°38”E.., a distance of 81.67 feet; thence S.06°49°07”E., a distance of 76.74 feet; thence
S.38°33°26”W ., a distance of 118.68 feet; thence S.07°24°58”E., a distance of 112.54 feet; thence
S.18°56°49”E., a distance of 177.73 feet; thence S.89°19°28”W/ ., a distance of 237.82 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Location: South of Mondon Hill Road and east of Jasmine Drive.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

The aforementioned property located within the City of Brooksville, Florida, is hereby assigned a zoning
classification of PDP (Planned Development Project) and the zoning map of the City of Brooksville
shall be amended accordingly. The Planned Development Project is subject to the following conditions:

1. Unless otherwise specified herein, the project shall be developed in accordance with the
Land Development Code as well as the rules and regulations of all applicable
government entities.

2. The project shalt may be allowed a maximum of 427 single-family conventional dwellings
focated in three development pods. However, additional _development

Jof5



standards/conditions may be imposed at the time a development order is applied for that

may reduce the maximum number of units permitted. The development pods shall be
generally located as shown on the conceptual site plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

Development standards for the project shall be as follows:

Minitum Lot Size: 5,000 square feet, with the exception that lots abutting the north,
south and east project boundaties shall be a minimum of 7,000 square feet.

Minimum Lot Width: 50 feet, with the exception that lots abutting the north, south and
east project boundaries shall be a minimum of 70 feet in width.

Front Yard Setback: 20 feet for primary facades, with street-facing garages set back a
minimum of 25 feet.

Rear Yard Setback: 20 feet.

Side Yard Setback: 5 feet for lots less than 7,000 square feet in size and 7.5 feet for lots
7,000 square feet and larger.

Maximum Building Height: 35 feet

The developer shall provide a buffer 20 feet in width along Mondon Hill Road. At the
southern edge of the buffer, a tan or almond PVC fence six feet in height shall be
installed. The fence shall contain brick, stone ot architecturally-finished columns a
minimum of two feet in width and spaced no more than 100 feet apart. In licu of the
sidewalk required from the Good Neighbor Trail to the project entrance, a multi-use
path eight feet in width shall be provided and shall be constructed in accotdance with
Hernando County’s standards for sidewalks. Except for those trees required for removal
to accommodate the fence, multi-use path and required sidewalk east of the project
entrance, all trees eight inches DBH and larger within the buffer shall be preserved. The
buffet area shall be platted as a sepatate patcel and shall be owned and maintained by
the Homeowners Association ot similar entity.

Mailboxes shall be located in community kiosks provided throughout the project.
Mailboxes on or adjacent to individual lots shall be prohibited.

A maximum of one access dtive to Jasmine Drive and one access drive to Mondon Hill
Road shall be petmitted.

Ptior to construction plan submittal, the developer shall provide to the Community
Development Department for review and approval a detailed PDP development site
plan depicting all the requirements specified herein as well as all appropriate and
applicable data and information,

The petitioner/developer shall obtain all permits and meet all applicable land
development regulations, fot construction or use of the propetty.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

The developer shall coordinate with the City Department of Public Works to propetly
plan for and address drainage and pedestrian improvements intetiot to and around the
petiteter of the site. Except as otherwise provided hetein, sidewalks ate to be installed
along all roadways within and adjacent to the site, and design shall provide for
ctosswalks and underground drainage where approptiate.

The developet shall successfully negotiate a utility setvice agreement with the City prior
to permitting. No development permit related to the project will be issued until water
and sewer services are available to serve the propetty.

All udilities serving this project shall be installed underground.

The developer will be required to construct an on-site storm water drainage control
systern that meets the design and performance standatds as specified by the technical
requirements for open and closed basins in the Enwironmental Resource Permitting
Information Mannal, latest edition, as published by the Southwest Florida Water
Management District.

Priot to the City issuing a development otder for this project, the developer will be
required to address and resolve all issues related to impacts of the proposed
development on public infrastructure and setvices. Concutrency deficiencies shall be
mitigated with agencies that provide and maintain infrastructure and services that
directly serve the proposed development.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The City Council does heteby find that the proposed zoning of
this property with a PDP designation will not be inconsistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and is
compatible with existing land uses in this area.

SECTION 3. EFEFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance and zoning of the property described
heteto shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Attest:

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

By:

Janice L. Peters, CMC, City Clerk Joseph E Johnston 111, Mayor

PASSED on First Reading November 5, 2012

NOTICE Published on_October 28, 2012 (Continued on 11/19/12: 12/17/12 to 3/4/13)

PASSED on Second & Final Reading

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE RELIANCE VOTE OF COUNCIL:
OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE ONLY: Besnardini
Bradbuin

&rne,— »e//ﬁ-éf(—&n/ \,év/' Hoha

Burnett

Fhomas 5. Hogan, The Hogan Law Firﬁ, LIC Johnston

City Attorney
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Planned Development Project Conceptual Site Plan
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SIDE OR REAR. YARD AN{ MUST BE AT LEAST FIVE (5} FEET FROM SIDE AND REAR PROPERTY LINE.

TYPICAL SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

NOT ) SCALD

LAND USE

BUFFER:

SITE DATA

APPLICANT:

EUVANS FINANCTAL SERVICES LTD
[700 PARK LN STE 3

IUPITER, FL 3358

PARCEL AREA = APPROX, 170.8 +/- ACRES
PARCEL KEY NUMBER! DO356162

LOCATED IN SECTIOBN 24, YTOWNSHIP 22 5., RANGE 14 &,
HERNANDOD COUNTY, FLORIDA.

CURRENT ZOMING: AG (LOUNTY}
PROPOSED ZONING: POPLSF)

FUTURE LAND LSE MAP DESICKATION:
SURLIRBAN RESIDENTIAL (CITY)

FLOOD INSURANEE RATE MAP (FIRM):
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 12053C02110
EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 2, 2012

Z0NE TAT, TR, AND TR,

PERIMETER BUDING SCTARCKS:

78 ALONG SGUTH AND FAST PROPERTY LINES
5 AMONG MONDON HILL ROAD AND JASMINE DKIVE

20" ALONG MONDON MiLL REAR

1] DRANAGE RETENTION AREAS SHOWN ARE PRELIMINARY. ALTUAL LOCATION AND S12E IS
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— MAVING JURISDICTICN RELATING 70 THIS PROJECT,
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE REZONING PETITION
Application for Public Hearing

Date: ‘“\w.l_?—;

Type all information. If you need any assistance, call the Community Development Department at (352) 544-3810,

APPLlCANT Euens F:nanclal Servlces le

Ma“lllngAddress 1700 Park-Lane Saouth, Sulte 3 ;Juprl-ar FL 33458

Daytime Telephone: (581) 743-0022  FAXNo: (561) 743-0024 E-Mail Address: nick@amaro-cpa.com

REPRESENTATIVE Coastal Englneerlng ASBDGIE[ES Inc
Malling Address: 066 Candlelight Blvd., Brooksville, FL 34501

Daytime Telephone: (352) 796-9423 FA)( No: [352) 799-8359 E-Mall Address' dlal:ey@coaslal-englneerlng com
PUBLIC CONTACT PERSON Donelcl Lecey, AlCF Sr Vlce President Coastal Englneermg Assoclates lnc
Daytime Telephone. same FAX No: same E-Marl Address. same

" WIll Enpert Wikness be utllized dusring the public hearlngs? no

Legal Description: Type below the complete {egal dessription of the proparty, inchuding strest address, if any, and the names of all owners. Include Section,

Township and Range; and If applicable, subdivision Name, Lot, Black, and Unit Number. Attach additional sheet if necessary
See aftached property description.

. Size of Arer Covered by Application: {70.8 acres

Highway and Street Boundaries: Viondon HIII Roed and Jasminge Road

currem Zonlng classlﬁ:etlun AG Hemando County

Rezoning Reauested: Regidential PDP with SF use

Proposed Use of Property: rggidential subdivision

Has a publl: hearlng heen held on thls property wlthm the past twelve months? nn

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This acknowledgment must be slgned In the presence nf a Notary Publle

i, Evans Financial SGN|CBS. Ltd/James D Evans , hereby state and affirm that all information submitted within this petitlon is in all respects

true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that:
| am the owner of the property coverad upder this application.

D | am the legal representative of the owner or lessee of the propenﬁ?escrlhed which s the sl ett matter of this application.

LM /'-' O A

a‘glgnature of Applicant or Representa:lve

STATE OF FLORIDA o

COUNTY OF HERNANDD ]

The foregolng instrument was acknowledged before me this 23 day of JU|y , 20 1 2 . by James D Evans
who is Eersongllx known to me or who has produced — &s identlfication.

Signature of Notary Publlc

PETITION s RZ




APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

Evans Financiat Services,Lid/James D Evans
, the owner(s) in fee simple of the below described real property hereby

appoint Coastal Enginesring Associates. [nc. as my (our) agent to file required petitions, sign required documents,
make representations as to issues of fact and to appear, as may be necessary, hefore the appropriate City of Brooksville
authority. My agent shall also have the authority to commit myself as owner to the necessary future performance
conditions as may be directed by the appropriate City authority as a condition of granting my petition.

{Insert Legal Description Below)

Property Descripfion is attached hereto

CITY OF BRODKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

1, N ICh0|as Amaro __, being duly sworn, hereby depose and say James D Evans
is the owner of the herein described property to-wit:

\ | A _
Stgnature A —? Nicholas Amaro _ July 23, 2012

Print Name

W i, NICHOLAS AMARO
S e COMMBSION  EEDBTETS
'w* £XPRES: August 6, 2015
RS Gonded Tor Buige! olaey Serdocs

L)
¢ op R

FAPLANNENG & ZONING COMMISSION'PLANNING & ZONIVG‘\.Forms“Rezoning Perition & Checklist 5-23~12 docx

PETITION # RZ
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EVANS TRACT
REZONING/MASTER PLAN NARRATIVE

General Description

The proposed project consists of approximately 170.8 acres and is located in Section 24, Township 22
South, Renge 19 E, of Hernando County. More particularly, it is south of and adjacent to Mondon Hill
Road as well as east of and adjacent to Jasmine Drive in the City of Brooksville. The proposed project is
currently zoned in Hernando County {AG) and is within the designation of Suburban Residential on the
City of Brooksville future land use map.

The applicant is requesting approval for the proposed zoning designation of Residential Planned
Development Project with single family use and the attached Master Plan consisting of 427 single family
units. This request is consistent with the 2.5 units per acre allowed within the Suburban Residential
comp plan designation. There are three housing pods shown on the proposed master plan and a land
use table proportioning the dwelling units among them.

Project entrances are proposed from Mondon Hill Road and Jasmine Drive. Jasmine Drive provides
signalized access to Cortez Blvd. (5.R.50), which connects to regional commercial areas to the west and |-
75 to the east. Additionally, The Good Neighbor Trail is in close proximity to the project.

The subject parcel is currently vacant and moderately to densely wooded with the majority of the
property comprised of a hardwood ~ conifer mixed land use cover. Several isolated wetlands located
within the western and southern portions of the property are depicted on the master plan, A small area
within the western portion of the subject property falls with the 100 year floodzone. Development in
wetlands and floodzones has been avoided, An application for a Conceptual Environmental Resource
Permit {ERP) has been submitted to the Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD) for
project stormwater retention.

Surrounding land uses include scattered small-acreage residential development to the west and
northwest, the approved Majestic Oaks development to the northeast, vacant agricultural properties to
the east and the Wesleyzan Village retirement development to the south of the subject site.

The enclosed rezoning master plan, while conceptual, depicts areas where single family residential
development will occur, along with portions of the property which will remain as open space, either as
protected areas {wetlands) or for stormwater management. The two access points are consistent with
those discussed during the comprehensive plan approval process and coordinated with the County
during the improvement of Jasmine Drive. A combination of wetlands, drainage and open space will
provide significant buffering to the west, northwest and south.

Proposed building setbacks are as follows:

Front: 25
Side: 5
Rear: 15



A.

F.

Preliminary Lavout

The proposed master plan has been included herewith.

Draft of Protective Covenants

A copy of the draft protective covenants will be provided during the platting process.

Preliminary Engineering Renort

Topography — Contours have been included on the proposed rezoning master plan.
Topographic elevations on the site range from a low of approximately 90 feet m.s.l. to a high of
approximately 120 feet m.s.|.

Flood Plain - According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood
insurance Rate Map community panel 12053C0211D effective date 02/02/12, the majority of
the subject property falls within Zone C, indicating areas of minimal fliooding. Portions of the
western and southern boundary fall within Zone A or AE, defined as areas subject to inundation
during the 100-year storm event. Development in these areas has been aveided.

Soils = The USDA Hernando County Soit Survey indicates that a total of nine (9) soil types exist
on the property; they include: Blichton loamy fine sand, 0 to 2 percent slopes, Blichton loamy
fine sand, 2 to 5 percent slopes, Flemington fine sandy lcam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, Flemington
fine sandy loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes, Kendrick fine sand, O to 5 percent slopes, Micanopy
loamy fine sand, 2 to 5 percent slopes, Nobleton fine sand, 0 to 5 percent slopes, Sparr fine
sand, 0 to 5 percent slopes, and Wauchula fine sand, O to 5 percent slopes.

Drainage - The subject property lies within the northern perimeter of the Bystre Lake basin. An
application for a Conceptual Environmental Resource Permit {(ERP) has been submitted to the
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD) for stormwater management
improvements for the site. Their rules require the development of on-site retention and/or
detention facilities in order to provide reasonable assurances that both volume and water
quality standards are met. SWFWMD's ERP rules also address the protection of wetlands and
groundwater resources to ensure they are not negatively affected by proposed deveiopment.
The proposed property is well suited for the proposed residential development given its soit
types, the City’s wetlands protection policies and District surface water management regulatory
criteria. '

Historlcal/archaeological - A cultural resources assessment survey of the subject site was
previously completed. The results of the analysis identified one aboriginal lithic scatter site and
one historic period site. Both sites were further evaluated to determine their eligibility for
potential listing on the National Register of Historic Places (NHRP). it was determined that the
two sites did not warrant eligibitity for listing on the NRHP and that development of the
property would have no effect on any cultural resources that are listed, determined eligible or
considered potentially eligible for listing in the NRHP

Environmentai ~

1) The subject property is undeveioped and vacant. No buildings or structures were
observed on the property.

2) The property is moderately to densely wooded with the majority of the property
comprised of a hardwood — conifer mixed land use cover. The predominant tree species



v,

vl

VL.

3)

4)

5)

observed among this cover include slash pine, laurel oak, and sweetgum with minor
associations of southern magnolia, pignut hickory, live oak, eastern red cedar, cabbage
palm, and red muiberry present throughout. Groundcover, when present, consists of
American beautyberry, sparkleberry, viburnum, muscadine, poison ivy, panic grass, and
COgOnN grass. '

Several wetlands are located on the property and have been shown on the proposed
master plan. Typical vegetation present among the farested wetlands includes sweetgum,
Chinese tallow, red maple, eim, blackgum, buttonbush, Carolina willow, dwarf paimetto,
alligator weed, and various sedges.

Some Specimen and majestic sized trees were observed on the property during the site
visit. These will be properly identified and located on construction plans and handied in
conformance with City of Brooksville regulations.

Four {4) active gopher tortoise burrows were observed within the open, northern interior
portions of the subject property. Permitting through the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Commission will be required for the preservation andfor relocation of the gophet
tortoises prior to development of the property. No other listed animal or plant species
were noted.

Proposed Development Schedule
A proposed development schedule has not yet been determined.

Adeguate Access Analysis
Access is gained to the property from Mondon Hill Road and Jasmine Drive.

Water Supply and Sewage Disposal Plans

The proposed project is within the City of Brooksville Service area for both potable water and
sanitary sewer,

Development of Regional Impact Statement
The proposed project is below the DRI threshold,



Attachment 6

Planned Development Project

Post-development Drainage Map
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Steven Gouldman

From: Don Lacey [dlacey@coastal-engineering.com]

Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2013 4:01 PM

To: Bill Geiger; Steven Gouldman

Subject: FW: Evans-Griggs

Attachments: 09075 Evans-Griggs Parcel SWFWMD Conceptual ERP Drainage Map.pdf; 09075-rezaning-

REV-021913 RZ (1).pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro.pdf

Bill & Steve,

As a follow-up to our discussion, Coastal is planning to address three items at the continued hearing date on March 4™,
The items are traffic, drainage, traffic and the proposed approval conditions.

DRAINAGE

Cliff will take some time at the March 4™ hearing to describe the efforts Coastal undertook in researching,
analyzing and conceptually designing a stormwater management system for the Griggs parcel. Using the two
exhibits attached to this email, he will be able to show the Council how stormwater is being managed on the
property and why the proposed development will not have a negative impact on abutting parcels.

TRAFFIC

I plan to take a few minutes to discuss the available capacity of the two roads accessed by the proposed
project and that development on site will have minimal impact on that capacity, particularly as it relates to
Mondon Hill Road. Cliff will also be available to respond to any road design issues that may arise.

I have provided a short summary of the traffic capacity analysis below if you or Steve would like to review it
prior to the hearing — or provide it to the Council members.

Project Trip Generation = 436 trips (279 entering, 157 exiting) during the PM Peak Hour of Adjacent
Street Traffic. This calculation is arrived at by taking the number of dwelling units (427) multiplied by the
generation rate for single family housing (1.02 trips/dwelling unit according to the Institute of
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual 8" Edition, Code 210). 64% of the traffic would be
entering the praoject, while 36% would be exiting.

Project traffic distribution is estimate to be as follows:

60% enter/exit from Jasmine southbound = 261 PM Peak Hour trips
10% enter/exit from Jasmine northbound = 44 PM Peak Hour trips
20% enter/exit from Mondon Hill westbound = 87 PM Peak Hour trips
10% enter/exit from Mondon Hill eastbound = 44 PM Peak Hour trips

With the signalized intersection at Jasmine and SR 50 and most attractions (retail, employment, services,
etc.) lying to the west, the great majority of the project traffic will likely utilize the Jasmine entrance.

Impact of Project Traffic



Jasmine south existing PM Peak Hour {312) plus project (261) = 573 PM Peak Hours trip or 0,281
Volume/Capacity Ratio

Jasmine north existing PM Peak Hour {312) plus project (44) = 356 PM Peak Hour trips or 0.175
Volume/Capacity Ratio

Maondon Hill west existing PM Peak Hour (267) plus project {87) = 354 PM Peak Hour trips or 0.177
Volume/Capacity Ratio

Mondon Hill east existing PM Peak Hour (267) plus project (44) =311 PM Peak Hour trips or 0.156
Volume/Capacity Ratio

Conclusions

With the project at full buildout, Mondon Hill Road traffic would still be less than 20% of its design
capacity.

Even if you added Majestic Oaks at buildout and took 80% of its traffic westbound on Mondon Hill, the
traffic on Mondon Hill between Majestic Oaks and Jasmine would still be less than 58% of design
capacity.

PROPOSED APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Since there was some Council discussion on whether to apply detailed conditions (# 3 - # 7) at this juncture in
the land use approval process, we will discuss addressing that detail in the provision of a PDP site
development plan for Council review prior to construction plans.

| will call you in the morning to discuss this.

Thanks,

Don Lacey



AGENDA ITEM NO. _£=L{4).

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE é’/ 5%3
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE
BROOKSVILLE, FL 34601

MINUTES
June 3, 2013 7:00 PM.

Brooksville City Council met in regular session with Mayor Lara Bradburn, Vice Mayor Kevin
Hohn, Council Members Frankie Burnett and Joseph E. Johnston, ITI present. Also ptesent were
James Fisher., City Attorney; T. Jennene Notman-Vacha, City Manager; Janice L. Peters, City Clerk;

Bill Geiget, Community Development Director; Richard Radacky, Director of Public Works; and
Tim Mossgrove, Fire Chief. Council Member Joe Bernardini was not in attendance.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bradburn, followed by an invocation and Pledge of
Allegiance.

CERTIFICATES, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Certificate of Completion
Presentation of Certification of Completion to Vice Mayor Hohn for completion of the

Advanced Institute of Elected Municipal Officials.

Mayor Bradburn reviewed the certification, reading the letter submitted by Lynn Tipton of
the Florida League of Cities, and presented the Certification of Completion to Vice Mayor
Hohn. Vice Mayor Hohn felt the information learned at the institute to be invaluable.

Mayor Bradburn mentioned that Fire Chief Mossgroves daughter and Council Member
Bernardini’s granddaughter is graduating tonight and congratulated them, as did all of
Council.

CITIZEN INPUT

Mayor Bradburn asked for public input; there was none.

CONSENT AGENDA

Surplus

Consideration to sutplus items determined to be obsolete, inoperable ot no longer useful.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member johnston and seconded by Council Member Burnett
for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 4-0.

REGULAR AGENDA

Resolution 2013-07 - Electronic Filing of Campaign Finance Reports
Consideration of Resolution implementing provisions of Florida Statutes Secton

106.07(2)(a)2 regarding electronic filing of campaign finance reports.

lof 3



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - JUNE 3, 2013

Mayor Bradburn distributed verbiage for Council consideration to add to the resolution as
follows:

If a candidate believes a hardship exists whereby electronic filing is not available due
to lack of computer equipment or internet access, the candidate must notify the City
Clerk in wrting at least seven days prior to the filing deadline. The City, in
conjunction with the Supervisor of Elections, will make a computer available during
regular business hours to facilitate the electronic filing of campaign reports.

City Clerk Peters reviewed that this resolution is the result of a request by the Supervisor of
Elections to require electronic filing of campaign finance reports by candidates for the City
of Brooksville. She advised it is not requited but will help the Supervisor of Elections office
to run more efficiently, saving time and money.

Mayor Bradburn reviewed the vetbiage submitted, which was briefly discussed.

Council Member Johnston recommended the verbiage be added under Section 5, changing
the title from Alternative Procedure to Alternative Procedures, making the current verbiage
there Sub-patagraph A and the added verbiage B. Brief discussion of the cutrent process
ensued.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Johnston and seconded by Vice Mayor Hohn fot
approval of Resolution No. 2013-07 as amended.

City Clerk Peters read Resolution No. 2013-07 by title, as follows:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA,
IMPLEMENTING THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
106.07(2)(a)2., FLORIDA  STATUTES, REQUIRING
ELECTRONIC FILING OF CAMPAIGN FINANCE REPORTS
OF LOCAL CANDIDATES AND POLITICAL COMMITTEES;
ESTABLISHING AN ELECTRONIC FILING SYSTEM AND
REQUIRING A  WRITTEN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
REGARDING CERTAIN MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE
ELECTRONIC FILING SYSTEM.

Motion carried 4-0 upon roll call vote, as follows:

Council Member Bernardini  Absent

Council Member Butnett Aye
Council Member Johnston =~ Aye
Vice Mayor Hohn Aye
Mayor Bradburn Aye

CITIZEN INPUT

Mayor Bradburn asked for public input.

2of 3



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - JUNE 3, 2013

Kojack Burnett
He congratulated Vice Mayor Hohn on completion of his institute and congratulated

Council Member Bernardini and Fire Chief Mossgrove on the graduation of their family
members.

ITEMS BY COUNCIL

Frankie Burnett, Council Member

Birthday Wishes & Congratulations
Council Member Burnett wished his brother Kojack a FHappy Birthday and also

congratulated all County High School graduates and those graduating from higher education
as well.

Staff Recognition
As always, Council Member Bernardini thanked the City Manager and staff for diligently

working to keep the image and perception of the City up.

Jim Fisher, City Attorney

Graduation
Attorney Fisher advised that his son graduated High School on Saturday as well with a bright
futures scholarship to the University of Flotida.

Joseph E. Johnston, ITI, Council Member
June 17 Meeting

Council Member Johnston advised he will not be in attendance at the next meeting.

Kevin Hohn, Vice Mayor

15t Tee Tournament
Vice Mayor Hohn advised the final tally from the 1 Tee Toutnament was around $11,000.

Lara Bradburn, Mayor

Fluotidation Filtration

Mayor Bradburn advised that upon further research, she found that costs for filtration that
will eliminate fluoride ions from the water is upwards of $3-5,000 with an annual cost of
around $600 for replacement filters.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to bring before Council, the meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

/CL”
ity Cl
Attest;
Mayor.
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AGENDA [TEM NO. _ £

| L5407

CONSENT AGENDA
MEMORANDUM

SUBJECT: BOOM/CRANE UNIT PURCHASE

DATE: July 22, 2013

GENERAL SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: The Utilities Division of the Public Works
Department is requesting Council approval to purchase a boom/crane unit. This
equipment is needed to remove and service large motors from wastewater lift/pump
stations, wells and treatment plants. Some of the City’s motors weigh from 1 1/2 to 2
tons. The unit can also be used by line repair crews to lift valves, fire hydrants, large
pipes, and structures in place for installation and repair.

The Utilities Division has rented a boom/crane unit 16 times in the last year, in the total
amount of $6,357. This is an average cost of approximately $400 per event. Scheduling
has sometimes been difficult to obtain and at times critical. Staff believes that the
availability of cranes that we currently use will be more difficult to obtain as the
economy rebounds. The boom/crane unit will also allow personnel to do heavy lifting
for jobs where backhoes are currently used.

In order to stay within the budgeted amount of $110,000, a request for bids for new and
used equipment was solicited. Staff requested bids on a minimum boom length of 60
feet and a lifting range of 16-20 tons at 5 feet from the pivot. The bid was advertised on
June 19, 2013, and sealed bids were opened on July 3, 2013.

The two (2) bids received are as follows:

Vendor Unit Miles Warrantee Summary | Bid Price
New, 2013 .
Altec Freightliner 20 Cra}ne Unit 1.year . $172,101
Chassis-2 year drive train
w/Altec Crane
Ring Power Used, 2008 Ford 12 600 Crane Unit -30 days $107,000
& w/Manitex Crane 3 Chassis-1 year drive train 7

The recommended boom/crane unit is the used 2008 unit with 13,000 miles bid by
Ring Power Corporation. It was used as a rental boom/crane unit in Ring Power’s
construction fleet. Boom/crane units are very specialized units and factory authorized
rental dealers are held to strict Occupational Safety and Health Act Standards for annual
inspections and maintenance. The liability for poorly maintained lifting equipment is

Page 1 of 2



extreme, especially when the units are part of an active rental fleet. It is believed a low-
mileage rental-fleet unit would be in excellent condition and at the best price for the

City.

Staff has inspected the Ring Power Corporation’s boom/crane unit and it appears to be
in excellent working order. Staff is of the opinion that the Ring Power boom/crane is
the most economical unit for the City’s anticipated usage. Ring Power Corporation is
providing a one (1) year warranty on the chassis and a 30-day warranty on the crane.

BUDGET IMPACT: $110,000 was budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget from Line
Item Account Number 401-000-166-19037. A used unit is available from Ring Power
Corporation (rental fleet) for $107,000.

LEGAL REVIEW: Pursuant to the City’s Charter, Article V, Section 5.04, Competitive
Bidding, the City Council is authorized to approve the award for procurement of
personal property or services via the bid process within the statutory categories and
limits established pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 287.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council approve the
purchase of the used boom/crane unit from Ring Power Corporation, in the amount of
$107,000.

Attachments: 1. Altec Bid
2. Ring Power Bid
3. Picture of recommended purchase

Page 2 of 2
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BID/CERTIFICATION FORM
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
16-20 TON BOOM TRUCK

BID NO.: UD2013-03

BIDDERS CERTIFICATION TO THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE:

The undersigned warrants that: (A) this Bid is submitted in response to, and is in compliance with, all terms
and conditions applicable thereto as set forth in the Advertisement, General Instructions and Conditions,
Special Instructions and Conditions, Bid/Certification Forms and (if any), the Minimum Technical
Specifications, Plans, Addendum, Exhibits, Agreement, Bonds and Insurance requirements, each of which
has been carefully examined, (B) Bidder or Bidder’s representative has made such investigation as is
necessary to determine the character and extent of the work and their capability to perform the work, and
(C) agrees that if the Bid is accepted by the City, Bidder will provide the necessary labor, materials,
machinery, equipment, tools or apparatus, and perform all the work or services required to complete the
assignment and/or contract within the time specified according to the requirements of the City as herein and
hereinafter set forth, and (D) he/she is authorized to legally execute binding contracts for and on behalf of

the Bidder.

Please check one:

LJ Bidder declares that the only person, persons, company or parties interested in this Bid are named
in the Bid.
] Bidder, or one or mote of bidder’s officers, principals, or any owner of more than 5% in or of

bidder, or members of their immediate families: (A) have a financial interest in another company,
project, or property that could benefit financially from this proposed project; and/or (B) another
individual or business will be compensated by (or on behalf of bidder) if bidder is selected by the
City to bid the requested services. (Attach a detailed explanation for either.)

Bid Bond - If the Bid is accepted by the City, it will become a binding contract on both parties. If a Bid
Bond or Cashier’s Check/Certified Check is required, it shall be submitted with the Bid. If the undersigned
shall fail to deliver or perform, or if applicable, execute a Contract as stated herein, then the City may, at its
option, determine that the undersigned has abandoned the Award/Contract, and thereupon such Bid and/or
Award shall be null and void, and any Cashier’s Check/Certified Check or Bond accompanying this Bid
shall be forfeited to and become the property of the City, and the full amount of said check, or if a Bid Bond,
the full amount of such bond, shall be paid to the City as partial liquidated damages; otherwise, any Bond or
Cashier’s Check/Certified Check accompanying this Bid shall be returned to the undersigned within 30
calendar days from the date of Award, or if provisions for a Notice to Proceed are included, from the date of

the Notice to Proceed.

Bidder proposes and agrees to provide all materials, services or equipment required for the City Of
Brooksville 16-20 Ton Boom Truck Bid No, UD2013-03 as described in the Proposal Questionnaire for the

Total Bid Sum of One hundred and seventy two thousand one hundred and oneDollars &ﬁﬁ 172:101:00% . B
*FET NOT Included. TFthe City is nof xempt, will be applied to the final price.

Number of days from date of the Purchase Order will be required for the delivery of unit?
Crane available on 7/30/13

{Maximum 40 Calendar Days

The City reserves the right to accept any or all prices itemized in any combination that best serves the
interests of the City. The City further reserves the right to accept or reject any of the components of this Bid,

including alternates.

BIDDER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE FOLLOWING ADDENDUMS: _ None
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Name of Bidder; _Alec Industries In¢.

Business structure: (x) Corporation, { ) Partnership, { ) Individual, ( ) Other:

If a Partnership:

Name(s) of Partnen(s):

If a Corporation: __Altec Industries Inc,

Incorporated in State of: _Alabama Date of Incorporation; __1957

Business Address: 325 South Center Drive

City: Daleville State VA Zip 24083

Telephone Number: (540 866-2808 Fax{ )

Subrmitted By:
(Print)
Title: Téchnical Saies and Suppon

Signature: 3\ ¥ ¥ 4

2l i

ATTEST: / ‘Z

7 Secretary i

7 :
By: Co\m et \D . \"\\}w\iﬁ_ N
Print Name
Affix Corporate Seal
(if Corporation)
State of Florida nguuq
County of Bot ofeuit
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 1stday of July , 20 13by Daisy Rodriguez .
who is personally known to me or who presented as identification, and who (did) (did not) take
an oath.
Wttt "
SR H00g,
- = I\I’JTAHY
_ AN Sheirie Yhoarma A 3 o’?" ¢ __euBLC
[Signature of Notary Public] [Printed, typed or stamped name of Notary P&by‘c) REG. #71 04075 3 Lk
NN
' ‘ ol LA T ‘;b oN ; S
% ) Buﬂ.ig:" (3 é
W
*

E'u.ll‘\\)\
Hippnsnn

NOTE: BIDS MAY BE REJECTED IF ALL DOCUMENTS ARE NOT COMPLETE AND EXEC
THE NUMBER OF COFPIES SPECIFIED/REQUESTED OF EACH ARE NOT SUBMITTED Mmg'ﬂ

BID.
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Altec, inc,
@

July 1, 2013
Our 84th Year
Bill To:
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
201 HOWELL AVE 201 HOWELL AVE
BROOKSVILLE, FL 34601-2041 BROOKSVILLE, FL 34601-2041
us United States
Altec Quotation Number 227743 -1 Altec Sales Order(s):
Account Manager: Bud Welch
Inside Sales Rep: Daisy Rodriguez
ltem Description Qty
Unit
1. Altec Model AC18-70B, Hydraulic Teiescopic Crane, is built in accordance to ALTEC'S 1
standard specifications and includes the following features
A. The features listed below are standard and may not reflect customers
requirements:
B. 18 Ton (16.3 t) Maximum Lifting Capacity
C. 70 Foot {21.3 m) 3-Section Proportional Boorn
D. 80 Foot {24.4 m) Maximum Sheave Height
E. Standard features provided with AC18:
F.  Outrigger Boom Interlock System: Helps prevent operator from using unit until ali
outriggers are properly proportioned,
G.  Outrigger Motion Alarm: Provides audible alarm when any of the outriggers are in
motion. :
H. Emergency Stop at Operator Controls
. Anti-Two Block Device
J.  Winch: 12,000 pound (5443 kg) with variable 2-speed control, obtained through
the addition of second pump flow. Movement of the contrel lever through its full
range, smoothly changes the winch speed from O to 147 feet/minute for the first
pump, and then to 228 fpm overall (3rd layer).
K. 7 Ton (6.4 t) capacity rating, top swivel down haul ball and hook, weighs 105
pounds (48 kg)
L. Swing Drive with double planetary gearbox with spring applied, hydraulically
released brake
M. Hydraulic System: Full pressure with hydraulic pilot operated control valves at
each control station
N.  Outrigger Conirols: One control panel, located at each rear corner of tailshelf
Front outrigger, rear outrigger and optional Load BallAWinch Stow on left, and Front
Outrigger and Rear Cutrigger on right.
O. Reserveir: 70 Gallon (265 ) reservoir, mounted on side of chassis frame. Includes
filters, shut-off valve in suction line, filter bypass valve and plumbing on unit.
P. Rotation: 180 Degree rotation with rated capacity load chart for work zone over
rear
Q. Subframe: Ties the front and rear outriggers together
R. Boom Head Sheave Assembly: Boom Head Sheave assembly with 1 lower

sheave. A Hanger Block Assembly is provided with optional 2 sheave load blocks
to achieve 3 or 4 parts of line.

We Wish To Thank You For Giving Us The Pleasure
And Opportunity of Serving You

Price
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Altec, Inc.

10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

cqw

N<x =<

Description

Boom Rest, H-type

Engine Start/Stop switch on control panel

Standard Front and Rear Outriggers: Primary, Pivoting A-Frame type attached to
pedestal, with 18.7 foot (5.7 m) spread. Auxiliary, Modified A-Frame type, with 10.1
foot (3.1 m) spread.

ASME B30.5: Conformance with Mobile Crane Standard

Manuais: Two (2) Operators and two (2) Maintenance/ Parts manuals, Basic
Operational DVD for operator familiarization

Basic Operation Video to help familiarize the operator

Paint: Altec White utilizing the Altec 2-Stage Powder Coat Paint Process.

Altec LMAP (Load Moment Area Protection system) includes: removable weather
resistant display, rated capacity limiter, boom length display, angle display, load on
hook display, percent of rated capacity display, electronic working area definition,
Operator audible alarm set points for boom angle, length, and rotational position

Heavy Lift

Non-continuous 370 degrees, front cutrigger required

Dual Contral Station, Walk Through-Style

12k Single Speed Winch with Burst of Speed, Installed

70 Gallon Reservoir, installed

Platform Not Requested

Jib - 40 feet (12.2 m) 2-Piece telescopic, 24 feet (7.3 m) retracted

Upper Booms Painted Black

Primary, Pivoting A-Frame type attached to pedestal, with 18.7 foot (5.7 m) spread,
installed

Underframe A-Frame Auxitiary Outriggers

Front Bumper Qutrigger, with efeclrical switch control on outrigger, required for 360
degree working capacity

ATB Switch Cover

LMt Reel Tree Guard

Foot Throttles Installed at Control Stations

Greer Load Moment Indicator With Area Protection

Left Hand Joystick Control/Right Hand Lever Controls (Standard for ail Models}
Winch Disable Switch

Boom Winch Stow Switch

We Wish To Thank You Far Giving Us The Pleasure
And Opportunity of Serving You

Price

Page 2 of 7



ARec, Inc.

— e ———
item Description Oty Price
20. No Radio Remote Requested 1
21.  Drum Rotation indicator, installed 1
22.  Powder coat unit Altec White. 1
23. Extended Portions Of Qutriggers Painted Black (Standard) 1
Unit & Hydraulic Acc.

24, 240 Feet (73.2 m) of 9/16 (14.3 mm) inch diameter rotation resistant wire rope with 178 1

pound non-swivel, down haul ball and hook, 7 ton capacity rating.
25. AC18 Subbase For A-Frame Outriggers 1
26.  HVI-22 Hydraulic Oil {Standard}. 90
27.  Standard Pump For PTO 1
28.  Air Shift PTO, installed 1
29.  Electric Over Hydraulic Outrigger Gontrols - Rocker Switches Installed On Tailshelf, Each 1

Side (Behind Gab/Rear Mount)

Body

30.  Flat Bed, steel construction, 19.5 feet (5.9 m) long, for B and R mounts both, with stake 1

pockets.

Body Accessories
31.  Standard Boom Rest, removable, installed behind cab 1
Body and Chassis Accessoties

32. Standard Mud Flap Installation; installed behind rear wheels 1
33. Access Step Flatbed Access Ladder From Ground With Grab Handles - Installed Rear Of 1

Flatbed, Towards CS
34. T-125 Style Pintle Hitch {30,000 LB MGTW with 6,000 LB MVL) 1
35.  Set Of D-Rings for Trailer Safety Chain, installed one each side of towing device mount. 1
36. Glad Hands At Rear, Straight Type 1
37. Outrigger Pad, 24" x 24" x 3", Wood With Rope Handle 5

We Wish To Thank You For Giving Us The Pleasure page 3 of 7
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Altec, Inc.

- w—
Item Desctiption Oty Price
38.  Custom OQutrigger Pad Holder Qutrigger pad holder, to store 3 pads SS, 2 pads CS. With 2
Pendulum Retainer
39. Wheel Chocks, Rubber with Metal Hairpin Style Handle, 8.75" L X 7.75" W X 5.00" H 1

(Pair)
40. Customn Wheel Chock Holders 1 each side under flatbed
41. 5 LB Fire Extinguisher With Light Duty Bracket, Installed
42,  Triangular Reflector Kit, Installed
43.  Triangular Reflector Kit, Shipped Loose
44,  Vinyl manual pouch for storage of ali operator and parts manuals

45, Underride Protection - Standard

Electrical Accessories

46. FMVSS 108 Kit (Incandescent), installed
47.  Dual Tone Back-Up With Outrigger Motion Alarm
48. PTO Hour Meter, Reund With 10,000 Hour Display

49.  7-Way Trailer Receptacie (Pin Type) Installed At Rear

50. Relocate Trailer Receptacle Supplied With Chassis 7-Pin 1
51. Electric Trailer Brake Controller (Kelsey Hayes #81741) 1
52, PDM Module, installed on back wall of cab/ chassis 1
Installation
53.  Manual Kit (Includes (2) Operators Manuals, {2} Parts and Maintnance Manuals, (1) 1
Operational and Safety DVD
Finishing Details
54. Focus Factory Build 1
55.  Powder Coat Unit Altec White 1
56.  Altec Standard; Components mounted below frame rail shall be coated black by Altec. i.e. 1

step bumpers, steps, frame extension, pintle hook mount, deck bumper mounts, D-rings,
receiver tubes, accessory mounts, light brackets, under-ride protection, etc.Components
mounted to under side of body shall be coated black by Altec. i.e. Wheel chock holders,

mud flap brackets, pad carriers, boxes, lighting brackets, steps, and ladders,

We Wish To Thank You For Giving Us The Pleasure

And Opportunity of Serving You Page 4 of 7



ISLIEC.

ltem

57.

59.
60.

61.

62.
63.
64,
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.
70.
71.
72,
73.
74.

75.

76.
77.
78.

79.

Altec, Inc.
— e —————
Description Oty Price
Apply Non-Skid Paint io all walking surfaces 1
English Safsty And Instructional Decails 1
Vehicle Helght Placard - Installed In Cab 1
Stability test unit according to ANSI requirements. 1
Fina) Assembly 1
Chassis

Chassis 1
Altec Supplied Chassis 1
2013 Model Year 1
Chassis Make Freightliner M2-106 1
Chassis Color - White 1
Chassis Gab To Axle Length 169" Clear CT i
Chassis Wheelbase Length 239" 1
GVWR 54,600 LBS 1
14,600 LBs Front Axle Rating 1
40,000 LBs Rear Axle Rating 1
Cummins ISC 1
330 HP Engine Rating 1
Transmission EATON FULLER FR-112108 1
Single Vertical Exhaust With Horizontal Muffler Right Hand Exhaust Single Horizontal, RH 1
Side Of Cab

Air Brakes 1
Non-CARB Compliant Idle Engine Shut-Down 1
6x4 Tandem Axle 1
Conventional Cab 1

We Wish To Thank You Fer Giving Us The Pleasure page 5 of 7
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Altec, Inc.

- -
ltem Description Gty Price
Additional Pricing
80. Federal Excise Tax ltem 1
81.  Stock Unit L
Miscellaneous
82. Standard Altec Warranty One (1) year parts warranty One (1) year labor warranty Ninety 1
(90) days warranty for travel charges Limited Lifetime Structural Warranty
83. 5 Year Structural Warranty ILO Limited Lifetime 1

Total 172,101.00

Altec Industries, Inc.

Daisy Rodriguez

Notes:
1

Altec Standard Warranty:
One (1) year parts warranty.
One (i) year labor warranty.

Ninety (90) days warranty for travel charges.

Warranty on structural integrity of the following major components is to be warranted for so long as the initial
purchaser owns the product: Booms, boom articulation links, hydraulic cylinder structures, outrigger
weldments, pedestals, subbases and turntables.

Bidder is to supply a self-directed, computer based training (CBT} program. This program will provide basic
instruction in the safe operation of this aerial device. This program will also include and explain ANSI and

OSHA requirements related to the proper use and operation of this unit.

Altec offers its standard limited warranty with the Altec supplied components which make up the Altec Unit
and its installation, but expressly disclaims any and all warranties, liabilities, and responsibilities, including
any implied warranties of fithess for a particular purpose and merchantability, for any customer supplied parts
Unless ctherwise noted, all measurements used in this quote are based on a 40 inch {1016mm) chassis
frame height and standard cab height for standard configurations.

F.O.B. - Destination

Changes made to this order may affect whether or not this vehicle is subject to F.E.T. A revisw will be made
at the time of invoicing and any applicable F.E.T. will be added to the invoice amount.

Price does not reflect any local, state or Federal Excise Taxes (F.E.T). The quote also does not refiect any

We Wish To Thank You For Giving Us The Plsasurg
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' ‘ml Am Altec, Inc.
R L

12
13

local title or licensing fees. All appropriate taxes will be added to the final price in accordance with regulations

in effect at time of invoicing.
Terms: If chassis is ordered through ALTEC industries, Inc. the chassis payment is due upon receipt of the

chassis at ALTEC Industries, inc. Balance is due NET 30 days after receipt of completed unit.

Interest charge of 1/2% per month to be added for late payment.

Delivery: Available Immediately days after receipt of order PROVIDING:

A. Order is received within 14 days from the date of the quote. If initial timeframe expires, please contact

your Altec representative for an updated delivery commitment.
B. Chassis is received a minimum of sixty (60) days before scheduled delivery.

C. Customer approval drawings are returned by requested date.
D. Customer supplied accessories are received by date necessary for compliance with scheduled delivery.

E. Customer expectations are accurately captured prior to releasing the order. Unexpected additions or
changes made at a custormer inspection will delay the delivery of the vehicle.

Trade-in offer is cantingent upon equipment being maintained to DOT (Department of Transportation)
operating and safety standards. This will include, but not limited to tires, lights, brakes, glass, etc. Ifa
trade-in is not maintained to DOT standards, additional transportation expenses will apply and could be

invoiced separately.

All equipment, i.e., jibs, winches, pintle hooks, trailer connectors, eic., are to remain with the vehicle unless
otherwise agreed upon in writing by both parties. Altec Industries reserves the right to re-negotiate its

trade-in offer if these conditions are not met,

Custamer may exercise the option to rescind this agreement in writing within sixly (60) days after receipt of
purchase order. After that time Altec Industries will expect receipt of trade-in vehicle upon delivery of new
equipment as part of the terms of the purchase order.

Titles for trade-in equipment should be given to the appropriate Altec Sales associate or forwarded to Altec
Nueco at address 1730 Vanderbilt Road, Birmingham, AL 35234,

This quotation is valid until SEP 09, 2013. After this date, please contact Altec Industries, Inc. for a possible

extension.

After the initial warranty period, Altec Industries, Inc. offers mobile service units, in-shop service and same
day parts shipments on most parts from service locations nationwide at an additional compstitive labor and
parts rate. Call 877-GC-ALTEC for all of your Parts and Service needs.

Please email Altec Capital at finance @altec.com or call 888-408-8148 for a lease quote today.

Please direct all questions to Bud Welch.

We Wish To Thank You For Giving Us The Pleasure
And Gpportunity of Serving You
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BID/CERTIFICATION FORM
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
16-20 TON BOOM TRUCK

BID NO.: UD2013-03

BIDDERS CERTIFICATION TO THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE:

1

The undersigned warrants that: (A) this Bid is submitted in response to, and is in compliance with, all terms
and conditions applicable thereto as set forth in the Advertisement, General Instructions and Conditions,
Special Instructions and Conditions, Bid/Certification Forms and (if any), the Minimum Technical
Specifications, Plans, Addendumn, Exhibits, Agresment, Bonds and Insurance requirements, cach of which
has been carefully examined, (B) Bidder or Bidder's representative has made such investigation as is
necessary to determine the character and extent of the work and their capability to perform the work, and
(C) agrees that if the Bid is accepted by the City, Bidder will provide the necessary labor, materials,
machinery, equipment, tools or apparatus, and perform all the work or services required to complete the
assignment and/or contract within the time spevified according to the requiremeants of the City as herein and
hereinafter set forth, and (D) he/she is authorized to legally execute binding contracts for and on behalf of

the Bidder,

Please check one:

Bidder declares that the only person, persons, company or parties interested in this Bid are named
in the Bid.
a Bidder, or one or more of bidder’s officers, principals, or any owner of more than 5% in or of

bidder, or members of their immediate families: (A) have a financial interest in another company,
project, or property that could benefit financially from this proposed project; and/or (B) another
individual or business will be compensated by (or on behalf of bidder) if bidder is seleoted by the
City to bid the requested services, (Attach a detailed explanation for either.)

Bid Bond - If the Bid is acoepted by the City, it will become a binding contract on both parties. If a Bid
Bond or Cashier's Check/Certified Check is required, it shall be submitted with the Bid, If the undersighed
shall fail to deliver or perform, or if applicable, execute a Contract as staved herein, then the City may, atits
option, determine that the undersigned has abandoned the Award/Contract, and thereupon such Bid and/or
Award shall be null and void, and any Cashier’s Check/Certificd Check or Bond accompanying this Bid
shall be forfeited to and become the property of the City, and the full amount of said check, or if a Bid Bond,
the full amount of such bond, shall be paid to the City as partial liquidated damages; otherwise, any Bond or
Cashier’s Check/Certified Check accompanying this Bid shall be retumed to the undersigned within 30
calendar days from the date of Award, or if provisions for & Notice to Proceed are included, from the date of

the Notice to Proceed.

Bidder proposes and agrees to provide all materials, services or equipment required for the City Of
Brooksvilte 16-20 Ton Boom Truck Bid No. UD2013-03 as described in the Proposal Questionnaire for the

Total Bid Sum of _one Hundred seven Thousand Dollars  Dollars (§_107,000.00

Number of days from date of the Purchase Order will be required for the delivery of unit?
21

(Maximum 40 Calendar Days

The City reserves the right to accept any or all prices itemized in any combination that best serves the
interests of the City. The City further reserves the right to accept or reject any of the components of this Bid,

including alternates,
BIDDER HEREBY ACKNQWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE FOLLOWING ADDENDUMS: 1
**3aa Attached Addendum to Clty of Brookaville Bid No. UP2013-13 signed by David Alban

Corporate Secretary/ Executive VP of Ring Power Corporation.
1of2



Ring Power Corporation

Name of Bidder:

Business structure: (X) Corporation, ( ) Partnership, ( ) Individual, { ) Other:

If a Partnership:

Name(s) of Partner(s);

If a Corporation: Ring Power Corporation
Incorporated in State of: Florida Date of Incorporation: _7/17/1961

Business Address: 10421 Fern Hill Drive

City: Riverview State_ FL _ Zip 33578

Telephone Number: 1% _671-3700 Fax $1) 672-6680

Submitted By: _ Alan Thomas
(Print)

Title:  vP/Govergmental Salss Directoe
Signature: @m h(;) —
P
p)
ATTEST:

Secretary

By: David Alban
Print Name

Affix Corporate Seal
(If Corporation)

State of Florida -
County of HLL1sborough

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this18tday of _July, 2013 by David Alban .
who is personally known to me or who presented personallv knoun as identification, and who (did) (did not) take

an oath, DEBRA K. DACKEN
Notaty Public, State of Florida
4

My comm. exp. April 4, 2014
b
I // i LY g

Comm. No. DD 978587
[Signathfe of Notary Public] [Printed, typed or stamnped name of Notary Public)

NOTE: BIDS MAY BE REJECTED IF ALL DOCUMENTS ARE NOT COMPLETE AND EXECUTED, AND
THE NUMBER OF COPIES SPECIFIED/REQUESTED OF EACH ARE NOT SUBMITTED WITH THE

BID,
20f2



Boom, boom holst cylinder, 2-spead winch, load line and 5
ton {4,5 mt) overhaul ball, furret, pedestal, dual operator
control stations, LM! & ATB protection systems, sub-frama,
a-frame link outriggers, a-frame rear stabilizers, hydraullc
resefvoir and boom rest,

HYDRAULICS

* B-Bolt direct mounted PTO with SAE B or
SAE BB output

* Three-section gear pump, SAE BB input {standard)

Pumgp Section 2000 RPM 2000 RPM

Shaft End Pump: 32.4 GPM @ 100 Psl
Canter Pump: 20.5 GPM @ 100 Psl

Cover End Pump: 10 GPM @ 160 PS)

* Hydraulic reservolr - 70 gallor (285 fiter) capacity

WARNING SYSTEMS
* LMi with display and crans function shut-offs for

123 LPM @ 100 P8
78 LPM @ 100 PS|
38 LPM @ 100 PSI

BOOM
= 17 Ton (15,5 mt) capacity at 9' (1,5 m) radius

« 3-Section 70' (21,3 m} propertional boom

= 3-Sheave quick reeve boom point

HOIST
* Maximum thecretical line speed 300 fpm {91 mpm)

« Maximum thecretical bottom-layer line pull 11,500 lb
{5,216 kg)

+ Wire Rope — 300" (91,4 m) of 9/16" (14,3 mm)
diameter 6 x 25 EIPS IWRC

overload protection
= Anti-two block system
in order to ensure continuous improvament, Manitex reservas
OPTIONS the right to change design and specificalions without notice.

= Rear mount configuration (consult factory)
= Wireleas LMi and ATB system
* 20 (6,2 m) Flatbed - wood or 1/8” steel deck

*+ 20" (6,2 m) Heavy hauler flatbed - 3/16” steel dack
wirub rails

* 24" {610 mm) Bulkhead

* 23.8' (7,2 m) Fixed jIb

=23.6'(7,2 m) - 40.6' (12,4 m) 2-Sedion telescopic jib

* Rolation resistant wire rope, 9/16" (14,3 mm) diameter
» Load block - 1 sheave

« Front center stabilizer

= Hydraulic oil cooler

* Hose rgel - boom mounted

*» Toolboxes
= 24" Lx 20" Wx 18" H (610 mm x 508 mm x 457 mm)
* 48" L x 18" W x 18" H {1220 mm x 457 mm x 457 mm)

» 2-Person gravity lavelad non-rotating basket - 600 b
{272 kg) capacity

« 2-Person gravity leveled rotating {(manual) basket -
1200 Ib (544 kg) capacity

» 4-Function radio ramete crane control system

* Three section vane pump, SAE 8 input

MTX-1770C-SS-EN-V3-1111
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Print this ad listing detail page - EquipmeniTraderOnline.com Page I of 2

Equipment Trader

WAL e (L Dt B radd e cev g com

Ad Listing 1D: 110221054

2008 MANITEX 1770C
$110,000.00

SELLER INFORMATION

Ring Power Corp
10421 Fern Hilt Dr.
Riverview, Fl. 33578

+ Toll Free: (877) 941-4799
* hitp:/Awww.ringpower.com

VEHICLE DETAILS

Year:2008
Make:MANITEX
Model:1770C
Location:Riverview, FL
Type:LIFTING
Hours:13000

SELLER DESCRIPTION

2008 MANITEX 1770C, Cranes - Boom Truck, Suspension, Wheels,
Wheel Base, Axle, , , 2008 Manitex 1770C Crane Truck, 2008 Manitex

1770C Crane Truck

http://www.equipmenttraderonline.com/find/listing/print/1 10221054/ 7/12/2013
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AGENDA ITEM NO.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM
MEMORANDUM

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

VIA: T. JENNENE NORMAN-VACHA, CITY M4 %
FROM:  MIKE WALKER, PARKS, FACILITIES & RECRE/ TW“/

DIRECTOR
SUBJECT: PAVING PROJECTS BID PR2013-04 AWARD

DATE: JULY 29, 2013

GENERAL SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: The City advertised for sealed bids for
the following two (2) projects:

» Project A, the paving and redesign of the McKethan Park parking lot.

» Project B, the paving and realignment of John Gary Grubbs (JGG) Boulevard
and a pavement overlay to the Enrichment Center Parking Lot.

Project B also included two (2) Alternate Bids, as follows:
o Alternate Bid 1 includes a sidewalk along John Gary Grubbs Boulevard from the
Enrichment Center Parking Lot to U.S. Highway 41.
s Alternate Bid 2 is to use crushed concrete in lieu of limerock for the road base.
The crushed concrete would offer a more stable road base, since this area tends to
have very wet soil at times. This is a recommendation from the Project Engineer,

Coastal Engineering Associates, Inc., and the Public Works Director, Richard
Radacky.

Bids were opened on July 24, 2013. The following bids were received:

BIDDER PROJECT A PROIJECTB PROJECTB | PROJECTB Project B TOTAL
' McKethan | IGGBlvd. & | Alternate | Aiternate PROJECT
Park ECI Parking 1 2 Total COST
Lot Sidewalk Road Base

Goodwin Brothers $96,386.70 66,128.21 8,554.00 2,343.60 | 77,025.81 | $173,412.51
BRW Contracting 597,686.00 88,836.00 7,050.00 895.00 96,781.00 | $194,467.00
Pave-Rite, Inc. $152,176.64 98,510.37 6,800.00 778.00 | 106,088.37 | $258,265.01
J.E. Ausley $164,317.00 106,371.00 6,400.00 3,500.00 | 116,271.00 | $280,588.00

Staff and the project engineers, Cardno TBE and Coastal Engineering Associates, Inc.,
have reviewed the bids and determined that the most reasonable and responsive bidder
Furthermore, staff has determined that

is Goodwin Brothers Construction, Inc.
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sufficient funds are available to award bids for Project B Alternate 1, sidewalk, and
Alternate 2, use of crushed concrete for roadway base. The total pI'OJeCt cost including
alternates would be $173,412.51.

BUDGET IMPACT: Funds are available and currently budgeted in the Fiscal Year
2013 Budget, titled, Public Building Impact Fees, Fund Number 113, General Ledger
Account Number 113-020-572-55630 (Improvements Other than Buildings) in the
amount of $197,700.

LEGAL REVIEW: Pursuant to the City’s Charter, Article V, Section, 5.04, Competitive
Bidding, the City Council is authorized to approve the award for procurement of
personal property or services via the bid process within the statutory categories and
limits established pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve the
bid award for the Paving Projects-Bid Number, PR2013-04, to Goodwin Brothers
Construction, Inc., for Projects A and B, to include Alternate Bids 1 and 2, for a total bid
award $173,412.51 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements on behalf of the
Council,

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Bid Certification
2.  Agreement for Contractor Services
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Biddexr/Company Name: GoODWIN BRQS CONSTRUCTION ING

City of Brooksville
Paving Projects
Bid No.: PR2013-04
BID/CERTIFICATION FORM

BIDDERS CERTIFICATION TO THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE:

L The undersigned warrants that: (A) this Bid is submitted in response o, and is in compliance with, all terms
and conditions applicable thereto as set forth in the Advertisement, General Instructions and Conditions,
Special Instructions and Conditions, Bid/Certification Forns and (if any), the Minimum Technical
Specifications, Plans, Addendum, Exhibits, Agreement, Bonds and Insurance requirements, each of which
has been carefully examined, (B} Bidder or Bidder’s representative has made such investigation as is
necessary to deterrnine the character and extent of the work and their capability to perform the work, and
{C) agrees that if the Bid is accepred by the City, Bidder will provide the necessary labor, materials,
machinery, equipment, tools or apparatus, and perform all the work or services required to complete the
assignment and/or contraet within the time specified according to the requirements of the City as herein and
hereinafier set forth, and (D) he/she is authorized to legally execute binding contracts for and on behalf of
the Bidder,

2. Please check one:
Bidder declares that the only person, persons, company or parties interested in this Bid are named
in the Bid,

O Bidder, or one or more of bidder’s officers, principals, or any owner of more than 5% in or of
bidder, or members of their immediate families: (A) have a financial interest in another COMDany,
project, or property that could benefit financially from this proposed project; and/or (B) another
individual or business will be compensated by (or on behalf of bidder) if bidder is selected by the
City to bid the requested services, (Attach a detailed explanation for either.)

3. Bid Bond - If the Bid is accepted by the City, it will become a binding contract on both parties. If & Bid
Bond or Cashier’s Check/Certified Check is required, i shall be submitted with the Bid. Ifthe undersigned
shall fail to detiver or perform, or if applicable, execute a Contract as stated herein, then the City may, at its
option, determine that the undersigned has abandoned the Award/Contract, and thersupon such Bid and/or
Award shall be null and void, and any Cashier’s Cheek/Certified Check or Bond accompanying this Bid
shall be forfeited to and become the property of the City, and the full amount of said check, or if a Bid Bond,
the full amount of such bond, shall be paid to the City as partial liquidated damages; otherwise, any Bond or
Cashier’s Check/Certified Check accompanying this Bid shall be returned to the indersigned within 30
calendar days from the date of Award, or if provisions for a Notice to Proceed are Included, from the date of
the Notice to Proceed.

4, This bid is being made available for contractors to bid on either Project A or Project Bor Beth. Contractors
must bid on Project B to be entitled to bid on Alternate Bids. The bids are lump sum bids except where
otherwise noted. Bidder proposes and agrees to provide all materials, services or equipment required for
the City of Brooksville Paving Projects Bid No,: PR2013-04, for:

Ninety-six Thousand Three Hundrad Eighty Six Dollars a%:l ?Ieventy cents
olars

Project A: McKethan Parl - Parking Lot the Total Bid Sum of
(5_06.386.70. )

The prices of the “Geapavers®" and the 2 FDOT Type D concrete Storm water Ialets are to be noted ag separate ling
items. The City reserves the right to purchase these Hems divectly from the manufucturer,

- “Gw;}aversﬁ” total numiber 45 per plan oo $..12217.39

s FDOT Type I3 concrete storm water Infets (xX2) . oviesiiiieenneceenovenann $ _1712.00
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Bidder/Company Name: GOODWIN BROS CONSTRUCTION INC

The prices of the Concrete Storm water Discharge Structure {Weir) and the Relocation of the existi ng chain link fence
are 1o bu noted as separate Hue flems. The City reserves the right to purchase these items dirscdy from the
manufacturer or supplier,

o Concrete Storm waler Discharge STUcture (Wekr) vovvvrres veeesse oo ees e eeiisanns $...2,500.00

#  Relocation of the existing ¢hain Bok fE008 ..o e s 3 _800.00

Alternative Bid No. 1: This Alternative Bid consist of installing a 3 foot wide, approximately 470 foet long, 3 inch
thick concrete sidewalk to paraltel John Gary Grubbs Bivd on the north side of the road, 1t i io ren from the ECI
parking Iot 1o Broad SIFeet .ot ee st $__8554.00

Alternative Bid Ne. Z; Please provide a price that would use 6” of Crushed Conerete in liew of Line Rock for the road
base: Any saving using the crushed concrete should be reflected as an amount 1o be deduction from the Total Bid Sum
above and presented in parenthesis *(8)". Any additionsl cost 10 be added to the Total Bid Sum should be presented
without parenthesis,

Contractors must bid on Preject B to be entitled to bid on Alternate bids,

Number of days from date if Notice to Proceed that will be required for the final completion of all work as
described herein and as shown on the plans,
10
(Maximuom 19 Calendar Days)

The City reserves the right to accept any or all prices itemized in any combination that best serves the
interests of the City, The City further reserves the right to accept or reject any of the components of this Bid,
including alternates,

BIDDER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE FOLLOWING ADDENDUMS:

Addendum #1 7/18/2013

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK
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Bidder/Company Name: GOODWIN BROS CONSTRUCTION INC

Name of Bidder: GOODWIN BROS CONSTRUCTION, INC,

Business structure: @t‘.ommiicm, { ) Partnership, () Individual,
()} Other

[fa Partnership:

Name(s) of Partner(s).

if' s Corporation:

Incorporated in State of:_ FLORIDA __ Date of Incorporation 07/31/1987

Business Address: _GOODWIN BROS CONSTRUCTION, INC.

City, State, Zip: BROOKSVILLE State: £ 2ip: _34an1

Telephone Number: {253 796.0149 Fax (352 544.1084
Submitted By:  (Print)_

Title: PRESIDENT

Signature:

ATTEST: Secretary
B x

R y : f/
oY (mocchon

Prind Name

Affix Corporate Seal
{If Corporation}
State of Florida

County of HERNANDQ p(i
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this,%ay of

;2043 byDANlEL R. Goo?mwi!@emmnaliy

as identification, 1) {did not) take an oath,

gggﬁ"pub gl

{Printed, typed or stamped name of Notary Public)

T g
N MISTY PIPPIN
{2 MY-COMMISSION # DD978080

] BIREE Commission Number of Notary Public
S EXPIRES April 01, 2014 [ ¢ y i
1y

{407) 389-0153 FloridaNotaryService.com

NOTE: BIDS MAY BE REJECTED IF ALL DOCUMENTS ARE NOT COMPLETE AND EXECUTED, AND
THE NUMBER OF COPIES SPECIFIED/REQUESTED OF EACH ARE NOT SURMITTED WITH THE
BID.,
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LIILDY ND 113

Actua! Actual Actual Budgetsd | Requested

08/0% 69/10 10/11 11/12 12/13
INCOME
Intergavernmental Revenue 40 50 40 S0 0
Fines & Forfeltures o 0 0 o 0
Miscellanaous . -3,082 3,441 938 0 ‘ 0
Interast Income 1,822 1,041 842 80D 650
FHLB Intarest 0 1} ] [} 0
Special Assessment 2,495 2,518 1,631 2,000 0
Transfers In 0 0 [} 0 0
Prlor Year Carry forward 250,227 251,463 258 462 257,000 262,543
Total Incame .- $251,062  $258,463  $261,873  $250,800  $263,193
EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services $0 $0 S0 50 0
Operating Expenditures 0 0 L} 0 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0 100,000 197,700
Transfers Qut o 0 0 0 0
Reserves 251,462 258,463 261,873 159,800 65,493
Total Expendltures $251,462 $258,463 §261,373 $259,800 $263,193

{1} John Grubbs Boulevard and McKethan Park parking Improvements due to EC)/Quarry expansion parking code
requirements, John Gary Grubhs Bivd. parking improvements (Ssv,onol; McKethan Parking [$130,700).

{1}

Deserlption: Impact Fees for Public Bulldings
Revenue Source! Impact Fees callected on sew construction. City has adopted the impact Fees sccording
to Hernando Ordinances.
Expenditures: Capltal expenditures for Public Building. Fund are te be spent within 7 years of recelpt,
County Ordinance defines caphtal as equipment purchases with an expected life of 3 years or more,

moCEmamzm =3 - mon

LwoZ2ZCcm
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AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE PAVING PROJECTS
BID NO.: PR2013-04

This Agreement made as of this 5" day of, August, 2013, by and between the City of
Brooksville, Florida - (the “CITY"), and Goodwin Brothers Construction, Inc., authorized to
do business in the State of Florida (the “CONTRACTOR”), and whose address is 14341 Ponce
De Leon Blvd., Brooksville, FL. 34601, Phone: (352) 796-0149, Fax: (352) 544-1084.

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR
agree asfollows:

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES

The CONTRACTOR'’S responsibility under this Agreement is to furnish, deliver, and
construct al materials, labor, and equipment and to perform all operations in accordance with the
plans and specifications and as listed in the Bid Form for the City of Brooksville Paving

Projects.

Services of the CONTRACTOR shall be under the genera direction of the CITY MANAGER,
who may designate a person to act as the CITY'S representative (hereinafter
“REPRESENTATIVE") during the performance of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - SCHEDULE

This contractor shall commence services within 10 days of the Notice to Proceed and complete
all services by September 30, 2013.

ARTICLE 3 - PAYMENTSTO CONTRACTOR

A. The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR for services satisfactorily performed
$173,412.51, which includes all direct charges, indirect charges and reimbursable
expenses, if any. The CONTRACTOR will bill the CITY monthly.

B. The invoices received from the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement will be
reviewed and approved by the Department of Public Works, indicating that services have
been rendered in conformity with the Agreement, and then will be sent to the Finance
Department for payment. The invoice must specify the work performed.

C. In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the CONTRACTOR will
clearly state “final invoice” on the CONTRACTOR'’ S final/last billing to the CITY. This
indicates that all services have been performed and all charges and costs have been
invoiced to the CITY. Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further
charges if not properly included on this fina invoice shall be waved by the
CONTRACTOR.
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D. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has reviewed the scope of work and inspected the
work site and does not anticipate having any CONTRACTOR requested change orders.

ARTICLE 4 - TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by the CONTRACTOR on 30 days prior written notice to the
CITY in the event of substantial failure by the CITY to perform in accordance with the terms
hereof through no fault of the CONTRACTOR. It may also be terminated by the CITY, with or
without cause, immediately upon written notice to the CONTRACTOR. Unless the
CONTRACTOR is in breach of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid for services
rendered to the CITY’S satisfaction through the date of termination. After receipt of a
termination notice and except as otherwise directed by the CITY the CONTRACTOR shall:

A, Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.

B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the
terminated work.

C. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other material related to the terminated
work to the CITY.
D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

ARTICLE 5 - PERSONNEL

The CONTRACTOR represents that it has or will secure at its own expense all necessary
personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the CITY,

All of the services required herein under shall be performed by the CONTRACTOR or under its
supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if
required, authorized or permitted under State and local law to perform such services.

The CONTRACTOR warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent
personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

ARTICLE 6 - SUBCONTRACTING

The CITY reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a
particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make a
determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Agreement.
The CONTRACTOR is encouraged to seek minority and women business enterprises for
participation in subcontracting opportunities,

If a subcontractor fails to perform or make progress, as required by this Agreement, and it is
necessary to replace the subcontractor to complete the work in a timely fashion, the
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CONTRACTOR shall promptly do so, subject to acceptance of the new subcontractor by the

CITY.

ARTICLE 7 - FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of its own FICA and Social Security
benefits with respect to this Agreement and the personnel it employs.

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE & BONDS

A,

The CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has
obtained all insurance and bonds required under this paragraph and such insurance has
been verified by the CITY.,

All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the
laws of the State of Florida.

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, comprehensive
automobile liability insurance in the amount of $100,000/$500,000/$1,000,000 or
$1,000,000 combined single limit for property damage and bodily injury liability
covering claims which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and
non-owned automobiles, including rented automobiles, whether such operations be by the
CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.
CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain a policy or policies of commercial general
liability insurance satisfactory in all respects to CITY, and casualty and extended
coverage insurance. All policies shall be occurrence form policies and shall name CITY
as an additional insured, with the premium thereon fully paid by CONTRACTOR on or
before their due date. The general liability insurance policy shall afford minimum
protection of $500,000/$1,000,000 or $1,000,000 combined single limit coverage for
bodily injury.

Required insurance shall be documented in Certificates of Insurance which provide that
CITY shall be notified at least 30 days in advance of cancellation, non-renewal or
adverse change. New Certificates of Insurance are to be provided to CITY at least 15
days prior to coverage renewals. City of Brooksville, Florida is to be named as an
additional insured entity.

If requested by CITY, CONTRACTOR shall furnish complete copies of its insurance
policies, forms and endorsements.

For commercial general liability coverage, CONTRACTOR shall, at the option of CITY,
provide an indication of the amount of claims, payments or reserves chargeable to the
aggregate amount of liability coverage.

Receipt of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies or copies of
policies by CITY, or by any of its representatives, which indicate less coverage than
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required does not constitute a waiver of CONTRACTOR’S obligation to fulfill the
insurance requirements herein.

CONTRACTOR shall also purchase and maintain workers compensation insurance for
all obligations imposed by law, with employer’s liability limits of at least $1,000,000
each employee/$500,000 policy limit for disease. CONTRACTOR shall also purchase
any other coverages required by law.

CONTRACTOR’S maintenance of the insurance policies required hereunder shall not
limit or otherwise affect its liability hereunder.

C. In the event that a performance or payment bond is required due to use of grant funds for
the project, by City Council or as otherwise required, the CONTRACTOR shall not
commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained the required bonds and
provided such bonds to the CITY.

ARTICLE 9 - EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance
if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the CONTRACTOR’S control and without
its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not limited to: acts of God; the City’s
omissive and commissive failures; natural or public health emergencies; labor disputes; freight
embargoes; and severe weather conditions. If failure to perform is caused by the failure of the
CONTRACTOR’S subcontractor(s) and is without the fault or negligence of them, the
CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to be in default.

Upon the CONTRACTOR’S request, the CITY shall consider the facts and extent of any failure
to perform the work and, if the CONTRACTOR’S failure to perform was without its fault or
negligence as determined by the CITY, any affected provision of this Agreement shall be revised
accordingly; subject to the CITY’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at
anytime.

ARTICLE 10 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Liquidated damages shall be paid to the CITY at the rate of $200.00 per day for all work
awarded under the contract until the work has been satisfactorily completed as provided by the
Contract Documents. Sundays and Legal Holidays shall be excluded in determining days in
default.

It is agreed that the amount is the per-diem rate for damage incurred by reason of failure to
complete the work. The said amount is hereby agreed upon as the reasonable costs which may
be accrued by the CITY after the expiration of the time of completion. It is expressly understood
and agreed that this amount is not to be considered in the nature of a penalty, but as liquidated
damages which have accrued against the CONTRACTOR. The CITY shall have the right to
deduct such damages from any amount due, or that may become due the CONTRACTOR, or the
amount of such damages shall be due and collectable from the CONTRACTOR or Surety.
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ARTICLE 11 - ARREARS

The CONTRACTOR shall not pledge the CITY’S credit or make it a guarantor of | payment or
surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness.

ARTICLE 12 - DISCL.OSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The CONTRACTOR shall deliver to the CITY for approval and acceptance, and before being
eligible for final payment of any amount due, all documents and materials prepared by and for
the CITY under this Agreement.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all
information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the CITY or at its expense will be kept
confidential by the CONTRACTOR and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or
indirectly, without the CITY"S prior written consent,

Such information and data shall be and will remain the CITY’S property and may be reproduced
and reused at the discretion of the CITY. ‘

All products generated by the CONTRACTOR for the CITY become the property of the CITY.
The CITY may require submission of any electronic file version of reports, data, maps or other
submission of documentation produced for or as a result of this project in addition to paper
documents.

The CITY and the CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of the Florida Public
Records Law.

Public Records Law. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it is familiar with the provisions of the
Public Records Law of the State of Florida.

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and specifically per
Florida Statute 119.0701, CONTRACTOR agrees to keep and maintain public records that
would be required by the City of Brooksville in order to perform the services provided for in this
Agreement; CONTRACTOR agrees to provide public access to any required public records in
the same manner as a public agency; CONTRACTOR agrees to protect exempt or confidential
records from disclosure; CONTRACTOR agrees to meet public records retention requirement;
and CONTRACTOR agrees that at the end of term of this Agreement, to transfer all public
records to the City of Brooksville and destroy any duplicate exempt or confidential public
records.

All products generated by the CONTRACTOR for the CITY become the property of the CITY.
The CITY may require submission of any electronic file version of reports, data, maps or other
submission of documentation produced for or as a result of this bid/proposal in addition to paper
documents.
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Further, in accordance with the Public Records Laws of the State of Florida, Section 119.0701,
(2013}, Contractor must:

A. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by
the public agency in order to perform the service.

B. Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the
public agency would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost
provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.

C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
records are not disclosed except as authorized by law.

D. Meet all requitements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the public
agency all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract
and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public record disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided
to the public agency in a format that is compatible with the information technology
systems of the public agency.

E. If a contractor does not comply with a public records request, the public agency shall
enforce the contract provision in accordance with the contract.

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in
writing by any party pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE 13 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP

The CONTRACTOR is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities
under this Agreement, an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the
CITY. All persons engaged in any of the work or services petformed pursuant to this Agreement
shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR’S sole direction,
supervision, and control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner
in which it and its employees perform the work, and in all respects the CONTRACTOR’S
relationship and the relationship of its employees to the CITY shall be that of an independent
contractor and not as employees or agents of the CITY.

The CONTRACTOR does not have the power or authority to bind the CITY in any promise,
agreement or representation.

ARTICLE 14 - CONTRACT ASSIGNMENT

The CONTRACTOR shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of the
CONTRACT or any portion thereof, or of his right, title, or interest therein, without written
consent of the CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall complete the work contemplated by the terms
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and conditions of this Agreement in an amount equivalent to at least 50 percent (50%) of the
dollar value of work to be performed under this Contract utilizing its own business or corporate
entity, so that no single labor, material man, or subcontractor shall be permitted to perform more
than 50% of the work contemplated by this Contract,

ARTICLE 15 - AMENDMENT

None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be added to,
modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by a written instrument executed by the parties
hereto.

ARTICLE 16 - ENFORCEMENT COSTS

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or
because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any
provision, the successful or prevailing party or parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable
attorney’s fees, court costs and all expenses even if not taxable as court costs (including, without
limitation, all such fees, costs and expenses incident to appeals), incurred in that action or
proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such party or parties may be entitled.

ARTICLE 17 - AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE

The CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all
licenses and approvals required to conduct its business, and that it will at all times conduct its
business activities in a reputable manner.

ARTICLE 18 - SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision on this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provisions to persons or circumstances other than
those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term
and provision of this Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted
by law.

ARTICLE 19 - CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE AND AUTHORITY

The person designated by the CITY MANAGER shall serve as the CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE
and shall decide questions which may arise as to quality and acceptability of materials furnished
and work performed, and shall interpret the intent of the Contract Documents with reasonable
promptness.

The REPRESENTATIVE will not be responsible for the construction means, controls,
techniques, sequences, procedures, or construction safety.

The REPRESENTATIVE may assign Project Inspector(s) who shall serve to assist the
REPRESENTATIVE in determining if the work performed and the materials used meet the
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Contract requirements. The Project Inspector shall be authorized to issue Field Orders. The
Project Inspector shall be authorized to stop all or any portion of the work if in his opinion the
work is not proceeding according to the requirements of the plans aud specifications.

ARTICLE 20 - MODIFICATION

The CITY reserves the right to make changes in the work, including alterations, reductions
therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the CONTRACTOR of the CITY’S notification of
a contemplated change, the CONTRACTOR shall (1) if requested by CITY, provide an estimate
for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change, (2) notify the CITY of any
estimated change in the completion date, and (3) advise the CITY in writing if the contemplated
change shall affect the CONTRACTOR’S ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of
this Agreement.

If the CITY so instructs in writing, the CONTRACTOR shall suspend work on that portion of
the work affected by a contemplated change, pending the CITY’S decision to proceed with the
change.

If the CITY elects to make the change, the CITY shall issue a contract amendment or change
order and the CONTRACTOR shall not commence work on any such change until such written
amendment or change order has been issued and signed by each of the parties.

ARTICLE 21 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The other documents which comprise the entire Agreement are attached hereto, made a part
hereof and consist of the following:

A. Advertisement for Bids.

B Special Instructions and Conditions
C. General Instructions and Conditions
D Minimum Technical Specifications
E. Bid Forms

Bid Certification Form

Drug-Free Workplace Certification
Public Entity Crimes Statement

G. Addendums (if any)
H. Performance & Payments Bonds (if required)

L. Change Orders (if any)
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In the event of a conflict between the terms of the above documents and the terms of this
Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

There are no contract documents other than those listed above and there are no promises or
understandings other than those stated herein.

ARTICLE 22 - VENUE

All applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of the State of Florida, Hernando County and the
City of Brooksville will apply to consideration and award of any bid/proposal and the
performance of the bidder/proposal pursuant thereto, and shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida both as to intention and performance. The venue for any action arising from the
award or subsequent performance shall lie exclusively in the Circuit Court of Hernando County,
Florida, or the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, as applicable.

ARTICLE 23 - NOTICE

All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested,
and if sent to the CITY shall be mailed to:

City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, Florida 34601
Attention: City Clerk
Phone: (352) 540-3853
Fax:  (352) 544-5424

Email: jpeters@cityofbrooksville.us

With a copy to: City Attorney
¢/o The Hogan Law Firm
P.O. Box 485
Brooksville, Florida 34605

and if sent to the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed to:

90f10



This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above and is executed in at
least two original copies of which one is to be delivered to the CONTRACTOR and one to the
CITY CLERK for filing in the official records.

CITY CLERK CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA
Attest:_ By:
Janice L. Peters, CMC Lara Bradburn, Mayor
City Clerk
Contractor Witnesses: Contractor:
(2 REQUIRED)
Witness:
Name Business Name
By:
Signature Signature
Witness: Print Name and Title
Name
Signature

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE RELIANCE OF THE
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE ONLY:

THOMAS S. HOGAN, JR., THE HOGAN LAW Firm, LLC
CITY ATTORNEY
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AGENDA ITEM NO. éﬁ
543

CONSENTAGENDA ITEM
MEMORANDUM

TO:
VIA:

FROM:

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUAD CONTRACT WS870

DATE: July 26, 2013

GENERAIL SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: Attached is the annual inmate work squad
Contract No. WS870 “Attachment A”, from the Florida Department of Corrections. This
agreement is for one (1) budgeted work squad the city utilizes to maintain the street right-of-
ways and water retention areas throughout the city. The contract will provide the city with one
(1) correctional officer and up to five (5) inmates for a one (1) year term through November 4,
2014 with the option to renew for an additional one (1) year period after the initial contract.

There are no changes in the agreement from last year; it is for a total contract cost of $57,497.
This program is a very important part of the Public Works Department workforce.

BUDGET IMPACT: The agreement is for a total of $57,497 and will be requested in the
upcoming proposed Streets Division 2013/14 Budget, in Line Item Account No. 001-020-572-
53400, Other Contractual Services. Contract provisions require a 60 day notice for termination
if funding is not available.

LEGAL REVIEW: The City Council has Home Rule Authority (Art. VIII, 2(b), Fla. Const.
/Section 166.011, F.S.) to consider and take action on matters of fiscal benefit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council approve the proposed inmate
work squad contract with the Florida Department of Corrections, Contract No. WS870, not to

exceed $57,497.
ATTACHMENTS: Work Squad Contract No. WS 870



CONTRACT # WS870

CONTRACT BETWEEN
THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
AND
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

This Contract is between the Florida Department of Corrections (“Department”) and City of Brooksville ("Agency")
which are the parties hereto.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Section 944.10(7) and Section 946.40, Florida Statutes and Rules 33-601.201 and 33-601.202, Florida
Administrative Code, provide for the use of inmate labor in work programs;

WHEREAS, inmate labor will be used for the purposes of providing services and performing work under the
supervision of the Department’s staff:

WHEREAS City of Brooksville is a qualified and willing participant with the Department to contract for an inmate
work squad(s); and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find it to be in their best interests to enter into this Contract, and in recognition of the
mutual benefits and considerations set forth, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:

I.  CONTRACT TERM/RENEWAL

A. This Contract shall begin on November 5, 2013 or the last date of signature by all parties, whichever
is later.

Thi_é Contract shall end at midnight one (1)- year(s) from the last date of signature by all parties or
November 4, 2014, whichever is later. In the event this Contract is signed by the parties on different
dates, the latter date shall control,

B. Contract Renewal

This Contract may be renewed, for one (1) additional one (1) year period after the initial Contract
period upon the same terms and conditions contained herein. The Contract renewal is at the
Agency’s initiative with the concurrence of the Department. The decision to exercise the option to
renew shiould be made no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Contract expiration.

Page 1 of 12
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CONTRACT # WS870

IL SCOPE OF CONTRACT

A. Administrative Functions

1.

Each party shall cooperate with the other in any litigation or claims against the other party
as a result of unlawful acts committed by an inmate(s) performing services under this
Contract between the parties.

Each party will retain responsibility for its persormel, and its fiscal and general
administrative services to support this Contract.

Through their designated representatives, the parties shall collaborate on the development of
policies and operational procedures for the effective management and operation of this
Contract.

B. Description of Services
Responsibilities of the Department

1.

Master Document Revised 03/2013

a.

Pursvant to Chapter 33-601.202(2)(a), F.A.C., supervision of the work squad(s)
will be provided by the Department. The Department shall provide one (1)
Correctional Work Squad Officer position(s) to supervise an inmate work squad(s).
This Contract provides for one (1) Work Squad(s) of up to five (5) inmates.

The Department shall ensure the availability of the work squad(s) except: when
weather conditions are such that to check the squad(s) out would breach good
security practices; when the absence of the Correctional Work Squad Officer is
necessary for reasons of required participation in training or approved use of leave;
when the Officer’s presence is required at the institution to assist with an emergency
situation; when the officer is ill; or when the Correctional Work Squad Officer
position is vacant. In the event a position becomes vacant, the Department shall
make every effort to fill the position(s) within five (5) working days.

For security and other reasons, the Department shall keep physical custody of the
vehicles, trailers, and all tools, equipment, supplies, materials and personal work
items (gloves, boots, hard hats, etc.) furnished by the Agency. (The Department
shall maintain an inventory of all property, expendable and non-expendabile,
provided by the Agency, which is in the care, custody, and control of the
Department.) A hand receipt shall be signed by the Department’s Work Squad
Supervisor upon the issuance and return of non-expendable items.

In the event of damage to property as a result of an accident charged to a
Department employee or blatant acts of vandalism by inmates, or loss of tools and
equipment, the Agency may request that the Department replace or repair to
previous condition the damaged or lost property.

The Department shall be reimbursed by the Agency for the Department’s costs
associated with this Contract in accordance with Addendum A.

Page 2 of 12



Master Document Revised 03/2013

CONTRACT # WS870

Once the Agency reimburses the Department for the costs reflected on Addendum
A, Section II., these items will be placed on the Department’s property records, as
appropriate, and upon the end or termination of this Contract such items will be
transferred to the Agency.

The Department shall, to the maximum extent possible, maintain stability in the
inmate work force assigned to the work squad on a day-to-day basis in order to
maximize the effectiveness of the work squad.

The Department shall provide food and drinks for inmates’ lunches.

The Department shall be responsible for the apprehension of an escapee and
handling of problem inmates. The Department shall provide transportation from the
work site to the correctional facility for inmates who refuse to work, become unable
to work, or cause a disruption in the work schedule.

The Department shall be responsible for administering all disciplinary action taken
against an inmate for infractions committed while performing work under this
Contract.

The Department shall provide for medical treatment of ill or injured inmates and
transportation of such inmates.

The Department shall provide inmates with all personal items of clothing
appropriate for the season of the year.

The Department shall be responsible for driving the Correctional Work Squad
Officer and the inmates to and from the work site.

Both parties agree that the Department is making no representations as to the level
of skills of the work squad.

Responsibilities of the Agency

a.

The Agency shall periodically provide the Department’s Contract Manager with a
schedule of work to be accomplished under the terms of this Contract. Deviation
from the established schedule shall be reported to, and coordinated with, the
Department.

If required, the Agency shall obtain licenses or permits for the work to be
performed. The Agency shall provide supervision and guidance for projects that
require a permit or which require technical assistance to complete the project.

The Agency shall ensure that all projects utilizing inmates are authorized projects of
the municipality, city, county, governmental Agency, or non-profit organization and
that private contractors employed by the Agency do not use inmates as any part of
their labor force.
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d. The Agency shall retain ownership of any vehicles or equipment provided by the
Agency for the work squad. The Agency shall maintain its own inventory of
transportation, tools and equipment belonging to the Agency.

€. The Agency shall provide vehicles for transportation of the work squads.

Communications Equipment

It is the intent of this Contract that the Work Squad have and maintain communication with
the institution at all times. A method of communication (radios, cellular phone, etc.), shall
be provided at no cost to the Department. The Agency shall provide a primary method of
communication that shall be approved by the Contract Manager in writing prior to
assignment of the work squad. Depending upon the method of communication provided, the
Contract Manager may require a secondary or back-up method of communication.

All radio communication equipment owned or purchased by the Agency that is programmed
to the Department’s radio frequency and used by the work squad(s), whether purchased by
the Department or the Agency, shall be IMMEDIATELY deprogrammed by the Department
at no cost to the Agency upon the end or termination of this Contract. Under no
circumstances shall the Agency accept the return of radio communications equipment
provided to the Department under this Contract until such time as the radio communications
equipment has been deprogrammed by the Department.

At the end or termination of this Contract, the Department's Contract Manager will contact
the Department's Utility Systems/Communications Engineer in the Bureau of Field Support
Services, Central Office, to effect the deprogramming of radio communications equipment
provided by the Agency.

a. Vehicle Mounted Radios:

Vehicles provided by the Agency that are or that will be equipped with a
mobile/vehicle mounted radio programmed to the Department's radio frequency(ies)
will be retained by the Department to ensure security of the communication
equipment except for short durations dictated by the need for vehicle and/or
communications equipment maintenance and/or repair. The use of these vehicle(s)
during the period covered by this Contract shall not be for any purpose other than as
indicated in this Contract. '

b. Hand Held Radios:

Hand held radios provided by the Agency that are or that will be programmed to the
Department's radio frequency(ies) will be retained by the Department to ensure
security of the communication equipment except for short durations dictated by the
need for maintenance and/or repair. The use of any hand held radio(s) provided by
the Agency that is programmed to a Department radio frequency utilized by the
Agency during the period covered by this Contract shall not be for any purpose
other than as indicated in this Contract.
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CONTRACT # WS870

c. Cellular Phones:

Cellular phones may be utilized by the work squad officer as either a primary or
secondary means- of communication as approved by the Contract Manager. The
Contract Manager shall designate whether the usage of a cellular phone is required
on Addendum A. The cellular phone will be retained by the Department and upon
the end or termination of this Contract, returned to the Agency. The use of the
cellular phone is not authorized for any purposes other than as indicated in this
Contract.

Other Equipment

The Contract Manager shall determine if an enclosed trailer is required for the work squad
to transport tools and equipment utilized in the performance of this Contract and shall notify
the Agency when a trailer is necessary. The Contract Manager shall designate whether the
usage of an enclosed trailer is required on Addendum A.

If a trailer for the work squad is provided by the Agency at no cost to the Department, and
the Department maintains the trailer when the squad is not working, the Agency shall
provide an enclosed trailer that can be secured when not in use. All tools and equipment
utilized by the work squad shall be secured in the trailer. Upon the end or termination of
this Contract, the trailer will be returned to the Agency.

III. COMPENSATION

A, Pavment to the Department

1.

Total Operating Capital To Be Advanced By Agency, as delineated in Section IV., of
Addendum A, shall be due and payable upon execution of the Contract. The Department will
not proceed with the purchase until payment, in full, has been received and processed by the
Department’s Bureau of Finance and Accounting. Delays in receipt of these funds may result in
start-up postponement or interruption of the services provided by the Work Squad.

Total Costs To Be Billed To Agency By Contract, as delineated in Section VI., of Addendum
A, will be made quarterly, in advance, with the first payment equaling one-fourth of the total
amount, due within two (2) weeks after the effective date of the Contract. The second quarterly
payment is due no later than the 20" day of the last month of the first Contract quarter.
Payment for subsequent consecutive quarters shall be received no later than the 20" day of the
last month of the preceding Contract quarter.

In the event the Correctional Work Squad Officer position becomes vacant and remains vacant
for a period of more than five (5) working days, the next or subsequent billing will be adjusted
by the Department for services not provided.

The Agency shall insure any vehicles owned by the Agency used under this Contract.
The rate of compensation shall remain in effect through the term of the Contract or subsequent
to legislative change. In the event there is an increase/decrease in costs identified in Addendum

A, this Contract shall be amended to adjust to such new rates.
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CONTRACT # WS870

B. Official Payes

The name and address of the Department’s official payee to whom payment shall be made is as
follows:

Department of Corrections

Bureau of Finance and Accounting

Attn: Professional Accountant Supervisor
Centerville Station

Call Box 13600

Tallahassee, Florida 32317-3600

C. Submission of Invoice(s)

The name, address and phone number of the Agency’s official representative to whom invoices shall
be subsmitted to is as follows:

Richard Radacky, Director

Department of Public Works

City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue

Telephone: (352) 540-3860

Fax: (352) 544-3470

E-mail: RRadacky@cityofbrooksville. us

IV. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

The Department will be responsible for the project management of this Contract. The Department has
assigned the following named individuals, address and phone number as indicated, as Contract Manager and
Contract Administrator for the Project.

A. Department’s Contract Manager

The Warden of the Correctional Institution represented in this Contract is designated Contract
Manager for the Department and is responsible for enforcing performance of the Contract terms and
conditions and shall serve as a liaison with the Agency. The position, address and telephone number
of the Department’s Contract Manager for this Contract is:

Warden

Hernando Correctional Institution
16415 Spring Hill Drive
Brooksville, FL 34604
Telephone: (352) 754-6715

B. Department’s Contract Administrator

The Contract Administrator for the Department is responsible for maintaining a Contract file on this
Contract service and will serve as a liaison with the Contract Manager for the Department. The
address and telephone number of the Department’s Contract Administrator for this Contract is:
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CONTRACT # WS870

Operations Manager, Contract Administration
Bureau of Contract Management and Monitoring
501 South Calhoun Street

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2500

Phone: (850) 717-3681

Fax: (850) 488-7189

C. Agency’s Representative

The name, address and telephone number of the representative of the Agency is:

T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager
City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue

Brooksville, Florida 34601-2041
Telephone: (352) 540-3810

Fax: (352) 544-5424

D. Changes to Designees

In the event that different representatives are designated by either party after execution of this
Contract, notice of the name and address of the new representatives wilf be rendered in writing to the
other party and said notification attached to originals of this Contract.

CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS

Modifications to provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been rendered in writing and
duly signed by both parties. The parties agree to renegotiate this Contract if stated revisions of any
applicable laws, regulations or increases/decreases in allocations make changes to this Contract necessary.

TERMINATION/CANCELLATION

Termination at Will

This Contract may be terminated by either party upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days notice, without
cause, unless a lesser time is mutually agreed upon by both parties. Said notice shall be delivered by
certified mail (return receipt requested), by other method of delivery whereby an original signature is
obtained, or in-person with proof of delivery. In the event of termination, the Department will be paid for all
costs incurred and hours worked up to the time of termination. The Department shall reimburse the Agency
any advance payments, prorated as of last day worked.

CONDITIONS
A Records
The Department and the Agency agree to maintain books, records and documents (including

electronic storage media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and
practices.
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CONTRACT # WS870

The Department and the Agency agree to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or
other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes, and made or
received by the Agency in conjunction with this Contract. It is expressly understood that substantial
evidence of either the Department’s or the Agency’s refusal to comply with this provision shall
constitute a breach of Contract.

B. Annual Appropriation

The Department’s performance under this Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by
the legislature. It is also contingent upon receipt of payments as outlined in Addendum A and in
Section III, COMPENSATION.

C. Disputes

Any dispute concerning performance of the Contract shall be resolved informally by the Contract
Manager. Any dispute that can not be resolved informally shall be reduced to writing and delivered
to the Assistant Secretary of Institutions. The Assistant Secretary of Institutions, shall decide the
dispute, reduce the decision to writing, and deliver a copy to the Agency with a copy to the Contract
Administrator and Contract Manager.

D. Force Majeure

Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage suffered as a result of any delay or failure in
performance under this Contract or interruption of performance resulting directly or indirectly from
acts of God, civil, or military authority, acts of public enemy, war, riots, civil disturbances,
insurrections, accidents, fire, explosions, earthquakes, floods, water, wind, lightning, strikes, labor
disputes, shortages of suitable parts, materials, labor, or transportation to the extent such events are
beyond the reasonable control of the party claiming excuse from liability resulting there from.

E. Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Contract shall not affect the
other provisions hereof and this Contract shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or
unenforceable provision was omitted.

F. Verbal Instructions

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the Agency as a result of any
discussions with any Department employee. Only those communications which are in writing from
the Department’s administrative or project staff identified in Section IV, CONTRACT
MANAGEMENT, of this Contract shall be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of
the Department. Only communications from the Agency that are signed and in writing will be
recognized by the Department as duly authorized expressions on behalf of the Agency.

G. No Third Party Beneficiaries

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, neither this Contract, nor any amendment, addendum
or exhibit attached hereto, nor term, provision or clause contained therein, shall be construed as
being for the benefit of, or providing a benefit to, any party not a signatory hereto.

Page 8 of 12
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CONTRACT # WS870

Waiver of breach of any provision of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall
not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Contract.

This Contract will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Any action
hereon or in connection herewith shall be brought in Leon County, Florida.

This Contract and Addendum A contain all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed by their undersigned officials
as duly authorized.

AGENCY: CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

SIGNED
BY:
NAME:
TITLE:
DATE:
FEID #:
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Approved as to form and legality,
subject to execution.
SIGNED SIGNED
BY: BY:
NAME: Michael D. Crews NAME: Jennifer A. Parker
TITLE: Secretary TITLE: General Counsel
Department of Corrections Department of Corrections
DATE: ‘ DATE:
Page 9 of 12
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AGENDA ITEM No, _&-5~ 5
77{}__,,

s MEMORANDUM
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: CORRECTION - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
(JAG) Program — County Wide, 2013/14

DATE: August 05, 2013

GENERAL SUMMARY: The 2013/14 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant award
amount for Hernando County has been revised for award of $70,614 (see Attachment 1, letter from
Florida Department of Law Enforcement). These funds are to be used by local units of governments to
support approved programs to prevent and control crime and to improve the criminal justice system.

As a condition of participation in this program, the units of government in each county must reach a
consensus concerning the expenditure of these funds. This consensus must include the projects to be
implemented as well as the agency responsible for such implementation. The Hernando County Board
of County Commissioners (BOCC) assumed responsibility as the coordinating unit of government and
appointed the Substance Abuse Policy Advisory Board as the county coordinator for this program. The
Certificate of Participation was filed by the BOCC as required.

| The Substance Abuse Policy Advisory Board met on June 19, 2013, at the County Clerk’s meeting room,
Hernando County Court House, Brooksville, FL and have subsequently agreed to the following
recommended distribution of monies from the 2013/14 grant award:

* Hernando County Sheriff’s Office: TECHNOLOGY UPGRADE $26,149.
» City of Brooksville Police Dept.: MARKED PATROL VEHICLE PURCHASE PROGRAM $26,149.
» Court Administration st Judicial Circuit: H.C. ADULT DRUG COURT PROGRAM $18,316.

BUDGET IMPACT: Grant award is for the 2013/14 budget year. Matching funds are not required.
The Brooksville grant amount of $26,149 will cover the cost of one state bid marked police package
vehicle,

LEGAL REVIEW: The City is vested with home rule authority pursuant to Article VII, Section 2 of the
Constitution of the State of Florida and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 1.03 of the
Charter, the City has all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct
municipal government, perform municipal functions and render municipal services to include matters
of fiscal impact and acceptance of grant funds.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Brooksville City Council approve and
authorize the Mayor to sign the consensus / 51% letter approving the recommendations forwarded by
the Substance Abuse Policy Advisory Board and approve the City Manager to sign the Application for
Funding as the Authorizing Official of Government Unit/Designated Representative of the City of
Brooksville for both the application as well as the acceptance of the grant award. The final grant
application is due in the offices of Florida Department of Law Enforcement no later than July 31, 2013.

ATFTACHMENT: 1. Letter from Petrina Tuttle Herring, Administrator, FDLE
2. Mayor’s Letter of Agreement to Allocation




Attachment 1



" FDLE A

Florida Department of Business Support : : i Rick Scott, Governor
Law Enforcement Office of Criminal Justice Gran Pam Bondi, Aftomey General
‘ Post Office Box 1480 : Jeff Atwater, Chief Financial Officer
Gerald M. Bailgy Tallahasses, FL 323021489 Adam Putham, Commissioner of Agriculture
Commissioner {850) 617-1260
www.fdle state.flus ' ' '
&
July 18, 2013

Mr. Don Barbee, Jr. '
Chairman, Substance Abuse Policy Advisory Board
Clerk of Circuit Court & Comptroller :

20 North Main Street, Room 131

Brooksville, Florida 34601

Dear Mr. Barbee, Jr.;

The Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) was informed by the United States
Department of Justice (DOJ) that the anticipated Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) funds
+ allocated to the State of Florida will increase as a result of including additional unobligated funds
from previous federal fiscal years.. We are pleased to announce that this results in an increase
of JAG Countywide funding for each county. The amount allocated for Hernando County has
increased. to. $70,614. The letters of approval representing agreement among at Ieast 51
percent of all units of local government representing at least 51 ‘percent of the county population
must show the new allocation of dollars to each project in the county.

The deadlinefor the on-line submission of the JAG Countywide applications is extended until
July 31, 2013. Piease contact Planning Manager Janice Parish if this deadline poses additional
concerns, if you have any questions regarding changes with your JAG application, or you need
the application returned in the Subgrant Information Management On-Line (SIMON}) system.
The Office of Criminal Justice Grants (OCJG) is available for assistance Monday through
Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. EDT. For issues relating to SIMON, please contact (850) 617-
1250 and reference the SIMON Help Desk. '

Sincerely, _

Petrina Tuttle Herring - - .
Administrator ‘

PTH/p

c¢c: Chief Official for Hemando County
Mayors in Hernando County . ' s
Law Enforcement Agencies in Hernando County -
. Project Directors in Hernando County. ... . :

Service < Integrity » Respect » Quallty
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Phone: (352} 540-3810
Fax: (352) 544-5424

City of Brooksville

July 25, 2013

Mzt. Clayton H. Wilder, Administrator
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road

‘Tallahassee, Florida 32308

Dear Mr. Wilder:
In compliance with State of Florida Ruke 171D-9, F.A.C., the Brooksville City Council apptoves the

distribution of $70,614 of Federal Fiscal Year 2013 Edward Byrne Memotial Justice Assistance
Grant (JAG) Program — JAG Countywide funds for the following projects within Hernando

County:
Sub-grantee ' Tide of Project - Amount

Court Administration Fifth Hernando County Adult Drug $17,043

Judicial Citcuit Coutt Program
City of Brooksville Police Department ~ Marked Patrol Vehicle Puichase Program $26,149
Hernando County Sheriff’s Office Technology Upgrade $26,149
Sincerely,
Lara Bradburn, Mayor
Btooksville City Council

201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601-2041



AGENDA ITEM NO. A=/
gW wderson 7

Hernando County Supervisor of Elections

June 28, 2013

Jennene Norman-Vacha
City Manager

201 Howell Ave.
Brooksville, FL 34601

Dear. Ms. Norman-Vacha:

I am in the process of reviewing precinct layouts that involve the City of Brooksville.
Currently the Supervisor of Elections (SOE) office has four precincts where city ballots
are distributed to voters on election day. My plan is to redraw the precincts and make
Precinct 4 (Jerome Brown Center) a precinct where all residents in the City of
Brooksville would vote on election day. By doing this it would eliminate two precincts;
Precinet 11 (South Brooksville Community Center) and Precinct 26 (Cloverleaf). It
would also move all city voters out of Precinct 10 (Grace World Outreach). All non-city
voters in Precinct 4 (Jerome Brown Center) would be relocated to another precinct. This
would make 4,829 total registered voters at Precinct 4, all city voters.

We are also in the beginning stages of making the South Brooksville Community Center
an Early Voter center to further assist and serve the residents of Brooksville. My goal is
to create efficiencies in the SOF office while increasing access for all voters.

All voters who would be impacted by this change will receive updated voter information
cards as well as information about how to request a vote by mail ballot and early voting
opportunities.

I have included current voter registration numbers for each of the precincts referenced

above as well as historical voting data on each of the precincts. I look forward in
speaking with you and the Brooksville City Council in the near future.

Ndes

Sincerely ,

Shirley Anderso
Supervisor of Elections

20 North Main Street * Room 165 = Brooksville, FL 34601 » P 352.754.4125 « F 352.754.4425
e-mail: shirleyanderson@hernandocounty.us



Precinct 4

%Turnout” o 64.7= 367 7 .61;.3:

Precinct26 - 2008 2010 2012




Current Voter Registration
Precinct 4- Jerome Brown Center-
4048 registered voters

2290 City Voters

1758 Non City

Precinct 10 (Grace World Qutreach)
4063 registered voters

761 City Voters

3302 Non City

Precinct 11 (South Brooksville Community Center)
1047 registered voters
All City Voters

Precinct 26 (Cloverleaf)
731 registered voters
All City Voters
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AGENDA ITEM
MEMORANDUM

FROM:

SUBJECT: SCREENING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION FOR THE 2013
GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN

DATE: AUGUST 35, 2013

GENERAL. SUMMARY/BACKGROUND: Nominations for the 2013 “Great
Brooksvillian of the Year” closed on April 30, 2013. Six nominations were received — John C.
Emerson; Joseph M. Mason, Jr.; Daniel B. Merritt, Sr.; Frasier Mountain and Martin
“Dan” Patrick.

Pursuant to Official Policy No. 2-2012, the Screening Committee met to review the nominations
and to make their recommendations to City Council. Their recommendations will be presented
to Council at the meeting.

Traditionally the award ceremony is scheduled to be held on Thursday, October 10, 2013, in
conjunction with the Fall City Hall Art Reception.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: As long as the event is held in conjunction with the above referenced
Art Reception, the financial impact is nominal (basically the cost of the award plagques and
invitations/mailings budgeted at approximately $200.00).

LEGAL REVIEW: Process pursuant to provisions of Official Policy No. 3-2008 and 2-2012.

RECOMMENDATION: Council selection of the 2013 “Great Brooksvillian of the Year”.

ATTACHMENT: Nominees




2013 GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN

NOMINATION

Jids C Enerion



“Great Brooksvillian”

NOMINATION FORM

(Please type or print clearly in black ink)

“Great Brooksuillian” Nominee:
o E MEZSON

a) Address & Contact Information for nominee or family representative:

Name if representative:
J[)HN EMER s

20 Lepepx <4

Dumeinlle TL. Zhiep)

Phone No.: ()92~ v Fax No;

Email address (If available): llﬂ“kﬂﬁ f%o A @ihl qu& Lzlg%g T~ [)Om

b) Nominee Year of Birth | Eﬁ?i 2»

Nominee Year of Death (if applicable) I q 5 ]

|

c) A photo or image of the nominee is

Enclosed ( ) Date taken
Not enclosed ( )

d) Please describe the nominee’s overall contributions to the community.

When and where were those contributions made? Was this person a resident of]
the City at the time of their contribution?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

m?, Eueren Ln(’nl Nl Mﬂ (‘mLm CLWm?ﬂé% n”»v Pan
W 1 4ig Umehenchun, bsntso e, bis b bnas ;ﬂp
’ﬂ% \711\1 (lmm@ i rmh& &mmp] \’nb ,1]—1 W\ Wz,

“U}\\»\m 10007, .




2.

e) Did the contributions of this nominee also benefit  outside the community?
If so, how?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

List any additional resources available for background information such as articles,
books, etc.




3.

Name and contact information for person sponsoring the nomination:

Email address (If available):

Phone No.: Fax No:

PER OFFICIAL POLICY 3-2008, NOMINEES MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1.

A nominee must be or have been a resident of the City. The
contribution for which they are being recognized should
refiect a significant contribution to the City, County, State
or to the greater good of mankind,

A nominee may be alive or deceased at the time of nomination.

A nominee should be a person whose contributions are
generally known and readily recognizable by our residents.

Individuals can be nominated by anyone in the community and a
standard nomination form will be used by City Council
annually during the nemination period.

Persons nominated from previous years may be re-nominated if
not selected. A nominee cannot be nominated for the award if
they are a previous recipient.

Self nominations will not be accepted.

Send Completed Application to:

City of Brooksville
Attn: City Clerk
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601




2013 GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN

NOMINATION

07/22/2009



1, 4\ e

- Colonel Nicholas J. Morana

U.S.Army (ret)
4257 Drummond Ave.
Spring Hill, Florida 34608-3847
Phone: (352) 683-4945

April 30, 2013

Mayor and Members of VIA HAND DELIVERY
Brooksville City Council -

Brooksville, Florida 34601
Dear Mayor and Council Members:

Once again I place in nomination the name of Joseph M. Mason, Ir., to be recognized as the
2013 Great Brooksvillian. The criteria for this recognition is to single out a person who has made
significant contrlbutlons to the history, culture or economy of Brooksville.

A review of the attached clearly proves that Mr. Mason has contributed in all of the criteria
in an outstanding manner, '

Mr. Mason was born and raised in Brooksville, As an adult, he left Brooksvﬂle to serve his
country as a naval officer. After a three year stint in Tampa as an attorney, all of his life has been
" spent in Brooksville.

In the early days, Mr. Mason served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Brooksville’s
+ only hospital. His guidance and counsel resulted in eventually seeing three hospitals built in
Hernando County.

The joining of two Chambers of Commerce was another achievement of Mr, Mason. The
ambitious and feelings of the members need not be discussed at this time, but it took a superhuman
effort to eventually join the two organizations.

Mr. Mason’s advice has been sought by many governors relative to appointments.

I am sure if you review the attached, you will conclude as I have, that Mr. Mason deserves
to be the 2013 Great Brooksvillian. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

M@OI&DR

P.S. Currently Mr. Mason is serving as akéy member of the Hernando County Enrichment Centers,
Inc. His advice and counsel has led the Centers to new heights in activities, members, and
volunteers. -

NIM/Ae\MOR042513.B- 1TMM. wpd



“Great Brooksvillian”

NOMINATION FORM
(Please type or print clearly in black ink)

“Great Brooksuvillian” Nominee:

Joseph M. Mason,. Jr,

a) Address & Contact Information for nominee or family representative:

Name if representative: N/A
Residence: 3 North Orange Avenue (Zip: 34601-2812)

Office: 101 South Main Street (Zip: 34601-3336)
Mail: Post Office Box 1900 (Zip: 34605-1900)

Brooksﬁille, Florida

Qffice Office
Phone No.:_(352) 796-0795 Fax No:_ (352) 796-0235

' Email address (If available): JoeMason@McGeeMasonlLaw.com .

b)  Nominee Year of Birth 1943
N/A

Nominee Year of Death (if applicable)
c) A photo or image of the nominee is

Enclosed { ) Date taken
Notenclosed (X) On file w/ City

d) Please describe the nominee’s overall contributions to the community.

When and where were those contributions made? Was this person a resident of]
the City at the time of their contribution?

(Attach additional sheet if hecessary):
See the nominator's letter,.Mr. Mason's attached Resume!,

and the attached Additiomnal Shéet.




e) Did the contributions of this nominee also benefit  outside the community?
If so, how?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

See the nominator's letter, Mr. Mason's attached Resume',

and the attached Additional Sheet.

List any additional resources available for background information such as articles,
books, ete.

See the Tampa Tribune, Hermnando Today, and Hernando Times

newspaper articles and editorals over the past 30 years regarding

Joe Mason's involvement in, and contributions to, his community

and state. No "scrapbook" has been kept by him, but the indices

of the newspapers will show the extent thereof.




3.

Name and contact information for person sponsoring the  nomination:

Nicholas J. Morana

4257 Drummond Avenue

Spring Hill, Florida 34608-3847

Phone No.: (352) 683-4945 Fax No: (352) 683-1956

Email address (If available); njmorana@tampabay.rr.com

PER OFFICIAL POLI CY 3-2008, NOMINEES MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1.

A nominee must be or have been a resident of the City. . The
contribution for which they are being recognized should
reflect a significant contribution to the Ccity, County, State
or to the greater good of mankind. '

A nominee may be alive or deceased at the time of nomination.

A nominee should be a person whose contributions are
generally known and readily recognizable by cur regidents.

Individuals can be nominated by anyone in the community and a
standard nomination form will be used by City Council
annually during the nomination period.

Persons nominated from previous years may be re-nominated if
not selected. A nominee cannot be nominated for the award if
they are a previous recipient.

Self nominations will not be accepted.

Send Completed Application to:

City of Brooksville
Attn: City Clerk
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601




ADDITIONAL SHEET |

Joe Mason is alife-long resident of the City of Brooksville, having maintained his residence
in the City throughout his having lived in many different places during his collegiate, military, and
legal careers, prior to his 1982 return to his Brooksville roots for the remainder of his legal career.
In fact, he is so proud of his Brooksville heritage that, at great expense and risk to himself, he
defended, in court, his right to be a voting resident of the City of Brooksville.

During his term as President of the Hernando County Chamber of Commerce, Inc., Joe
Mason formed the joint task force, with the West Hernando Chamber of Commerce, Inc., that led
to the merger of the two Chambers of Commerce into the Greater Hernando Chamber of Commerce,
Inc., and a significant lessening of the tensions that had grown between the Brooksville and the
Spring Hill communities. As a member of Leadership Florida, he was the inspiration behind
establishing, chaired the organizing committee for, and was the incorporator of, Leadership
Hernando, Inc. '

As a director and two term President of Withlacoochee Area Legal Services, Inc. (WALS),
Joe Mason was instrumental in providing free legal services for the economically disadvantaged of
Hernando, Citrus, Sumter, and Marion Counties, In 2004, as the founding President of both Legal
Advocacy Center of Central Florida, Inc., and Community Legal Services of Mid-Florida, Inc., he
was instrumental in combining WALS with Central Florida Legal Services, Inc., and Greater
Orlando Area Legal Services, Inc., to form the largest law firm, outside of metropolitan Orlando, in
atwelve county area, to provide free legal services for the economically disadvantaged residents of
central Florida, from the Gulf Coast to the Atlantic Coast. -

During his term as Chair of Lykes Memorial Hospital, Inc., Joe Mason was responsible for
terminating the opposition of that hospital to the establishment of Oak Hill Hospital, and the
provision of hospital services to western Hernando County. He also, as Chair of Regional
" Healthcare, Inc., was instrumental in obtaining a Certificate of Need for, and the construction of,
Spring Hill Regional Hospital, thereby further extending healthcare to western Hernando County.

Joe Mason has served The Florida Bar in many capacities. He served for twenty (20) years
as amember, and is a past chair, of the Clients’ Security Fund Committee, which reimburses clients
who have lost money through the dishonest actions of their lawyers. He served on, and chaired, the
Judicial Nominating Commission for the Fifth Judicial Circuit (Hernando, Citrus, Sumter, Marion,
and Lake Counties). He served on, and chaired, one of the two Grievance Committees for the Fifth
Judicial Circuit. He served on the Unauthorized Practice of Law Committee for the Fifth Judicial
Circuit. He served on the statewide Professional Ethics Committee. In addition, he has served on
several other committees of The Florida Bar.

Joe Mason has served his community, and contributed to its welfare, in many other
capacities, a few of which are:

Two term director and two term President of Hernando Association
for Retarded Citizens, Inc. (now ARC of the Nature Coast, Inc.).



Thirty (30) year active member of the Kiwanis Club of Brooksville,
Inc.

Director and Past President of Brooksville Kiwanis Foundation, Inc.
Founder and President of White Star Foundation of Florida, Inc.

Sixteen year member of the Executive Board of Gulf Ridge Council,
Boys Scouts of America.

Director of the Enrichment Centers, Inc., of Hernando County.
Tn addition, Joe Mason has been a life-long member of First United-Methodist Chutch of

Brooksville. He has served on the Church’s Administrative Council for twelve years, and chaired
its Finance Committce for six years. He has also served his Church in many other capacities.



JosePH M, MAsON, JR.*

CAROLE Joy Barice’ 7

RICHARD M. MITZEL#

OF COUNSEL

*ALSO ADMITTED IN THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
ALSO ADMITTED IN ALASKA
ALSO ADMITTED IN MICHIGAN

"BOARD CERTIFIED IN LocaL GOVERNMENT Law

PERSONAL INFORMATION

Law OFFICES OF

MCGEE & MASON

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
1 SOUTH MAIN STREET
POST OFFICE BCOX | SO0
BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA 34605-1 900

TELEPHONE: (352) 796-0795
FACSIMILE: (352) 796-0235

WRITER'S DIRECT E-MAIL ADDRESS:
JOEMASON@MCGEEMASONLAW. COM

January 1, 2013
RESUME

JOSEPH M. MASON, JR.

Date of Birth: December 16, 1943

Place of Birth: Brooksville, Hernando County, Florida

RicHarRD E. MCGEE, SR.
(1916 - 2005)

| 520 WEST CLEVELAND STREET
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33806
TELEPHONE: (813) 259- 1008

PLEASE REPLY TO:
BROOKSVILLE

Married: To thle former Katherine .Anne Vaughan (DOM: 12/30/72)

Children:

Mary Katherine Meyer (Mrs. Benton B.)

Celia Anne Mason

Grandchildren: McLaurin Elizabeth Meyer (DOB 12/19/08)

Brennan Mason Meyer (DOB 08/18/11)

EDUCATION

Hernando High School, Brooksville, Florida (1961)

University of Florida: Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
: (Major in Banking and Finance), May, 1965

University of Florida: Juris Doctor (with honors), December, 1967

University of Florida: Enrolled in Master of Business Administration {MBA) Program

(no certificate or degree), Spring, 1968

JURISDICTIONS WHERE LICENSED TO PRACTICE LAW

Florida: Admitted 1968

District of Columbia: Admitted 1969

United States District Court, Middle District of Florida
United States Court of Appeals, Eleventh Circuit

United States Court of Appeals, District of Columbia Circuit
United States Tax Court

United States Court of Appeals for the Armed Forces

Law OFFICES OF McGEE & MASON, PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION * POST OFFICE Box 1900 * BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA 34805-1 900

" (352) 796-0795



PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

The Florida Bar (1968 - )

The District of Columbia Bar (1969 - )

American Bar Association (1972 - 1998)

Hillsborough County Bar Association (1992 - 1986)

Tri-County (Citrus, Hernando, and Sumter Counties) Bar Association (1982 - 1986)
Hernando County Bar Association (1982 - )

Citrus-Hernando American Inn of Court (Master) (Charter Member 2000 - )
Phi Delta Phi Professional Legal Fraternity (1966 - )

Alpha Kappa Psi Professional Business Fraternity (1964 - )

PROFESSIONAL L EGAL EXPERIENCE

Privaté Practice:

McGee & Mason, P.A.

101 South Main Street
Brooksville, Florida 34601 3336
July 1, 1999 -

Joseph M. Mason, Jr., P.A.

101 South Main Street
Brooksville, Florida 34601-3336
-January 1, 1999 - June 30, 1999

Mason & Merritt, a partnership of professional associations
101 South Main Street C
Brooksville, Florida 34601-3336

- January 1, 1998 - December 31, 1998

Merritt & Mason, P.A.

101 South Main Street

Brooksville, Florida 34601-3336

January 1, 1985, through December 31, 1997

McGee, Mason, & Luckie

1 East Jefferson Street

Brooksville, Florida 34601

July 1, 1984, through December 31, 1984

McGee & Mason, P.A.

1 East Jefferson Street

Brooksville, Florida 34601

July 1, 1982, through June 30, 1984

2

Law OFFICES OF McGEE & MASON, PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION * PosT OFFICE Box | D00 * BROOKSVYILLE, FLORIDA 34605-1900 * (352) 7960785



Shackelford, Farrior, Stailings & Evans, P.A.

Tampa, Florida

July 17, 1972, through June 30, 1982

(Associate, 1972 - 1977; Stockholder/Principal, 1977 - 1982)

Corporate Counsel:,
Florida Mining & Materials Corp.

Brooksville and Tampa, Florida
Special Project (Public offering of stock)
April through June, 1972

Hernando State Bank (now SunTrust Bank, Nature Coast)
Brooksville, Florida

Special Project (Chartering of affiliate bank)

January through March, 1972

United States Military:
United States Naval Reserve :

Lieutenant, Judge Advocate General's Corps, USNR
Active Duty: October, 1968, through December, 1971
Staff Judge Advocate, Commander Carrier Division Nine:
May, 1970, through December, 1970 '
May, 1971, through December, 1971
Command Judge Advocate, USS Oriskany (CVA 34):
April, 1970, through December, 1971
Staff Attorney, Investigations Division, Office of the Judge Advocate General:
March, 1969, through March, 1970 :
U.S. Naval Training Center:
1U.S. Naval Justice School _
, December, 1968, through February, 1970
U.S. Naval Reserve Officer Training School
October, 1968, through December, 1968

United_States Government:
Securities & Exchange Commission
Washington, D. C.
Trial Attorney, Division of Corporate Regulation
June, 1968, through September, 1968

PROFESSIONAL LEGAL ACTIVITIES

The Florida Bar:
Member (Chair, 1985 - 1986), Grievance Committee "A" for the
Fifth Judicial Circuit (1983 - 1986)

3
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Member (Chair, 1986 - 1987), Clients' Security Fund Committee

(1982 - 2002)
Member (Chair, 1990 - 1992), Judicial Nominating Commission,

Fifth Judicial Circuit (1988 - 1992) ‘
Member, Unlicensed Practice of Law Committee, Fifth Judicial

Circuit (1989 - 1999)
Member, Professional Ethics Committee (1991 - 1993)
Member, Legal Education and Admission to Practice Committee (1981)
Delegate, All Bar Conference (all sessions, 1990 - 1997) '
Member, The Florida Bar Speakers Bureau (1997 - Date)

Hernando County Bar Association:
President (1988 - 1989 and 2001 - 2002)
Vice-President (1987 - 1988 and 2000 - 2001)
Secretary-Treasurer (1986 - 1987)
Chair, Liberty Bell Award Committee (1990 - Date)
Law Week Committee (1986 - Date; Chair, 1989 and 2002) | 7
Chair, American Cancer Society Relay for Life Program (2004 - 2006)
Legislative Liaison for Local Law Library Funding (2004) '
Bench/Bar Liaison Committee (2009 - )

Citrus-Hernando American Inn of Court:
Member, Organizing Committee (1999 - 2000)
Charter Member (Master) (2000 - Date)
Pupilage Group Co-Leader (2008-2009)

PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES TO THE DISADVANTAGED

Withlacoochee Area Legal Services, Inc. (WALS) [a Legal Services Corporation {LSC)
provider]: ’
Director (2000 - 2004)
President (2002 - 2004)
Member, Legal Services Corporation, Inc., Florida Region 3
Transition Council (2002 - 2003)

WALS, Central Florida Legal Services, Inc. (CFLS), and Greater Orlando Area Legal
Services, Inc. (GOALS) [each an L.SC provider]:
Member, and Chair, Joint Board LSC Region 3 Consolidation Task Force (2003)

Legal Advocacy Center of Central Florida, Inc. [formerly known as WALS, and now a non-
LSC provider}:

Director (2004 - )

President (2004 - 2005)

Executive Committee (2004 - )

Chair, Personnel Committee (2005 - )

4
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Community Legal Services of Mid-Florida, Inc. [formerly known as CFLS (the survivor of
the merger of CFLS and GOALS), and an LSC provider]:

Director (2004 - )

President (2004 - 2005)

Executive Committee (2004 - )

Chair, Personnel Committee (2005- )

Legal Aid Educational and Supportive Services, Inc. (LAESS)
Organizing Member, Board of Directors (2009 - )

Pro-Bono Publico Attorney of the Year Award for Hernando Countv (2006)

BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTION EXPERIENCE AND ACTIVITY

Hernando State Bank (now SunTrust Bank, Nature Coast):
Part-Time Employee
(School Vacations, 1956 - 1968)

SunTrust Bank, Nature Coast (formerly Hernando State Bank):
Member, Board of Directors (1973 - 1993)
Executive Committee (1973-1993)
Special Counsel (1972 - 1993)

Hernando Banking Corporation (merged into SunBanks, Inc., 1985):
Member, Organizing Board of Directors (1981 - 1985)
General Counsel (1981 - 1985)

Florida Bankers Association:
Member, Legislative Liaison Contact Bankers Committee
(1981 - 1984)
Founding Member, Conference of Florida Bank Counsel (1983)

CHURCH ACTIVITIES

Florida Annual Conference, United Methodist Church
Legal Advisory Council (2006 - )

- Gulf Ridge District, Florida Annual Conference
District Legal Advisor (2006 - )

First United Methodist Church of Brooksville, Inc.:
Vice-Chair, Administrative Council (2006 - 2008)
Chair, Executive Committee (2003)
Administrative Board (1986 - 1988)
Church Council (1997 - )

5
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Finance Committee (1989, 1997 - 2003)
Chair (1997 - 2003)
Member, Committee on Lay Leadership
(formerly Nominating Committee) (1993 - 1996 and 2003 - 2004)
General Chair, Budget Campaign (1987 and 1988)
‘Growth and Planning Committee (1990 - 1991)
Chair, Claim the Flame Fund Drive (1991)
Chair, Raise the Roof Campaign (2001)
Coordinator, Connectional Giving (2004 - )
Co-Chair, Debt Reduction Task Force (2009 - )

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Leé.dership Florida (1991 - Date): .
Member, Class X (1991 - 1992)

Member, Advanced Leadership Committee (1993-1994)
Member, Statewide Community Initiative (1993-1994)

Hernando County Chamber of Commerce, Inc.:
Director (1984 - 1992)
Executive Committee (1988 - 1992)
Member, Governmental Affairs Committee (1984 - 1986)
Divisional Vice-President for Governmental Affairs (1986 - 1988)
President-Elect (1988 - 1989)
President (1989 - 1990)
Chair, Hernando County/West Hernando Chambers Merger Committee (1988 - 1991)
Corporate Secretary (1991 - 1992)
President/CEO Search Committee (1991)
- Leadership Hernando Organizing Director and President (1990)

Leadership Hernando, Inc.‘:
Incorporator (1990)

Board of Directors (1990 - 1992)
Chair (1990 - 1992)

Hernando County Committee of 100, Inc.:
Member (1982 - 1992)

Director (Ex Officio) 1989 - 1990

Hemando County Local Disaster Mitigation Strategy Working Group
Member and Chair (1998 - 1999)

Hernando County Disaster Local Mitigation Strategy Planning Committee
Member and Chair (1998 - 1999) :

Hernando County Disaster Mitigation Advisory Committee
Member (1994 - 1997)

6
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Hernando County Land Use Planning Task Fofce:
Member and Chair (1985 - 1991)

Hernando County Comprehensive Planning Citizens Advisory Committee:
Member (1985 - 1991)

Chair (1985)

Hemando Association for Retarded Citizens, Inc.:
Member (1983 - 1992)
Director {1984 - 1989)
Vice-President (1985)
President (1986 and 1987)

Kiwanis Club of Brooksville, Inc.:
Member (1982 - Date)
Director (1983 - 1989)
Chair, Boy Scouts of America Building Committee (1984 - 1985)
Chair, Citizenship Services Committee (1985 - 1986)
Member, Community Affairs Committee (1991 - 1993)
Member, Youth Services Committee (1995 - 1998}
Member, Community Service Committee (1999 - 2002)
Member, Youth Services Committee (2009 - 2010)
Thirty (30) Years Perfect Attendance

Brooksville Kiwanis Foundation:
Member (1998 - Date)
.Director (2002 - Date)
President (2002 - 2003)
Vice-President (2003 - 2004)
Investment Committee Chair (2004 - 2006)

Florida Kiwanis Foundation Youth Activities Center Management Committee:
Founding Member (1985 - 1992)

General Counsel (1985 - 1992)

Regional Healthcare, Inc. (formerly Lykes Health Systems, Inc.) (1986 - 1993):
Corporate parent of Hernando Healthcare, Inc., and Spring Hill Community Hospital, Inc.
Chair, Organizing Board of Directors (1986 - 1993)
Chair, Executive Committee (1986 - 1993)
Chair, Nominating Committee (1986 - 1993)
Hernando Healthcare, Inc. (formerly Lykes Memorial Hospital, Inc.):
Corporate licensee of Brooksville Regional Hospital (formerly Lykes Memorial Hospital)
Chair, Board of Directors (1984 - 1993)
Chair, Executive Committee (1984 - 1993)
Chair, Hospital Joint Conference Committee (1984 - 1993)
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Spring Hill Community Hospital, Inc.
Corporate licensee of Spring Hill Regional Hospital

Chair, Organizing Board of Directors (1987 - 1992)
Chair, Executive Committee (1987 - 1993)
Chair, Organizing Hospital Joint Conference Committee (1990 - 1993)

The Enrichment Centers Inc. of Hernando County
Vice-Chair, Administrative Council (2006 - 2007)
Member, Board of Directors (2000 - )
General Counsel, (2000 - )

Epsilon Zeta [of Sigma Nu] Home Association. Inc.:
Director (1974 - )

Sigma Nu Educational Foundation, Inc.
Director (2009 - )

White Star Foundation of Florida, Inc. (1982 - )
Founding President (1982 -__ _ )
Member and Chair, Founding Board of Directors (1982 - ___)
Member and Chair, Founding Scholarship Awards Committee (1982 - )

Hernando Community Blood Bank. Inc.:
Member, Building Fund Committee (1988 - 1991)

Hernando County Education Foundation:
. Member, BrainQuest (2000) Committee

Gulf Ridge Council, Boy Scouts of America
Executive Board (1994 -____ )
Nominating Committee (1995 - 1996)
Properties Committee (1995 - 1996)

Withlacoochee District, Gulf Ridge Council, Boy Scouts of America
District Council (1995 - 1997)
Nominating Committee (1997 - 1999)

COLLEGIATE ACTIVITIES (University of Florida)

Sigma Nu Fraternity (Epsilon Zeta Chapter):
Comptroller (1962 - 1965)

Chancellor (1965 - 1966)

Business Administration Student Organization Council (BASOC):
Member (1963 - 1965)

President (1964 - 1965)

8
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Foofball Block Seating Committee
Member (1963 - 1965)

Chair (1964 - 1965)

Finance Society of America, University of Florida Chapter:
Member (1962 - 1965)
President (1964 - 1965)

University of Florida Law Review:
Member (1966)

John Marshall Bar Association:
Member (1965 - 1967)
Director (1966)

Student Traffic Court:
Justice (1964 - 1966)

Student-Faculty Disciplina_g Committee:
Student Member (1967 - 1968)

Honor Court: :
Chief Assistant Attorney General (1966)
Candidate (unsuccessful) for Chancellor (1966)

Student Government President's Cabinet:
Secretary of Legal Affairs (1966 - 1967 and 1967 - 1968)

Student Government Election Campaigns:
Presidential Campaign Director (Successful, 1967)

Presidential Campaign Manager (Successful, 1968)
Chancellor of the Honor Court Candidate (Unsuccessful, 1966)

Gator Growl:
Assistant Director (1966)
Producer/Director (1967)

Honors and Awards:
Florida Blue Key
Omicron Delta Kappa
University of Florida Hall of Fame
Who's Who in American Colleges and Universities (1966 - 1967 and 1967 - 1968)
‘Florida Bankers' Association Scholarship (1963 - 1964 and 1964 - 1965)
Florida Law Center Scholarship (1966 and 1967)

9
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2013 GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN

NOMINATION
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|

“Great Brooksvillian”

NOMINATION FORM
(Please type or print clearly in black ink)

1. “Great Brooksvillian”’ Nominee:
HONORABLE DANIEL B. MERRITT, Sr.
Chief Judge Fifth Judicial Circuit (Retired)

a) Address & Contact Information for nominee or family
representative:
Name of representative:
Grace A. Fagan
20 N. Main Street
Hernando County Courthouse
Brooksville, FIL, 34601
Phone No.: 352 754 4860 Fax No: 352 754 4049
Email address (If available): glagan@pcircuit5.org

b) Nominee Year of Birth 1942
Nominee Year of Death (if applicable)
¢) A photo or image of the nominee is
Enclosed(X)Date taken 2007
Not enclosed ()
d) Please describe the nominee’s overall contributions to the
community.,
When and where were those contributions made? Was
this person a resident of the City at the time of their
contribution?
(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

Daniel B. Merritt, Sr. has been a lifelon g resident of
Brooksville, Florida. Judge Merritt is a graduate of Hernando
High School, which all three of his children also attended. He
received his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from
McNeese State University in Lake Charles Louisiana. While in
Louisiana he met and married the mother of his children Judith



Brand Merritt. He acquired his Juris Doctor from the College of
Law at the University of Florida in Gainesville.

Judge Merritt returned to Brooksville to begin his practice, where
he focused on General Civil Trial Practice and Family Law. In
1968, at the age 26, he became the youngest judge in the State of
Florida when he was appointed to be a part-time Municipal Judge
for the City of Brooksville. At that time a lawyer could practice
and still act in the capacity of a municipal judge, provided that
their practice focused solely on civil law, not criminal. Judge
Merritt held the position of Municipal Judge from 1968 to 1973,

While in private practice Judge Merriit held an "AV" rating from
Martindale Hubbell Bar Register of Preeminent Lawyers. He was a
member of the Fifth Judicial Circuit Bar Grievance Committee in
1973, again from 1978-1981 at which time he was the Committee
Chairman, and once more from 1986-1989. Judge Merritt served as
a member of the Fifth Judicial Circuit Nominating Commission
from 1984-1988. From 1992 to the present, Judge Merritt has been
a Florida Supreme Court Certified Family Law Mediator, Circuit
Civil Mediator and a County Court Mediator. Since 1985 Judge
Merritt has been a Florida Bar Board Certified Marital and Family
Law Specialist.

Judge Merritt was appointed to the Circuit Bench in 1998. His
current assignment is the Civil Division: Jury and Non-Jury,
Family Law Division, Probate Division, and 5th Circuit Appellate
Division. Judge Metritt was the Presiding Judge of the 5th Circuit
Appellate Panel from 2001 until the time he retired. He sat on the
Board of the State of Florida's Commission on Responsible
Fatherhood from 2000-2003. As a member of Citrus-Hernando
Inns of Court, he was elected President from 2004-2005. Judge
Merritt was appointed to be the Administrative Judge for Hernando
County in 2005. He was elected by his peers to be Chief Judge of
the Fifth Judicial Circuit beginning January 1. 2007, and remained



both the Administrative Judge for Hernando County and the Chief

Judge of the Fifth Judicial Circuit until his retirement on January 7,
2013,

Judge Merritt has three children: Daniel B. Merritt, Jr., Fifth
Judicial Circuit Judge appointed in 2007; Stacey A. Merritt Rose. a
Speech and Language Pathologist and Administrator of a 209-bed
nursing home; and Shelly K. Merritt Dalton, a Public Relations &
Marketing Director. In 1992, Judge Merritt lost his first wife Judith
and in 1994 he married Deborah Brock Merritt. He is the proud
grandfather of fifteen grandchildren and two great grandchildren.

Judge Merritt is a past Boy Scout and Eagle Scout, and in 2006 the
Gulf Ridge Council Boy Scouts of America honored Judge Merritt
by recognizing him as their Distinguished Citizen of the Year.
Judge Merritt is a member of the Hernando County Cattleman's
Association and the Hernando County Shrine Club.

In 2000 and 2006 Judge Merritt ran unopposed for his circuit
judicial seat. In 2007 he began sharing the bench for the very first
time with his son. Daniel “Tiger" B. Merritt. Jr., who, following in
his father’s footsteps, is now also the Administrative Judge for
Hernando County.

Judge Merritt’s committee and community service includes the
following recognitions and organizations:

Committee Service:

* FLORIDA CONFERENCE OF CIRCUIT JUDGES EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE- 2009- 2011

» STATE OF FLORIDA'S COMMISSION ON RESPONSIBLE
FATHERHOOD- 200-2003 -

e FLORIDA SUPREME COURT REGISTERED JUDICIAL
MENTOR - 2000

» FAMILY LAW ADVISORY GROUP- HERNANDO COUNTY-
CHARIMAN - 2003- Present

e FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT BAR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE -
1973



FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT BAR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN — 1981

FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT BAR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE -
1986-1989

PRESIDENT HERNANDO COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION -
1976

PRESIDENT TRI-COUNTY BAR ASSOICATION - 1976
JUDICIAL NOMINATING COMMISSION- 1984-1998
BOARD OF DIRECTORS- HERNANDO COUNTY LAW
LIBRARY COMMITTEE — 1968-1298

CHAIRMAN- HERNANDO COUNTY LAW LIBRARY
COMMITTEE - 2005-2007

FLORIDA BAR FAMILY LAW SECTION CIVIL RULES AND
FORMS COMMITTEE

SIMPLIFIED DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE RULES AND
FORMS COMMITTEE OF THE FLORIDA BAR FAMILY LAW
SECTION

CITRUS/HERNANDO AMERICAN INNS OF COURT-
1999-Present: MASTER OF THE BENCH

2001-2003: COUNSELOR, VICE PRESIDENT

2004-2005: PRESIDENT

HERNANDO COUNTY TEEN COURT PROGRAM-
VOLUNTEER JUDGE AND ADVISOR

Awards and Recognitions:

*AV” Rated Martindale Hubbell Bar Register of Preeminent
Lawyers

Recipient of Florida Council on Crime and Delinquency-
Chapter 31- Distinguished Judicial Service Award

Recipient of “Coach of the Year” Award - Hernando High
School Tennis Team Coach- 1981

2006 Distinguished Citizens Award, Gulf Ridge Boy Scouts of
America

Youngest Judge in State of Florida when appointed as
Municipal Judge for City of Brooksville- 1968

First Chief Judge in the Fifth Circuit to be elected from and
headquartered in the tri-county of the Fifth Circuit

First member of the Florida Bar to be Board Certified in Family
Law in Hernando and Tri-County

Memberships/Organizations  Member:

Florida Bar Association-108617
American Bar Association
Hernando County Bar Association Member



Hernando County Law Library Committee
Justice Teaching Institute
Florida Conference of Circuit Judges
American Judges Association
Florida Academy of Professional Mediators
Kiwanis International
International Inns of Court
Family Law Advisory Group- Hemando County
Phi Alpha Delta Alumni
Eagle Scout- 1957-Present
Boy Scout Troop #71, Scout Master and Asst. Scout Master
(prior)
District Director- Boy Scouts Gulf Ridge Council — 1994/1995
- District Vice Chairman- Boy Scouts- Withlacoochee District-
1995/1996
President, Brooksville Golf & Country Club 1975 & 1987
President, Brooksville Kiwanis Club — 1976
Hernando High School Tennis Team Coach- 1981
Free and Accepted Masons-Hernando County Lodge 97
Valley of Tampa, Orient of Florida, Scottish Rite of
Freemasonry, S.J. 32°
» Ancient and Accepted Order of the Nobles of the Mystic Shrine,
Egypt Temple, Tampa, FL
¢ Hernando County Cattlemen’s Association
» Phi Mu Alpha Sinfonia Professional Musicians Fraternity

e) Did the contributions of this nominee also benefit outside the community? If so, how?
(Attach additional sheet if necessary):
Please see Membership and Organizations listed above. His
contributions to Hernando County and specifically, Brooksville are
limitless.

2, List any additional resources available for background information such as
articles, books, ete.
Numerous articles written for the Fifth Judicial Circuit newsletter
“Take Five.” Available upon request.

3. Name and contact information for person sponsoring the nomination:
Grace A. Fagan
20 N Main Street
Hernando County Courthouse
Brooksville, FL. 343601
Phone No.:352 754 4860 Fax No: 352 754 4049

Email address (If available):gfagan@circuits.org



PER OFFICIAL POLICY 3-2008, NOMINEES MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1. A nominee must be or have been a regident of the City.
The contribution for which they are  being
recognized should reflect a significant
contribution to the City, County, State or to the
greater good of mankind.

2. A nominee may be alive or deceased at the time of
nomination.

3. A nominee should be a person whose contributions are
generally known and readily recognizable by our
regidents. '

4. Individuals can be nominated by anyone in the
community and a standard nomination form will be
used by City Council annually during the nomination
period.

5. Persong nominated from previous years may be re-
nominated if not selected. A nominee cannot be
nominated for the award if they are a previous
recipient.

6. Self nominations will not be accepted.

Send Completed Application to:
City of Brooksville
Attn: City Clerk
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601
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NOMINATION
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Sk

“Great Brooksvillian”

NOMINATION FORM

(Please type or print clearly in black ink)
“Great Brooksvillian” Nominee:

Frosier Mpuntain

a) Address & Contact Information for nominee or family representative:

Name if representative:

309 [thjwoodj Drive
BrooKsville. ) El R4 Ln]

Phone No.: 552— fZ Qé - _’)EkQQ Fax No:
Email address (If available): £ rosie [.mm intain@ bellsouth, nef
b) Nominee Year of Birth l Q 23

Nominee Year of Death (if applicable) N A

c) A photo or image of the nominee is

Enclosed (4. Date taken
Not enclosed ( )

d) Please describe the nominee’s overall contributions to the community.

When and where were those contributions made? Was this person a resident of]
the City at the time of their contribution?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

See atHache d F)rujﬂc; (3\




2.

e) Did the contributions of this hominee also benefit  outside the community?
If so, how?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

See alached Poges ()

List any additional resources available for background information such as articles,
books, ete.




3. Name and contact information for person sponsoring the nomination:

Diane Dannemdlecr
SAo Colonial Deive.

RyrooKsyille : | 34l

Phone No.: .352-— fZQﬁ‘- 857% Fax No: NA

Email address (If available): @a&i@‘t@mﬁaﬁ&s}u( . Com

PER OFFICIAL POLICY 3-2008, NOMINEES MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1.

A nominee must be or have been a resident of the City. The
contribution for which they are being recognized should
reflect a significant contribution to the City, County, State
or to the greater good of mankind.

A nominee may be alive or deceased at the time of nomination.

A nominee should be a person whose contributions are
generally known and readily recognizable by our residents.

Individuals can be nominated by anyone in the community and a
standard nomination form will be wused by City Council
annually during the nominaticon period.

Persons nominated from previous years may be re-nominated if
not selected. A nominee cannot be nominated for the award if
they are a previous recipient.

Self nominations will not be accepted.

Send Completed Application to:

City of Brooksville
Attn: City Clerk
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601




City of Brooksville
Great Brooksvillian
Nomination

1d)

Although Frasier Mountain was born in Dunellon, Flin 1923, his
family moved within that year to Brooksville where he has lived,
worked, and raised his family all of his 90 years of life. It is
important to say at this point the Mountain family history goes
back to the 1800°s in Brooksville and Hernando County because of
Frasier Mountain, a lover of history. Frasier graduated from
Hernando High School in 1940, after attending all of his childhood
schooling in Brooksville. In 1941, he served as an aviation cadet,
along with five years active duty as a pilot and operations officer in
the United States Air Force. He served in World War II as a C-46
combat cargo pilot of special operations in the Burma, India, and
China theatre. Frasier has 800 hours combat time in flight time,
has received 2 Distinguished Flying Crosses, 4 air medals, and 3
battle stars. After the war, he continued active reserve duty for 35
years while living in Brooksville.

He created a business in 1949 called West Coast Electric on
Georgia Avenue in Brooksville, and in 1953 incorporated the
business renamed as Frasier Mountain Appliances Incorporated,
which continued for 40 years. Frasier served the air conditioning
and heating industry, sold Westinghouse appliances, and owned
the property of the business in downtown Brooksville. Locally, he
introduced microwave cooking in conjunction with the Florida
Power Corporation. He supplied Hernando and Moton High
Schools’ Home Economics classes with state of the art kitchen
appliances for learning.

Over the years, Frasier has been a member of the Kiwanis Club of
Brooksville, member of the Jaycees, Commander of the American
Legion Post #99, and appointed by the Governor of Florida to act



as justice of the peace while the city abolished a then current
political system. His family is a charter member of the Brooksville
Country Club. He helped form the reserve officers association
(ROA), acted as institutional representative of the Boy Scouts of
America (BSA), and helped organize the local Explorers group
made up of the finest young men in Brooksville. Frasier also
contracted for new housing developments in the city. He served as
the first Secretary/Treasurer of the Brooksville/Hernando County
Airport Aviation Authority. This group refurbished the air force
base (airport) used in WWIL. Frasier was instrumental in equipping
the airport properties and helped create a master plan through the
influence of MacDill Air Force Base, having access to surplus
property to rehab their flying facility. This master plan is still being
used today at the Brooksville/Hernando County Airport. While
serving in that capacity, the inauguration of Southwest Florida
Water Management District (SWFMD) was founded. Frasier, as
Treasurer, wrote the check for their first building. He also has
served more recently on the cemetery advisory board. One of his
favorite things is to mentor young people to become productive
citizens in business or everyday life. He is one of a few 90 year
olds that have the latest technology in his home, Iphones,
communicates by texting, and shows his 20,000 pictures of
Brooksville history on a 55 inch movie screen to interested
historians or just entertainment.

Over the years, Frasier has used his computer skills to research and
write history of Brooksville and Hernando County. He has
accumulated and taken thousands of photographs of the town and
its peoples, including the Hernando County Airport, all cemeteries
in Hernando County, Hernando Heritage Museum, 1885 Train
Station, all school sites that have ever been on record in Hernando
County, the evolution of the court house, downtown development,
Bayport, Weeki Wachee, Brooksville/Hernando County rock
mines, people, families, homes, and family history. He has most



recently been voice recording his knowledge of the above areas
and putting dissertations together with pictorial facts.

In recognition of the contributions of Bob Martinez, a long time
Brooksville history buff himself, Frasier has collected every
edition of the Old Brooksville books and has them available to be
auctioned or sold for a good cause by the historic association.

Frasier has been a permanent resident of Brooksville, living in the
same home for over 56 years, as the town has grown around him.
He has exercised the right to vote in Hernando County since he
was eligible of that right.

Frasier’s family life was fulfilled with the support of his wife
Nancy of 67 years marriage until her passing in 2011. He was a
good role model as a father and grandfather for his son, daughter,
and only granddaughter, all who also graduated from Hernando
High School. Duane, his son, retired from a career in the United
States Air Force, following in his father’s footsteps. He tragically
passed away in 2008. Frasier’s daughter, Diane, retired from a 38
year career in the Hernando County School System. Ashley, his
cherished granddaughter, will graduate from the University of
Central Florida in May 2013 with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Elementary Education. As you can see, Frasier’s roots in
Brooksville are deeply seeded.



le)

Frasier Mountain’s contribution to this community has reached
outside the area documenting history of the City of Tampa. Also,
he maintained relations with MacDill Air Force Base in Tampa,
and other locations in Florida in researching local families’ history.
He served as liaison officer to the United States Air Force
Academy in Colorado Springs, Colorado for 10 years. He has
traveled outside the United States, while still researching history
around him. From cemeteries to court houses, he has made
beautiful stories with true facts.

Frasier Mountain, at age 90, would like to change the world, one
person or thing at a time. He is always looking for a better way.
We should be proud that he wants to do it for Brooksville and
Hernando County. By the contributions he has made to
Brooksville, is why it is a pleasure for me to nominate him, a
“Great Brooksvillian”.
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Moantam Is
Elected Cmdr.
Legzon Post

~7-/7-5

l F‘mswz Muuﬂtain, young busr- I
| nessman of Brookusville, was ht:m-::'
“ored last Thursday night, July
F20, in, being elected to the post of
f;(«ommand&l of l.hez Andrew Jack- |
Son Post No. 99, the ~American |
-Legion, He will succeed - Robert |
Tullis who has strved as. heacl of
the local organization for the past
‘yeaxr. Installation ceremonies will
‘be held at the meeting sc'heduledl
for the second ’I‘humduv mght ii‘i
fi-:eptemhtr‘ i
. Mr, Mountain is well kmwn to .
: ,_J-muksville and Hernando c*ountv
people, being a partner “the.
‘West Coast  Blectric bm\rmes ‘He |
‘hag been aetive in veterins  af-
Tfairs during the past several Y&ﬂlm
-and the post s - ioultmg toward. |
‘another sumsafui year under his,
_'1ﬁaderfship e
| Other officers elﬂ{‘ted at tluj_-‘
b Thursday mght, raeeling  in t-h’e
W;Lemm, Building were: :
First Vlce - Cfommandm - A]
CE’ixlex. L I'
- Becond Vice - i“ammanﬁ@r Jaeii
Juhn&ton Jr, o o
~Finance Officer Ed Russo._ _

(‘*hupiam — Fr. Ignatiuq Mr, j
martv SR >
1 Histouan s Mrs. : Ma._rgaret‘
}“’inng‘}, I : )

' Adjutant - Fr:;v;nk Spﬁihg‘r[
stead, o :
- Bgt at Alms e Dan Merritt, _

Service Officer — Chas. A."?h"-’_‘ |
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2013 GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN

NOMINATION

%@z ﬂ@m ” @M




“Great Brooksvillian” Nominee:

a)

b)

c)

d)

“Great Brooksvillian”

NOMINATION FORM
(Please type or print clearly in black ink)

5 |
Maerinw  "pan Perracy.

Address & Contact Information for nominee or family representative:

Name if representative:

Q232 . Peoed SeesT
=, Fhn 30|

Phone No.: 355~ Zﬂlp 3(’@ 3? Fax No:_ "7 9 fo— q'/iq

Email address (If available): M&ma_@%_&hbo oM

Nominee Year of Birth Z Q 2

Nominee Year of Death (if applicable)

A photo or image of the nominee is

Enclosed (L Date taken
Not enclosed ( )

Please describe the nominee’s overall contributions to the community.

When and where were those contributions made? Was this person a resident of]
the City at the time of their contribution?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

Se=z Arracuen




2,

e) Did the contributions of this nominee also benefit  outside the community?
If so, how?

(Attach additional sheet if necessary):

List any additional resources available for background information such as articles,
books, etc.




3.

Name and contact information for person sponsoring the nomination:

PER OFFICIAL POLICY 3-2008, NOMINEES MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

I,

}5 R PINCE = _P)’l\ RS i ATRACKY,

MCEOELJ e, Ly Rasal
& £ -0

Phone No.: 19 {p- DR R FaxNo:_ 79 (5= X7

Email address (If available):,j« y_\j'i(g lg,mg 40D @ ]fg b\m - C_.Or\/\

A nominee must be or have been a resident of the City. The
contribution for which they are being recognized should
reflect a significant contribution to the City, County, State
or to the greater good of mankind,

A nominee may be alive or deceased at the time of nomination.

A nominee should be a person whose contributions are
generally known and readily recognizable by our residents.

Individuals can be nominated by anyone in the community and a
standard nomination form will be used by City Council
annually during the nomination pericd.

Persons nominated from previous years may be re-nominated if
not selected. A nominee cannot be nominated for the award if
they are a previous recipient.

Self nominations will not be accepted.

Send Completed Application to:

City of Brooksville
Attn: City Clerk
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601




DAN PATRICK “GREAT BROOKSVILLIAN"

Dan Patrick was born in the City of Brooksville, FL, 80 years ago, and still resides
in the City . He was born to L.T. Patrick and Ida (Williams) Patrick and had six siblings.
L.T. Patrick came to Brooksville in 1915 from Orlando, FL. L.T. Patrick became one of
the largest farmers in Hernando County. Today his legacy still lives on with his family
and their business Patrick Produce which serves Hernando as well as surrounding
counties, ‘

As a youngster, Dan Patrick had to quit school in the ninth grade to work full
time for his father working from daylight to into the night by the headlights of a John
Deer tractor. Later Dan Patrick decided to leave the farm and sell insurance. He has
been recognized in the insurance business for years as outstanding salesman of the
year. In 1958 he was voted as the Top Salesman in the United States. He later went to
Daytona Beach to attend classes to be a Certified Life Underwriter. He was the training
counselor at Pasco-Hernando Community College for two years. Last September,
Patrick Insurance celebrated 60 years in business. At the age of 80 years old he
continues to work every day for the people of Brooksville.

In January 1976, Mr. Patrick bought the old Freezette Drive-in and changed it to
an office building. The Brooksville Church of God had their first service at this location in
April, 1976. After meeting in the office for several months, Mr. Patrick bought the land
and furnished the labor to build the Brooksville Church of God on Cortez Boulevard.

In 1977 Mr. Patrick bought and renovated the building at 811 S Broad Street and
started Patrick Sales as a hobby, when he realized the need for people with either poor
credit or no credit to purchase automobiles that he would finance to help them get on
their feet and have a dependable vehicle to get to work.

Patrick Insurance has been active with youth sports, sponsoring several sports
over the years. He has also sponsored the Men’s Softball team.

Dan Patrick served on the Board of Directors of the old Brooksville Church of God
from 1976 until 2000.

He has served on the Board of Directors and as an usher for the Church of God of
Prophecy on Wiscon Road for the last nine years.

Mr. Patrick was a Charter Member and member of the Board of Directors for the
South Brooksville Community Economic Development Inc. from 2011 to present.

Dan is a Charter Member and serves on the Board of Directors for the Brooksville
Lions Chapter.

Every St. Patrick’s Day, Dan dresses in his Irish Green suit and dons his shramrock
and green hat to celebrate “his” day, going to different businesses and the courthouse
making his rounds to visit his many friends.

Dan Patrick has spent his entire life in Brooksville Florida and until the Lord calls
him to his Final Home, he will remain a true and dedicated “Great Brooksvillian”.
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SUBJECT: Recognition of a 42-year low crime rate.
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the year ended December 31, 2012
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RICK SCOTT

GOVERNOR
July 12, 2013
Chief George Turner I
Chief of Police ' ; : B
Brooksville Police Department
87 Veterans Avenue

Brooksville, Florida 34601
Dear Chief Tul'ﬁel':

I want to take a moment and thank you and the men and women of the Brooksville
Police Department for the work you are doing to keep your community and our state safe. .
Because of the hard work of Florida’s law enforcement community, the Sunshine State is safer - °
today than during any time in the past 42 years.

I want to commend the law enforcement professionals throughout your agency for 7
working to keep us safe. On behaif of the people of Florida, thank you for your commitment to .
Florida families, businesses, and visitors. '

Every day, law enforcement officers demonstrate courage, professionalism, and
leadership by risking their lives to protect the public. As Governor, 1 have the privilege of
recognizing these courageous actions by presenting Medals of Heroism to law enforcement
officers, firefighters, emergency medical technicians, and paramedics who have distinguished
themselves by going above and beyond the call of duty. If any of your staff members should

receive this recognition, please feel free to contact Rachel Cone, my Deputy Chief of Staff, at
(850) 717-9249 to provide information.

Again, ébngratulations to y"bu and your team on achieviﬁg a"4'2-yea1' low crime rate for
our state. 1 look forward to continuing to work with you to make the Sunshine State the

greatest place to live, work, and play.

Sincerely,

Rick Scott
Governor & |
NG
W @ltsWorkingFL THE CAPITOL ‘D

TaLLaviasseE, FLORIDA 32399 « (850) 4882272 + Fax (850) 922-4292 “Ww-FLGow.com o \

N






800 Continental Drive = Brooksville, FL 34601

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Telephone (352) 796-6547 » Fax (352) 796-4899

RANDY WOODRUFF, Chairman

CLIFFORD E. MANUEL, JR. Vice Chairman

JAMES V. BROOKS

BRIAN L. ADAIR

YVETTE D. TAYLOR

GARY E. SCHRAUT

FRANCINE S. WARD

FEIELE A17:40 gy
Wednesday, July 24, 2013

Enclosed please find a copy of the Audit of Basic Financial Statements for the Brooksville
Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Should your require further inquiry, please do not hesitate to contact concerning this report.

Extcutive Dhirector

EQUnL HoUTHG “We do business in accordance with the Fair Housing Act” ’ Q )é}



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

REPORT ON AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND SINGLE AUDIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
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MALCOLM JOHNSON & COMPANY, P.A,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
P.0. Box 530848
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463
malcolmjohnson@mpinet.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners HUD, Yacksonville Area Office
Brooksville Housing Authority Charles Bennett Federal Building
Brooksville, Florida 400 W, Bay Street, Suite 1015

Jacksonville, Florida 32202-4410

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Brooksville Housing Authority (the Authority)
which comprise the statement of net position as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of basic
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ‘

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstaiement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of
the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the basic financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Authority as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows

thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Report on Required Supplementary Information

Accounting Principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Report on other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Authority’s financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, the Financial Data
Schedule, and the other supplemental information as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statement themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

“'c"r‘j' RA.
Malco ohnson & Company, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

DeBary, Florida
June 4, 2013



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

As management of Brooksville Housing Authority (the Authority), we offer the readers of the Authority’s basic
financijal statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the year
ended December 31, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conJunctlon
with the Authority’s bas:c financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2012 by $764,587 (Net Position).
The Authority’s unrestricted Net Position as of December 31, 2012 was $201,242.

e The Authority’s total operating revenue was $1,056,609, which primarily consisted of operating grant
revenue received from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development in the amount
of $944,420, tenant revenue of $105,132 and other tenant revenue of $7,057.

Overview of Financial Statements

The basic financial statements included in this annual report are those of a special-purpose government engaged
in a business-type activity. The following statements are included:

¢ Statement of Net Position — reports the Authority’s assets and liabilities at the end of the fiscal year
and provides information about the nature and amounts of investment of resources and obligations to
creditors.

¢ Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position — the results of activity over the course
of the fiscal year. It details the costs associated with operating the Authority and how those costs were
funded. It also provides an explanation of the change in Net Position from the previous fiscal year end
to the current fiscal year end.

¢ Statement of Cash Flows — reports the Authority’s cash flows in and out from operating activities,
capital and related financing activities and investing activities. It details the sources of the Authority’s
cash, what it was used for, and the change in cash over the course of the fiscal year.

* The basic financial statements also include notes that provide required disclosures and other information
necessary to gather the full meaning of the material presented in the statements.

The attached analysis of entity wide Net Position, revenue, and expenses are detailed and provide a
comprehensive portrayal of financial conditions and related trends. The analysis includes all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting.

- Accrual accounting is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. Accrual accounting
recognizes revenue and expenses when earned regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Our analysis presents the Authority’s Net Position, which can be thought of as the difference between what the
Authority owns (assets) to what the Authority owes (liabilities). The Net Position analysis will allow the reader
to measure the health or financial position of the Authority.



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Overview of Financial Statements (Continued)

Over time, significant changes in the Authority’s Net Position are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the financial health of any Authority, the reader must also consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in family composition, fluctuations in the local economy, HUD
mandated program administrative changes, and the physical condition of the Authority’s capital assets.

At FYE 2012, total assets were $809,712; total current assets were $246,367.

In addition, total liabilities were $45,125; total current liabilities were $42,302; total long-term (non-current)
liabilities were $2,823; which consist of compensated absence of $2,823 at the end of FYE 2012.

Net Position — The difference between an organization’s assets and its liabilities equals its Net Position. There
are three categories in which to classify Net Position and they are the following:

Imvested in capital assets, net of related debt — Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by debt attributable to the acquisition of those assets:

Restricted — Net Position whose use is subject to constraints imposed by law or agreement;
Unrestricted — Net Position that is not invested in capital assets or subject to restrictions.

Comparative Financial Information

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position:

2012 2011
~ Assets .
Current assets $ 245,430 $ 242,628
Resstricted assets 937 9,612
Net capital assets 563,345 717,683
Total assets 809,712 969,923
Liabilities _
Current labilities 41,365 41,687
Current liabilities payable from restricted
assets 937 9,612
Noncurrent liabilities 2,823 701
Total liabilities 45,125 52,000
Net Position
Investment in capital assets, net of related
debt 563,345 717,683
Unrestricted net position 201,242 200,240
Total net position 764,587 917,923

Total Liabilities and Net Position 5 809,712 8 969,923

i



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Comparative Financial Information (Continued)

Cash and investments decreased by $21,362 from the prior fiscal year mainly due to a decrease in tenant
revenues. Accounts receivable increased by $253, prepaid insurance increased by $34,427; and inventory
decreased by $22,249.

Cash held at December 31, 2012 was $179,694,

Total liabilities decreased $6,875 over the prior year primarily related to decreases in accounts payable of
$5,621, security deposit of $8,675 and deferred revenue of $1,168; increases were to accrued wages of $519 and

compensated absences of $388.

There was a decrease in Net Position of $153,336 as a result of having a net loss for the year, which is explained
below.

Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:

2012 2011

Operating revenue
Tenant rent and other revenue $ 105,132 $ 152,402
HUD grants : : 944.420 1,012,011
Other revenue : 7,057 2,664
Total operating revenue . 1,356,609 1,167,077
Operating expenses
Administrative 327,736 256,599
Tenant services 2,968 6,217
- Utilities _ . 44,999 198,338
Ordinary maintenance and operation 253,276 718,758
Insurance 65,492 55,001
General expenses 361,192 32,940
Depreciation expense 154,338 157,384
Total operating expenses 1,210,001 1,425,237
Operating gain (loss) (153,392) (258,160)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income - unrestricted 56 178
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 56 178
Net income (loss) (153,336) (257,982)
Net position, beginning of year 917,923 1,175,905

Net position, end of year 3 764,587 $ 917,923

i



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Comparative Financial Information (Continued)

Overall operating revenue decreased by $110,468. There was a decrease in HUD operating grants of $67,591;
decrease in tenant rent and other revenue of $42,877.

Total operating expenses decreased by $215,236; increases were to administrative salaries and benefits by
$71,137, insurance by $10,491 and general expenses of $328,252; decreases were to tenant services by $3,249,
utilities of $153,339, ordinary maintenance and operations of $465,482 and depreciation of $3,046.

In FYE 2012, total operating revenue was $1,056,609, while total operating expenses were $1,210,001. This
resulted in a net loss of $153,392. Net non-operating revenues were $56. Capital improvements are paid
directly through the Capital Fund Program rather than from operating accounts.

Brooksvitle Housing Authority
Revenue Sources

interest

0.01% Tenant

Revenue OTenant
0.95% Revenue

HHUD Grants

QOtherRevenue
0.67%

OOther Revenue

DOinte rast

Brooksville Housing Authority
Operating Expenses

BAdmin
BTenant Services
Depreciation .
12.76% Admin DUtilities

27.09%

DOrdinary Maint &
. 0
General Exp Tenant Services iingurance

28.85% 0.25%
. BGeneral Exp

Utilities
3.72% EBDepreciation

insurance )
5.41% Ordinary Maint
& 0p
20.93%
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksvilie, Florida

MANAGEMENT?’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 '

Fund Accounting

Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control.

Authority’s Funds
¢ PHA Owned Housing - Low Rent Public Housing (CFDA #14.850)
¢ Capital Fund Program (CFDA #14.872)

Economic Factors
Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:

* Federal funding of the Department of Housing and Urban Development,
Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates,
s Local inflationary, reversionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and -
therefore the amount of rental income,
Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other costs.
Hurricane related damages and hurricane impact upon the rental market.

Capital Asset and Debt Activity

At FYE 2012, the Authority had no long-term debt.

There were no additions to fixed assets. Total net capital assets decreased by $154,339; total depreciation for the
year was $154,339.

Contacting The Authority’s Financial Management

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information

should be addressed to the Executive Director, Brooksville Housing Anuthority, 800 Continental Drive,
Brooksville, Flonda 34601.



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2012
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted $ 178,757
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 937
Investments, unrestricted 12,312
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 423
Due from other governments 3,002
Inventories, net of obsolescence 1,452
Prepaid insurance 49,484
Total current assets 246,367
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Not being depreciated 1,948
Depreciable, net 561,397
Total capital assets, net 563,345
Total assets 809,712
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Vendors and contractors payable 19,288
Accrued wages/taxes payable 1,961
Accrued compensated absences 4,989
Due to other governments 6,274
Deferred revenue 53
Other current liabilities 8,800
Total current liabilities 41,365
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Resident security deposits 937
Noncurrent liabilities | ’
Accrued compensated absences ' 2,823
Total Habilities 45,125
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 563,345
Unrestricted 201,242
Total net position _ ‘ $ 764,587

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements,



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Operating revenues
Rental revenue
HUD grants
Other revenue
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Administrative
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance & operation
Insurance '
General expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest revenue, unrestricted
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

Brooksville, Florida

4

105,132
944,420
7,057

1,056,609

327,736
2,968
44,999
253,276
65,492
361,192
154,338

1,210,001

(153,392)

56

(153,336)
917,923

764,587




BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from dwelling rentals

Operating grants

Other receipts

Payments to employees and suppliers
Payments to landlords and resident benefits

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase/sale of investments
Interest

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balance - beginning of the year
Balance - end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash Flows to Statement of Net Position

Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

There are no non-cash transactions.

$

90,688
941,418
2,838

(1,015,087)

(41,219)

(21,362)

(36)
56

(21,362)
201,056

179,694

178,757
937

179,694




BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

- STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Operating income/(loss) ' $  (153,392)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation elimination 154,338
Increase in accounts receivable ' {253)
Decrease in due to/from other governments 2,558
Decrease in inventory ' 22,249
Increase in prepaid expenses (34,427)
Decrease in security deposits : (8,675)
Decrease in accounts payable (5,621)
Increase in accrued wages 519
Increase in compensated absences 388
Decrease in accrued liabilities (1,168)
Increase in deferred credits 2,122
5 (21,362)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization:

1. Organization: Brooksville Housing Authority (“the Authority”) is a public body corporate and

politic pursuant to Chapter 421 Laws of the State of Florida which was organized to provide low rent
housing for qualified individuals in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and other federal agencies.

Reporting Entity: In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a component unit in the reporting entity was made
by applying the criteria set forth in Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards and Statement No. 14, (amended) of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board: The Financial Reporting Entity. These criteria include manifestation of
oversight responsibility including financial accountability, appointment of a voting majority,
imposition of will, financial benefit to or burden on a primary organization, financial accountability as
a result of fiscal dependency, potential for dual inclusion, and organizations included in the reporting
entity although the primary organization is not financially accountable. Based upon the application of
these criteria, the reporting entity has no component units.

The basic financial statements of the Authority consist primarily of Low Rent Housing and related
modernization programs under Annual Contributions Contract A04130 with HUD,

Summary of HUD and Other Authority Programs: The accompanying basic financial statements
consist of the activities of the housing programs subsidized by HUD and Authority owned entities. A
summary of each of these programs is provided below.

Annual Contributions Contract A-4130

a. Low Rent Public Housing: This type of housing consists of apartments and single-family
dwellings owned and operated by the Authority. Funding is provided by tenant rent payments and
subsidies provided by HUD.

b. Modernization and Development: Substantially all additions to land, buildings, and equipment
are accomplished through the Capital Fund Program. These programs add to, replace or
materially upgrade deteriorated portions of the Authority's housing units. Funding is provided
through programs established by HUD.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting: In accordance with uniform financial reporting standards for
HUD housing programs, the basic financial statements are prepared in accordance with U. S,
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Based upon compelling reasons offered by HUD, the Authority reports its basic financial statements
as a special purpose government engaged solely in business-type activities, which is similar to the
governmental proprietary fund type (enterprise fund), which uses the accrual basis of accounting and
the flow of economic resources measurement focus, Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. Pursuant to the election option made
available by GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, certain accounting and
financial reporting guidance is applied in the preparation of the basic financial statements, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
7



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksyille, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)

A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)
4. Basis of Presentation and Accounting: (Continued)

Generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments requires that resources be
classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following three net asset categories:

Invested in Capital Position, Net of Related Debt — Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Net position whose use by the Authority is subject to externally imposed stipulations
that can be fulfilled by actions of the Authority pursuant to those stipulations or the expire by the
passage of time. Such assets include assets restricted for capital acquisitions and debt service.

Unrestricted — Net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted
net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Authority
Board or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

5. Budgets: Budgets are prepared on an annual basis for each major operating program and are used as
& management tool throughout the accounting cycle. The capital fund budgets are adopted on a
“project length” basis. Budgets are not, however, legally adopted nor legally required for basic
financial statement presentation.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Authority considers
all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased and non-negotiable certificates of deposit to be cash equivalents. There were no noncash
investing, capital and financing activities during the year,

7. Interprogram Receivables and Payables: Interprogram receivables/payables, when present, are all
current, and are the result of the use of the Public Housing Program as the common paymaster for
shared costs of the Authority. Cash settlements are made periodically, and all interprogram balances
net zero. Offsetting due to/due from balances are eliminated for the basic financial statement
presentation.

8. Investments: Investments, when present, are recorded at fair value. Investment instruments consist
only of items specifically approved for public housing agencies by HUD. Investments are either
insured or collateralized using the dedicated method. Under the dedicated method of collateralization,
all deposits and investments over the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with
securities held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s name. It is the Authority’s policy that all
funds on deposit are collateralized in accordance with both HUD requirements and requirements of
the State of Florida. :
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)

9.

10.

11.

12,

13.

Inventories: Inventories (consisting of materials and supplies) are valued at cost using the first in,
first out (FIFO) method. If inventory falls below cost due to damage, deterioration or obsolescence,
the Authority establishes an allowance for obsolete inventory. In accordance with the consumption
method, inventory is expensed when items are actually placed in service.

Prepaid Items: Payments made to vendors for goods or services that will benefit periods beyond the
fiscal year end are recorded as prepaid items.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
basic financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amount of the Authority’s financial instruments
at December 31, 2012 including cash, investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable closely
approximates fair value.

Capital Assets:

a. Book Value: All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost when historical records are available.
When no historical records are available, fixed assets are valued at estimated historical cost.

Land values were derived from development closeout documentation.
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair value at the time they are received.
Donor imposed restrictions are deemed to expire as the asset depreciates.

All normal expenditures of preparing an asset for use are capitalized when they meet or exceed
the capitalization threshold.

b. Depreciation: The cost of buildings and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful lives
of the related assets on a composite basis using the straight-line method.

Depreciation commences on modernization and development additions in the year following
completion.

The useful lives of buildings and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are as

follows: .
Baildings 40 years
Building modernization 15 years
Equipment 3-7 years
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Capital Assets: (Continued)

c. Maintenance and Repairs Expenditures: Maintenance and repairs expenditures are charged to
operations when incurred. Betterments in excess of $1,000 are capitalized. When buildings and
equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related accumulated
depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.

Compensated Absences: Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be
paid, such as vacation and sick leave computed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16. A
liability for compensated absences that is attributable to services already rendered and that are not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees, is accrued
as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or
that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees
are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

Litigation Losses: The Authority recognizes estimated losses related to litigation in the period in
which the occasion giving rise to the loss occurred, the loss is probable and the loss is reasonably
estimable.

Annual Contribution Contracts: Annual Contribution contracts provide that HUD shall have the
authority to audit and examine the records of public housing authorities. Accordingly, final
determination of the Authority’s financing and contribution status for the Annual Contribution
Contracts is the responsibility of HUD based upon financial reports submitted by the Authority.

Risk Management: The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The Authority carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance, general liability, fire and extended
coverage, fidelity bond, automobile, and Director and Officers liability. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Additionally, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.

The Authority participates in public entity risk pool (Florida Housing Authority’s Risk Management
Inc.) for all risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employee health and accident
insurance, general liability, fire and extended coverage, fidelity bond, automobile, and Director and
Officers liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded risk pool coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years. Rights and responsibilities of the Authority and the pool are
contained within the pool agreement and the scope of coverage documents.

Use of Restricted Assets: It is the Authority’s policy to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

10
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Organization: (Continued)

19. Operating Revenues and Expenses: The principal operating revenues of the Authority’s enterprise
fund are charges to customers for rents and services. Operating expenses for the Authority’s
enterprise fund include the cost of providing housing and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Deposits and Investments: For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Authority considers all
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased and non-negotiable certificates of deposit to be cash equivalents. There were nc noncash
investing, capital and financing activities during the year.

1. HUD Deposit and Investment Restrictions

HUD requires authorities to invest excess HUD program funds in obligations of the United States,
certificates of deposit or any other federally insured instruments.

HUD also requires that deposits of HUD program funds be fully insured or collateralized at all times.
Acceptable security includes FDIC/FSLIC insurance and the market value of securities purchased and
pledged to the political subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are
allowed as security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the Authority or
with an unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.

2. Risk Disclosures

Custodial Credit Risk: This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are held
by the counterparty. All of the Authority’s investments in securities are held in the name of the
Authority.

The Authority’s custodial agreement policy prohibits counterparties holding securities not in the
Authority’s name.

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s cash deposits at December 31, 2012 were $179,494, of which
$200 was petty cash. Bank balances before reconciling items were $183,007 at that date, the total
amount of which was collateralized or insured with securities held by an unaffiliated banking
institution in the Authority’s name. The Authority’s investments consist of certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than three (3) months of $12,312.

Accounts Receivable:

Dwelling rents (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $106) $423

11



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY

Brooksville, Florida
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)
D - Land, Buildings and Equipment:
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2011 _Additions 2012
Not being depreciated: :
Land $ 1,948 $ - 3 1,948
Total not being depreciated 1,948 - 1,948
Depreciable:
Buildings & improvements 4,004,675 - 4,004,675
Accumulated depreciation ' (3,308,621) {146,594) (3,455,215)
Net buildings & improvements 696,054 (146,594) 549,460
Equipment 167,429 - 167,429
Accumulated depreciation (147,748) (7.,745) (155,493)
Net equipment 19,681 (7,745) 11,936
Net depreciable assets - 715,735 (154,339) 561,396
TOTAL 3 717,683 $(154,339) § 563,344
E- Schedule of Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities:
Balance at Year Ended
December 31,2011 December 31,2012 December 31,2012
Long-term Current Current  Long-term
Portion Portion Additions Payments Portion Portion
Accrued compensated
absences b 701 $ 4,601 $ 6,276 $ (3,766) $4989 § 2,823

The large increase from the prior year is the result of a change in benefits which now allows up to 360

hours of accrued vacation to be paid upon termination.

F- Annual Contributions by Federal Agencies:

Low Rent Public Housing — Pursuant to the Annual Contributions Contract, HUD contributes an
operating subsidy approved in the operating budget under the Annual Contributions Contract. HUD
operating subsidy contributions for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $712,418. HUD also
contributed additional funds for modernization and operations in the amount of $232,002 for the year

ended December 31, 2012.

12



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Continued)

Economic Dependency: The Authority receives approximately 89% of its revenues from HUD. If the
amount of revenues received from HUD falls below critical levels, the Authority’s reserves could be
adversely affected.

Contingencies: The Authority is subject to possible examinations made by Federal and State authorities
who determine compliance with terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing other grants given to
the Authority in the current and prior years. There were no such examinations for the year ended
December 31, 2012,

Conduit Type Debt: Debt related to the original acquisition and early modernization of the public
housing developments is funded, guaranteed and serviced by HUD. There is no debt or pledge of faith
and credit on part of the Authority. Accordingly, this debt has not been recorded in the basic financial
statements of the Authority. Additionally, HUD no longer provides debt service information to the
Authority. '

Leasing Activities (as Lessor): The Authority is the lessor of dwelling units mainly to low-income
residents. The rents under the leases are determined generally by the resident's income as adjusted for
eligible deductions regulated by HUD, although the resident may opt for a flat rent. Leases may be
cancelled by the lessee at any time. The Authority may cancel the lease only for cause.

Revenues associated with these leases are recorded in the basic financial statements and schedules as
"Rental Revenue”. Rental Revenue per dwelling unit generally remains consistent from year to year, but
is affected by general economic conditions which impact personal income and local job availability.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB): In relation to its employee benefit programs, the Authority
does not provide any Other Post Employment Benefits, as outlined under GASB 45,

Interprogram Tramsfers: The Authority will make cash transfers between its various programs as
outlined in the Federal Regulations and authorized and approved by the Authority’s Board of
Commissioners. There were transfers of $57,681 from the Capital Fund Program (including ARRA) to
the Low Rent Housing Program during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Decrease in Net Position: The decrease in net position is expected to be absorbed through operations in

subsequent fiscal years, assisted by transfers from various programs. No fund deficit is expected as a
result of the current year loss.
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Brooksville Housing Authority (FLO74)
BROOKSVILLE, FL

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/A-133

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2012

Project Total Subtotal ELIM Total
111 Cash - Unrestricted $178,757 $178,757 $178,757
112 Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development
113 Cash - Other Restricted
114 Cash - Tenant Security Dei:nsils $937 $937 $937
115 Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities
100 Total Cash $1 79,694 $179,694 30 $179,694
121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects
122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects $3,002 $3,002 $3,002
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government
125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellansous
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants $529 %528 $520
126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants -$106 -$106 -$106
126.2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other 30 $0 $0
127 Motes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current
128 Fraud Recovery
128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud
129 Accrued Enterest Raceivable
120 Tolal Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts $3,425 $3,425 %0 $3,425
131 Investments - Unrestricted $12,312 $12,312 $12,312
132 Investments - Restricted
135 Investments - Restricled for Payment of Current Liability
142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assels $49,484 $49,484 $49 484
143 Inventories $1,613 $1,613 %1,613
'143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories -$161 -$161 -$161
144 Inter Program Due From
145 Assets Held for Sale
160 Total Current Assets $246,367 $246,367 $0 %245 357
161 Land $1,948 $1,948 $1,048
162 Buildings $4,004,675 $4,004,675 $4,004,675
163 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings $71,858 $71,868 $71,858
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration $95,571 $95,571 $95,571
165 Leasehold Improvements
166 Accumulaied Depreciation -$3,610,707 -$3,610,707 -§3,610,707
167 Construction In Pragress
168 Infrastructure
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $563,345 $563,345 $0 $563,345

14




171 Notes, Loans and Morigages Recelvable - Non-Current

172 Notes, Loans, & Morigages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due

173 Grants Receivable - Non Current.

174 Other Assels

176 Investments in Jolnt Ventures

180 Total Non-Current Assets $563,345 $563,345 50 $563,345
190 Total Assels $809,712 $809,712 $0 $809,712
311 Bank Overdraft

312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days $19,288 $19,288 $19,288
313 Accounts Payable »90 Days Past Due

321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable §1.,961 $1,961 $1,961
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion $'4.989 $4,989 $4,889
324 Accrued Contingency Liability

325 Accrued Interest Payable

331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

332 Account Payable - PHA Projects )

333 Accounts Payable - Other Government 36,274 $6,274 56,274
341 Tenant Security Deposits $937 $837 $937
342 Deferred Revenues $53 $53 $63
343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital ProjectsMorntgage Revenue Bonds

344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings ‘

345 Other Current Liabilities $8,800 $8,800 $8,800
346 Accrued Liabiliies - Other

347 Inter Program - Due To

348 Loan Liability - Current

310 Total Current Liabilities $42,302 $42,302 30 $42,302
351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenus

352 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

353 Non-current Liabilities - Other

354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current $2,823 $2,823 $2,823
355 Loan Liability - Non Current

356 FASB 5 Liabilities

357 Agcrued Pensfon and OPEB Liabilities

350 Total Non-Current Liabilities $2,823 $2.,823 $0 $2,823
300 Total Liabilities $45,125 $45,125 50 $45,125
508.1 Invested In Capital Assels, Net of Relsje& Debt $563,345 $563,345 $563,345
511.1 Restricted Net Assels

512.1 Unrestricted Net Assets $201,242 $201,242 $201,242
513 Total Equity/Net Assets $764,587 $764,587 $0 $764,587
600 Tolal Liabilities and Equity/Net Assets $809,712 $809,712 $0 $809,712
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Submission Type:

Brooksville Housing Authority (FLO74)

BROOKSVILLE, FL

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Audited/A-133

Fiscal Year End; 12/31/2012

Projest Total

Subtotal

ELIM

Total

70300

Net Tenant Rental Revenue

$105,132

$105,132

$105,132

70400

Tenant Revenue - Other

$4,283

$4,283

$4,283

70500

Total Tenant Revenue

$109,415

$109,415

$0

$109,415

70600

HUD PHA Operating Grants

$944,420

$944,420

$944,420

70610

Capitaf Grants

70710

Management Fee

70720

Asset Managemen! Fee

70730

Book Keeping Fee

70740

Front Line Service Fee

70750

Cther Fees

70700

Total Fee Revenue

$C

$0

$0

70800

Cther Government Grants

71100

Investment Income - Unrestricted

$56

$56

$56

71200

Mertgage Interest Income

71300

Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

71310

Cost of Sale of Assets

71400

Fraud Regovery

71500

Cther Revenus

$2,774

$2,774

$2,774

71600

Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

72000

Investment Income - Restricted

70000

Total Revenue

$1,056,665

$1,056,665

$0

1,056,665

91100

Administrative Salaries

$103,052

$103,052

$103,052

91200

Auditing Fees

$13,600

$13,600

$13,600

91300

Management Fee

91310

Book-keeping Fee

91400

Advertising and Marketing

$121

$121

121

91300

Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative

$40,373

$40,373

$40,373

91600

Offise Expenses

$55,640

$55,640

365,640

91700

Legal Expense

$107,735

$107,735

$107,735

91800

Travel

$7,215

$7,215

$7,215

91810

Allocated Overhead

91900

Cther

21000

Total Operating - Administrative

$327,736

$327,736

$0

$327,736

92000

Asset Management Fee

92100

Tenant Services - Salaries

§2200

Relacation Costs

52300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services

524C0

Tenant Services - Other

$2,968

$2,968

$2,068
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92500

Total Tenant Services $2,968 $2,968 $0 $2,968
93100 Water 16,360 416,350 $16,360
83200 Electricity §7,124 $7.124 $7,124
83300 Gas $276 $276 $276
93400 Fuel
93500 Labor
93600 Sewer
93700 Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities
93800 Other Utilities Expense $21,239 $21,239 $21,239
83000 Tota! LHilities $44,999 $44,559 0 $44 609
94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labar $53,838 $53,838 $53,838
94200 Qrdinary Maintenance and Cperations - Materials and Other $44,303 $44,303 $44,303
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $106,899 $108,899 $106,899
94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance $48,236 $48,236 $48,236
94000 Total Maintenance $253,276 $253,276 $0 $253,278
25100 Protective Sefvices - Labor
85200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs
95300 Protective Services - Other
95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services
95000 Total Protective Services $0 80 50 $0
86110 Property Insurance $48,552 $45 552 $48,552
86120 Liability Insurance $5,326 5,326 $5,326
95130 Workmen's Compengation $5,882 $5,862 $5,862
96140 All Cther Insurance $5,752 $5,752 $5,752
86100 Total insurance Premiums $65,492 $65,402 S0 65,492
96200 Other General Expenses $339,847 $339,847 $330,847
96210 Compensated Absences $7,219 57,219 $7.219
98300 Payments in Lieu of Taxes $5,559 $5,559 $5,559
96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents 8,567 58,567 $8,567
86500 Bad debt - Morigages
86600 Bad debt - Cther
86800 Severance Expense
98000 Total Cther General Expenses $361,192 $361,192 $0 $361,192
86710 Interest of Mortgage (cr Bonds) Payable
96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)
96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs
96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $0 $0 $0 %0
96900 Total Dperating Expenses $1,055,663 $1.055,663 0 _ $1,055,663
87000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Cperating Expenses $1,002 $1,002 50 $1,002

97100

Bxtracrdinary Maintenance
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97200

Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized

97300

Housing Assistance Payments

97350

HAP Portabllity-In

97400

Depreciation Expense

$154,338

$154,338

$154,338

97500

Fraud Losses

97600

Capilal Outlays - Governmental Funds

87700

Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

87800

Dwaelling Units Rent Expense

90000

Total Expenses

$1,210,001

$1,210,001

50

$1,210,00

10010

Operating Transfer In

$57,681

$57.6681

-557,661

$0

10020

Cperating transfer Qut

-357,681

-§57,681

$57,681

$0

10030

Operating Transfers fromAo Primary Government

10040

Cperating Transfers from/to Component Uit

10050

Proceeds from Motes, Loans and Bonds

10080

Praceeds from Property Sales

40070

Extraordinary ltems, MNet Gainfloss

10080

Special ltems (Net Gain/Loss)

10091

Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

10082

Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Cut

10083

Transfers between Program and Project - In

10094

Transfers between Project and Program - Out

10100

Total Other financing Sources {Uses)

$0

§0

30

$0

10000

Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Cver {Under) Total Expenses

-$153,336

-$153,336

$0

-$153,336

11020

Required Annua) Debt Principal Payments

$0

$C

80

1103C

Beginning Equity

$917,923

$917,923

$917,923

11040

Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors

11050

Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

11060

Changes in Contingent Liabllity Balance

11070

Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

11080

Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

11080

Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents

11100

Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

11170

Administrative Fee Equity

11180

Housing Assistance Payments Equity

11180

Unit Months Available

1612

1542

1512

11210

Number of Unit Months Leased

1144

1144

1144

11270

Excess Cash

$79,684

579,684

$79,684

11610

Land Purchases

$0

$0

$0

11620

Buikling Purchases

$0

$0

$0

11630

Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases

30

$0

$0

11640

Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases

$0

$0

$0

11650

Leasehold Improvements Purchases

$0

$0

$0

11660

Infrastructure Purchases

$0

$0

$0

13510

CFFP Debt Service Payments

$0

$0

$0

13801

Replacement Housing Factor Funds

$0

$0

$0
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CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND RECOVERY GRANT COSTS

PROGRAM
Funds approved
Funds expended
Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

DECEMBER 31, 2012
501-08 501-09 501-10 501-11
$ 195205 $ 192,783 $ 193,580 $ 165,661
195,205 192,783 193,580 165,661
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
$ 195205 $ 192,783 $ 193580 $ 165,661
195,205 192,783 193,580 165,661
$ - § - S - 8 -

The distribution of costs as shown on the Actual Modernization Cost Certificate submitted to HUD for approval is in

agreement with the PHA's records.

All modernization costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through payment.
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PROGRAM
BUDGET

ADVANCES:
Cash receipts - prior years
Cash receipts - current year

Cumulative as of December 31, 2012

COSTS:
Prior years
Current year

Cumnulative as of December 31, 2012

Excess (Deficiency) of advances due from
HUD (net)

Modernization Cost Certificate issued?

Soft costs
Prior years
Current year

Cumulative as of December 31, 2012
Hard costs
Prior years
Current year
Cumulative as of December 31, 2012

Hard costs remaining on CFP

Cumulative hard and soft costs

SCHEDULE AND RECONCILIATION OF ACTUAL
CAPITAL FUND COSTS AND ADVANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

CFP CFP CFP CFP CFP CFP
501-08 501-09 501-10 501-11 501-12 Total
$ 195,205 $ 192,783 $ 193,580 165,661 $ 149,047 $ 896,276
$ 195,205 § 192,783 $ 167,580 65,661 $ - 5 621,229
- - 26,000 100,000 103,000 225,000
$ 195205 8§ 192,783 $ 193,580 165,661 § 103,000 $ 850,229
$ 195205 § 192,783 $ 167,580 65,661 $ - 5 621,229
- - 26,000 100,000 106,002 232,002
$ 195,208 $ 192,783 $ 193,580 165,661 $ 106,002 $ 853,231
b - 3 - $ - - $ 3,002) § (3,002)
Yes Yes Yes Yes No
$ 181,614 $ 192,783 $ 167,580 65,661 $ - $ 607,638
- - 26,000 100,000 106,002 232,002
$ 181,614 $ 192,783 $ 193,580 165,661 $ 106,002 $ 839,640
$ 13,591 $ - $ - - $ - $ 13,591
8 13,501 3 - 3 - - 8 - $ 13,591
$ 13,591 $ - 3 - - 3 - $ 13,591
$ 195205 $ 192,783 $ 193,580 165,661 $ 106,002 § 853,231
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Federal Grantor:

Pass Through Federal

CFDA Number Program Title Entity Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.850 Low Rent Public Housing NA $ 712,418

Capital Fund Cluster

14.872 Capital Fund Program NA 232,002
Total Capital Fund Cluster 232,002
Total U.S. Department of HUD 944,420
Total Federal Awards Expenditures $ 944,420

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

A. Basis of Accounting
This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,

B. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations".

C. Reconciliation of Total Federal Awards Expenditures to Financial Data Schedule
FDS line 706 HUD PHA Grants $ 944,420

$ 944,420
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



MALCOILM JOHNSON & COMPANY, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
P.0. Box 530848
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463
malcolmjohnson(@mpinet.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners HUD, Jacksonville Area Office
Brooksville Housing Authority Charles Bennett Federal Building
Brooksville, Florida 400 W. Bay Street, Suite 1015

Jacksonville, Florida 32202-4410

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the basic financial statements of Brooksville Housing Authority (the Authority), which
comprise the statement of net position as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of revenue, expenses and
changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and
have issued our report thereon June 4, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Authority's interna} control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control, that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for

any other purpose, , .
-~ lc.rlj' n nl

Malcolm Johnson & Company, P.A,
Certified Public Accountants

DeBary, Florida
June 4, 2013
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MALCOLM JOHNSON & COMPANY, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
P.O. Box 530848
DeBary, Florida 32753-0848

Phone (386) 668-6464 Fax (386) 668-6463
malcolmjohnson@mpinet.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROIL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissioners HUD, Jacksonville Area Office
Brooksville Housing Authority Charles Bennett Federal Building
Brooksville, Florida 400 W, Bay Street, Suite 1015

Jacksonville, Florida 32202-4410

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited Brooksville Housing Authority's (the Authority) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012. The Authority’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questionied costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requlrements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal programs based
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations (OMB Circular A-133). Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a material effect on the major federal programs occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with each major program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal programs identified above for the year
ended December 31, 2012,
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the OMB Circular A-1 33, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance
requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit the attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified. '

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular 4-133.

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
LY % n nu

Malcolm Johnson & Company, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

DeBary, Florida
June 4, 2013
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BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

- SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Basic Financial Statements
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Type of auditors' report issued: Ungqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
~  Material weakness(es) identified? No
~ | Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be materiai
weaknesses? None reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs;
~  Material weakness(es) identified? No
~  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be material :
weakness(es)? None reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Ungqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337? No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.850 Low Income Public Housing
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes



BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

There were no prier audit findings.
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